T™ILLINGDON

LONDON

Major Applications

Planning

Committee

Date: TUESDAY, 7 OCTOBER
2014

Time: 6.00 PM

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 -

CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH
STREET, UXBRIDGE UBS8

1UW
Meeting Members of the Public and
Details: Press are welcome to attend

this meeting

This agenda and associated
reports can be made available
in other languages, in braille,
large print or on audio tape on
request. Please contact us for
further information.

This Agenda is available online at:

Public Document Pack

To Councillors on the Committee

Eddie Lavery (Chairman)

John Hensley (Vice-Chairman)
Peter Curling

Jazz Dhillon

Janet Duncan (Labour Lead)
lan Edwards

Henry Higgins

John Morgan

Brian Stead

Published: Monday, 29 September 2014

Contact: Danielle Watson
Tel: 01895 277488

Fax: 01895 277373
democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk

http://modgov-int.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Cld=325&Year=0

Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

www. hillingdon.gov.uk

Putting our residents first



Useful information for
residents and visitors

Travel and parking it =
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at &E.“‘f’éh ﬁ
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, \1)%)

with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a

short walk away. Limited parking is available at

the Civic Centre. For details on availability and Si“””‘_'"‘ A

how to book a parking space, please contact o S

Democratic Services

Please enter from the Council’s main reception v purk
where you will be directed to the Committee St M
Room.
Maziwrine
rar park
Accessibility

An Induction Loop System is available for use in
the various meeting rooms. Please contact us for
further information.

Electronic devices

Please switch off any mobile devices before the meeting. Any recording of the meeting is
not allowed, either using electronic, mobile or visual devices.

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer.

In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make
their way to the signed refuge locations.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings

Security and Safety information

Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the
fire alarm will sound continuously. If there is a
BOMB ALERT the alarm sounds intermittently.
Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.

Recording of meetings - This is not allowed,
either using electronic, mobile or visual devices.

Mobile telephones - Please switch off any mobile
telephones and BlackBerries before the meeting.

Petitions and Councillors

Petitions - Those who have organised a petition of
20 or more borough residents can speak at a
Planning Committee in support of or against an
application. Petitions must be submitted in
writing to the Council in advance of the meeting.
Where there is a petition opposing a planning
application there is also the right for the
applicant or their agent to address the meeting
for up to 5 minutes.

Ward Councillors - There is a right for local
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about
applications in their Ward.

Committee Members - The planning committee is
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet
in public every three weeks to make decisions on
applications.

How the Committee meeting works

The Planning Committees consider the most
complex and controversial proposals for
development or enforcement action.

Applications for smaller developments such as
householder extensions are generally dealt with
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated
powers.

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which
comprises reports on each application

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at
the beginning of the meeting.

The procedure will be as follows:-

1. The Chairman will announce the report;

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a
presentation of plans and photographs;

3. If there is a petition(s),the petition organiser
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant

followed by any Ward Councillors;

4. The Committee may ask questions of the
petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek
clarification from officers;

6. The Committee will vote on the
recommendation in the report, or on an
alternative recommendation put forward by a
Member of the Committee, which has been
seconded.

About the Committee’s decision

The Committee must make its decisions by
having regard to legislation, policies laid down
by National Government, by the Greater London
Authority - under ‘The London Plan’ and
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and
supporting guidance. The Committee must also
make its decision based on material planning
considerations and case law and material
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s
report and any representations received.

Guidance on how Members of the Committee
must conduct themselves when dealing with
planning matters and when making their
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s
Constitution.

When making their decision, the Committee
cannot take into account issues which are not
planning considerations such a the effect of a
development upon the value of surrounding
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself
is not sufficient ground for refusal of
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to
the design of the property. When making a
decision to refuse an application, the Committee
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for
refusal based on material planning
considerations.

If a decision is made to refuse an application,
the applicant has the right of appeal against the
decision. A Planning Inspector appointed by the
Government will then consider the appeal.
There is no third party right of appeal, although
a third party can apply to the High Court for
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

1
2
3

Apologies for Absence
Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting held on 16 September
2014

Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

To confirm that the items marked in Part 1 will be considered in public and those
items marked in Part 2 will be heard in private

PART | - Members, Public and Press

ltems are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the
Chairman may vary this. The name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the
address of the premises or land concerned.

Major Applications without a Petition

Address Ward Description & Page
Recommendation
26-36 Horton Road, Yiewsley Amendments to block B 5-30
Yiewsley - (including amendments to
3507/APP/2014/2724 Bedroom 2 windows, reduced
size rooflights, amendments to
fenestration and internal 130 - 142

alterations) and block C
(amendments to entrance and
circulation area) of planning
permission
3507/APP/2013/2327 approved
on 17-01-14 (Application for
Minor Material Amendments
under S73).

Recommendation : Approval
subject to a S106 Agreement.




7 | Unit 3, The Argent Townfield | Change of use from cellular 31-44
Centre, Pump Lane, radio telephone exchange (sui
Northwood - generis) to wholesale (Class B8
46218/APP/2014/2186 - storage and distribution) and
creation of mezzanine floor
providing ancillary storage and | 143 - 150
office space.
Recommendation - Approval -
subject to no additional
consultation responses
8 | Ryefield House, Hillingdon | Amendment to condition 3 of 45 - 66
Ryefield Avenue, East planning permission
Hillingdon - 11838/APP/2013/2650 dated
11838/APP/2014/2350 31/12/2013 to amend the
approved plans to adjust 151 -159
external openings, reconfigure
the internal layout and alter the
location, design and size of the
basement (S73 Application).
Recommendation : Delegated
for Officer Approval
9 | St Helens School, Northwood | Development of a new part two- | 67 - 98
Eastbury Road, storey and part single-storey
Northwood - Junior School building with
7402/APP/2014/2761 associated external works. 160 - 176
Recommendation - Approval
10| 2 Midcroft, Ruislip - West Demolition of existing petrol 99 - 128
4918/APP/2014/1274 | Ruislip station with tanks and erection
of a four storey building
comprising 14 residential units,
2 commercial units at the 177 - 188

ground floor with associated
access, underground car
parking and cycle storage.

Recommendation : Delegated
for Officer Approval

Plans for Major Applications Planning Committee Page 129 - 188




This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes

MAJOR APPLICATIONS PLANNING COMMITTEE

16 September 2014 t~ILL

INGDON

LONDON

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre,
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

Committee Members Present:
Councillors John Hensley (Vice-Chairman), Peter Curling, Jazz Dhillon, lan Edwards,
Henry Higgins, John Morgan, Brian Stead, Jas Dhot and David Yarrow

LBH Officers Present:

James Rodger - Head of Planning, Environment & Green Spaces, Adrien Waite - Major
Applications Team Manager, Manmohan Ranger - Highways Engineer, Nicole
Cameron - Legal Adviser, Gill Oswell - Democratic Services Officer

55. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)

Apologies had been received from Councillors Eddie Lavery and Janet Duncan with
Councillors David Yarrow and Jas Dhot substituting.

56. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING
(Agenda ltem 2)

There were no declarations of interest.

57. | TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON 17 JULY, 6
AUGUST AND 27 AUGUST 2014 (Agenda ltem 3)

The minutes of the meetings held on 17 July, 6 & 27 August 2014 were agreed as a
correct record.

58. | MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Item
4)

There were no matters notified in advance or urgent.

59. | TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 1 WILL BE CONSIDERED
INPUBLIC AND THOSE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 2 WILL BE HEARD IN PRIVATE
(Agenda ltem 5)

It was confirmed that items marked Part 1 would be considered in pubic and items
marked Part 2 would be considered in private.

60. | EC HOUSE, SWALLOFIELD WAY, HAYES 38065/APP/2014/2143 (Agenda Item

6)

Re-development of the site to provide 5 industrial units (Use Class B1(c), B2 and
B8) with associated parking, servicing and landscaping (Involving demolition
and refurbishment of existing units).

Officers introduced the report providing the main details of the application; the
amendments set out on the addendum sheet and advised that Condition 10 on the
addendum sheet should read Condition 11.

ragei




A member asked for clarification of the provision of electric points, cycle and
motorcycle parking for the units.

Officers advised the Committee that that the provision of cycle storage was provided
within the units. In relation to the motorcycle and electric points it was suggested that
the wording of condition 8 - 2b be amended with the wording agreed by the Chairman
and Labour Lead to ensure that the policy standard was achieved. This was agreed by
the Committee.

The recommendation with the wording of condition 8 - 2b amended was moved,
seconded and on being put to the vote was agreed.

Resolved -

1.That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and
Culture to grant planning permission subject to:

A)Entering into an agreement with the applicant under Section 106 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or S278 of the Highways Act
1980 (as amended) and/or other appropriate legislation to secure:

i) Air Quality Management contribution £12,500;

ii) Construction Training: £2500 per £1m of building costs + £9600 per phase of
development for coordinator costs or an in kind scheme.

iii) Travel Plan including a £20,000.00 bond;

iv) Project Management and Monitoring Sum: a financial contribution equal to 5%
of the total cash contribution;

B) That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Councils reasonable costs in preparation of the Section 106 and/or 278
Agreements and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being
completed.

C) That Officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement and conditions of approval.

D) If the Legal Agreements have not been finalised by 17th September 2014,
delegated authority be given to the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture
to refuse planning permission for the following reason:

'The applicant has failed to deliver necessary offsite highway works and to
provide contributions towards the improvement of services and facilities as a
consequence of demands created by the proposed development (in respect of
employment, air quality management and Travel Plan). The proposals therefore
conflicts with Policy AM2, AM7 and R17 of the adopted Local Plan and the
Councils Planning Obligations SPG.’

E) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture under delegated powers, subject to
completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant.

F) That if the application is approved, the conditions and informatives set out in
the officer's report be imposed, subject to any changes negotiated by the Head
of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture prior to issuing the decision, with the
wording of condition 8 - 2b amended a follows:-.

Page 2




'2.b.Car Parking Layouts (including 3 motorcycle parking spaces, 6 disabled
parking spaces and demonstration that 5 parking spaces are served by electrical
charging points - so far as practicable the disabled spaces and electrical
charging points shall be evenly distributed between the units hereby approved.)'

61.

RAF UXBRIDGE, HILLINGDON ROAD, UXBRIDGE 585/APP/2014/2071 (Agenda
Item 7)

Reserved matters (appearance, landscaping, layout and scale) in compliance
with conditions 2 and 3 for Phases 2B and 3A of the 'Southern Area' (85
dwellings - 8 x 2-bed houses, 31 x 3-bed houses, 39 x 4-bed houses, and 7 x 5-
bed houses), of outline planning permission ref: 585/APP/2009/2752 dated
18/01/2012, for the proposed mixed-use redevelopment of the former RAF
Uxbridge site.

Officers introduced the report setting out the main issues of the application.

The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote
was agreed.

Resolved - That the application be Approved, subject to the conditions and
informatives set out in the officer's report.

62.

PACKET BOAT MARINA, PACKET BOAT LANE, COWLEY
53216/APP/2014/2300 (Agenda ltem 8)

Change of use of ten (10) existing leisure moorings to residential moorings.

Officers introduced the report setting out the main issues of the application and the
amendments set out in the addendum sheet circulated at the meeting.

The Committee asked whether a condition to allocate and designate parking would be
appropriate to ensure that the spaces were used for the purpose they were meant.

Officers advised that as the plans showed parking spaces for the residential moorings
a condition would be reasonable. The Committee agreed to the condition being added.

A Member asked that as the proposal was for residential moorings, could a Community
Infrastructure levy (CIL) be requested.

Officers advised the Committee that the CIL only related to new floor space within
buildings, so this application was not covered by the legislation.

The recommendation for approval with an additional condition added in relation to
allocated and designated parking was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote
was agreed.

Resolved - That the application be Approved, subject to the conditions and
informatives set out in the officer's report and addendum sheet circulated at the
meeting and an additional condition in relation to the allocation and designation
of parking for each residential mooring as follows:-

'Each of the residential moorings hereby approved shall be allocated 1 of the
parking spaces coloured purple on drawing PBMR/001 prior to the residential
use of the mooring commencing. Thereafter the parking shall remain allocated
for the use of the mooring in accordance with the approved scheme and remain
under this allocation for the life of the development.

Page 3




REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (July 2011)."

The meeting, which commenced at 6.00 pm, closed at 6.20 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Gill Oswell on Democratic Services Officer: 01895 250693.
Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the
Public.

Page 4




Agenda ltem 6

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 26-36 HORTON ROAD YIEWSLEY

Development: Amendments to block B (including amendments to Bedroom 2 windows,
reduced size rooflights, amendments to fenestration and internal alterations)
and block C (amendments to entrance and circulation area) of planning
permission 3507/APP/2013/2327 approved on 17-01-14 (Application for

Minor Material Amendments under S73).

LBH Ref Nos: 3507/APP/2014/2724

Drawing Nos: Tree Protection Plan
CSH Assessment
Arboricultural Survey
Ecology Report

Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strateg

Geo-Environmental Desk Study
Planning Noise Assessment
Planning Statement with appendices

Code for Sustainable Homes - Pre-Assessment Repor

Sustainability & Energy Statemen
LA117 Block B

LA118 Block B - Plan

LA125 - Block C Plan

S73 Planning Statement

A2353 100 REV. P1 -EXISTING SITE PLAN

Transport Assessment

LA171 -SITE PLAN

LA172 - BLOCK A PLANS
LA174 - BLOCK B PLANS
LA175 - BLOCK B PLANS
LA177 - BLOCK C

LA176 - BLOCK B ELEVATIONS
LA173 - BLOCK A ELEVATIONS
A2353 220 REV. P1 - TRACKING
Tree Protection Plan

EAS 347 SKO05 - SITE ACCESS

Date Plans Received:  31/07/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 19/09/2014

Date Application Valid: 31/07/2014
1. SUMMARY

31/07/2014

The application seeks minor material amendments to the planning permission

3507/APP/2013/2327 which was granted on 16-01-14.

The amendments would not result in any adverse impacts on the character of the area,
the amenity of neighbouring residents or future occupiers of the development.
Furthermore, the development would maintain compliance with all other policies as

secured under the original permission.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 5



Subject to appropriate conditions and a legal agreement, the application is recommended
for approval.

2. RECOMMENDATION

A. That the Council enters into an agreement with the applicant under Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or Section 278 of
the Highways Act 1980 (as amended) and/ or other appropriate legislation to
secure:

(i) Transport: All on site and off site highways works as a result of this proposal,
including improvements to the site access.

(ii) Education: The applicant provides a financial contribution of £176,170 towards
school places in the area, commensurate with the estimated child yield of the
development

(iii) Health: The applicant provides a financial contribution of £23,068.85 towards
health care in the area

(iv) Libraries: The applicant provides a financial contribution of £2,448.81 towards
library provision in the area

(v) Construction Training: Either a construction training scheme delivered during
the construction phase of the development or a financial contribution of £35,000
(vi) Air Quality: The applicant provides a financial contribution in the sum of
£12,500.

(vii) Community Facilities/Public Realm, including towpath improvements: The
applicant provides a financial contribution of £50,000

(vii) Affordable Housing review mechanism

(viii) Project Management and Monitoring Fee: a contribution equal to 5% of the
total cash contribution to enable the management and monitoring of the resulting
agreement.

B) That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Council's reasonable costs in preparation of the Section 106 and 278
Agreements and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being
completed.

C) That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement and conditions of approval.

D) That if any of the heads of terms set out above have not been agreed and the
S106 legal agreement has not been finalised by 30th October 2014, or any other
period deemed appropriate by the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture,
then the application may be referred back to the Committee for determination.

E) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture under delegated powers, subject to
the completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant.

F) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be imposed:

1 T8 Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of the initial permission (ref:3507/APP/2013/2327).

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 RES7 Materials (Submission)

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 6



No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces, have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such details
shall include:

(i) fenestration and doors

(ii) balconies including obscure screening

(iii) boundary walls and railings (including the boundary area and interfaces with the
canal)

(v) external lighting

(vi) comprehensive colour scheme for all built details

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details
and be retained as such.

REASON

To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance and to safeguard the
privacy of residents in accordance with Policies BE13 and BE24 of the the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

3 RES6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in
accordance with policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

4 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers:
A2353 100 REV. P1 -EXISTING SITE PLAN

A2353 220 REV. P1 - TRACKING

EAS 347 SKO05 - SITE ACCESS

LA117 BLOCK B

LA118 BLOCK B - PLAN

LA125 - BLOCK C PLAN

LA171- SITE PLAN

LA172 - BLOCK A PLANS

LA173 - BLOCK A ELEVATIONS

LA174 - BLOCK B PLANS

LA175 - BLOCK B PLANS

LA176 - BLOCK B ELEVATIONS

LA177 - BLOCK C

TREE PROTECTION PLAN

and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 7



REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). and the London Plan (July 2011).

5 DIS5 Design to Lifetime Homes Standards & Wheelchair Standards

All residential units within the development hereby approved shall be built in accordance
with 'Lifetime Homes' Standards. Further, five of the units hereby approved shall be
designed to be fully wheelchair accessible, or easily adaptable for residents who are
wheelchair users, as set out in the Council's Supplementary Planning Document
'Accessible Hillingdon'.

REASON
To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2.

6 H1 Traffic Arrangements - submission of details

Development shall not begin until details of all traffic arrangements (including where
appropriate carriageways, footways, turning space, safety strips, sight lines at road
junctions, kerb radii, car parking areas and marking out of spaces, loading facilities,
closure of existing access and means of surfacing) have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved development shall not be
occupied until all such works have been constructed in accordance with the approved
details. Thereafter, the parking areas, sight lines and loading areas must be permanently
retained and used for no other purpose at any time. Disabled parking bays shall be a
minimum of 4.8m long by 3.6m wide or at least 3.0m wide where two adjacent bays may
share an unloading area.

REASON

To ensure pedestrian and vehicular safety and convenience and to ensure adequate off-
street parking, and loading facilities in compliance with Policy AM14 of of the the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7 NONSC Visibility Splays

The access for the proposed development shall be provided with 2.4m x 2.4m pedestrian
visibility splays in both directions and the visibility splays shall be maintained free of all
obstacles to the visibility between heights of 0.6m and 2.0m above the level of the
adjoining highway.

REASON
In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Policy AM7 of the the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

8 NONSC Details of Modified Access

Development shall not begin until details of the modified access off Horton Road,
including details of the pedestrian crossing point (tactile paving) have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be
occupied until the works which have been approved by the Local Planning Authority have
been completed.

REASON
In the interests of highway safety and in compliance with Policy AM7 of the the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

N1

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 8



Prior to reaching danNvipessénzitinee Bafiltlirgsevssepofespecifiedumdaisardstion and
ventilation scheme for protecting the proposed development from road, air traffic and
other noise has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall meet acceptable internal noise design criteria. All works
which form part of the scheme shall be fully implemented before the development is
occupied and thereafter shall be retained and maintained in good working order for so
long as the building remains in use.

REASON

To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of the proposed development is not
adversely affected by road traffic, air traffic and other noise, in accordance with Policy
OES5 of the the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Policy 7.15 of the London Plan.

10 RES24 Secured by Design

The scheme shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the
Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No dwelling shall be occupied until
accreditation has been achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

1 RES25 No floodlighting

No floodlighting or other form of external lighting shall be installed unless it is in
accordance with details which have previously been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include location, height, type and
direction of light sources and intensity of illumination.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of surrounding properties in accordance with policies BE13
and OE1 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to
protect the ecological value of the area in accordance with Policy EC3.

12 RES15 Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the
development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed
to delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken
to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development
which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory
undertaker and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 9



throughout its lifetime.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain or grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OE8 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
London Plan (July 2011) Policy 5.12.

13 NONSC Surface Water Run Off

If surface water run-off and ground water is proposed to drain into the adjacent Grand
Union Canal, details shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority in prior to the commencement of development, and thereafter implemented in
accordance with the agreed details unless otherwise agreed in writing.

REASON

To determine the potential for pollution of the waterway and likely volume of water.
Potential contamination of the waterway and ground water from wind blow, seepage or
spillage at the site, and high volumes of water should be avoided to safeguard the
waterway environment and integrity of the waterway infrastructure, in compliance with
Policy OES8 of the the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) and policy 5.12 of the London Plan.

14 RES8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum
height of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 10



REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

15 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

1.d Full details of the proposed hard and soft landscaping scheme for the waterside area

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Cycle Storage for 50 cycle parking spaces

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Car Parking Layouts for 54 car parking spaces of which 5 will be to disabled
standards.(including details of 5 active and 6 passive electric vehicle charging points)

2.e Hard Surfacing Materials

2.f External Lighting

2.g Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)'including security measures
for the play areas.

3. Living Walls and Roofs
3.a Details of the inclusion of living walls and roofs
3.b Justification as to why no part of the development can include living walls and roofs

4. Details of Landscape Maintenance

4.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

4.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within
the landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority
becomes seriously damaged or diseased.

5. Schedule for Implementation

6. Other
6.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
6.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with
the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13, BE38
and AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Policies 5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage), 5.3 (sustainable travel) of
the London Plan (July 2011).

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 11



16 NONSC Imported Soils

All soils used for gardens and/or landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of
contamination. Site derived soils and imported soils shall be tested for chemical
contamination, and the results of this testing shall be submitted for approval to the Local
Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable
risks to workers, neighbours and other off site receptors, in accordance with Policy OE11
of the the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

17 NONSC Parking Allocation

No part of the development shall be occupied until details of the method of control for the
designation and allocation of parking spaces has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted scheme shall demonstrate the
allocation of 1 space for each unit. Thereafter, the parking spaces shall be retained for
the sole use of the individual flats in accordance with the approved details.

REASON

In order to ensure that sufficient parking is provided, in accordance with Policies AM14
and AM15 of the the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

18 NONSC Ecological Enhancement

Prior to commencement of development an ecological enhancement scheme shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
clearly detail measures to promote and enhance roosting and foraging opportunities for
bats including the incorporation of new roosting facilities within the fabric of the buildings.
The scheme shall also demonstrate how the development will contribute to wider wildlife
benefits which may include nectar rich green roofs and walls, habitat walls and wildlife
specific landscaping. The development must proceed in accordance with the approved
scheme.

REASON

To ensure the development contributes to ecological enhancement in accordance with
Policy EM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
and Policy 7.28 of the London Plan (2011).

19 RES16 Code for Sustainable Homes

The dwellings shall achieve Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes. No development
shall occupied until a signed design stage certificate confirming this level has been
received. The design stage certificate shall be retained and made available for
inspection by the Local Planning Authority on request.

The development must be completed in accordance with the principles of the design
stage certificate and the applicant shall ensure that completion stage certificate has been
attained prior to occupancy of each dwelling.

REASON
To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development identified in London Plan (July

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 12



2011) Policies 5.1 and 5.3.

20 NONSC Waterside Risk Assessment

Prior to the commencement of development hereby approved, a Risk Assessment and
Method Statement outlining all works to be carried out adjacent to the water (Grand
Union Canal) shall be submitted and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
The risk assessment shall also include details of the proposed safety equipment along
the canal frontage, which shall be installed prior to first occupation of the development
herby permitted.

REASON
To ensure the proposed works do not have any adverse impact on the safety of
waterway users and the integrity of the Navigation.

21 NONSC Waterbourne Freight

Prior to the commencement of development hereby approved, a feasibility study shall be
carried out to assess the potential for moving freight by water during the demolition and
construction cycle (waste and bulk materials) and following occupation of the
development (waste and recyclables). The use of waterborne transport shall be
maximised during the construction of the development unless the above assessment
demonstrates that such use of the Grand Union Canal is not physically or economically
feasible.

REASON
To encourage the use of the canal for transporting waste and bulk materials in
accordance with policy 7.26 of the London Plan.

22 NONSC Ingress of Polluted Air

Before the development is commenced a scheme for protecting the proposed
accommodation from external air pollution shall be submitted and approved by the LPA.
Any works which form part of such a scheme shall be completed before any part of the
development is first occupied or used and measures put in place to ensure it is
maintained for the life of the development.

REASON: To safeguard residential amenity in accordance with policy OE1 of the the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

23 NONSC Air Quality and Energy Provision

Before the energy provision is installed, details of any plant, machinery or fuel burnt, as
part of the energy provision for the development shall be submitted to the LPA for
approval. This shall include suitable pollutant emission rates with and without mitigation
technologies, which needs to be considered as part of a wider air quality assessment if
necessary, as set out in the EPUK CHP Guidance 2012 (September 2007). Details to
limit and/or control air pollution for any CHP shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The measures shall be provided prior to the occupation
and thereafter implemented and maintained for the lifetime of the development unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To safeguard the amenity of the site and neighbouring properties in
accordance with policy OE1 of the the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

24 NONSC Contamination

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 13



(i) The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a scheme to deal with
contamination has been submitted in accordance with the Supplementary Planning
Guidance Document on Land Contamination and approved by the Local Planning
Authority (LPA). The scheme shall include the following measures unless the LPA
dispenses with any such requirement specifically and in writing:

(a) A desk-top study carried out by a competent person to characterise the site and
provide information on the history of the site/surrounding area and to identify and
evaluate all potential sources of contamination and impacts on land and water and all
other identified receptors relevant to the site;

(b) A site investigation, including where relevant, soil, soil gas, surface and groundwater
sampling, together with the results of analysis and risk assessment shall be carried out
by a suitably qualified and accredited consultant/contractor. The report should also
clearly identify all risks, limitations and recommendations for remedial measures to make
the site suitable for the proposed use; and

(c) A written method statement providing details of the remediation scheme and how the
completion of the remedial works will be verified shall be agreed in writing with the LPA
prior to commencement, along with details of a watching brief to address undiscovered
contamination.

(i) If during development works contamination not addressed in the submitted
remediation scheme is identified, the updated watching brief shall be submitted and an
addendum to the remediation scheme shall be agreed with the LPA prior to
implementation; and

(iii) All works which form part of the remediation scheme shall be completed and a
comprehensive verification report shall be submitted to the Council's Environmental
Protection Unit before any part of the development is occupied or brought into use unless
the LPA dispenses with any such requirement specifically and in writing.

REASON

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable
risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with policy OE11
of the the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

25 NONSC Japanese Knotweed Removal

The development permitted by this planning permission shall only be carried out in
accordance with the approved Japanese Knotweed eradication programme 'In-situ
Herbicidal Eradication Methodology'. Development shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved statement.

REASON

(i) This is an invasive plant, the spread of which is prohibited under the Wildlife and
Countryside Act.

(i) To benefit local wildlife and to help maintain the regions natural balance of flora, in
compliance with Policies EC1 and EC5 of the the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012) and policy 7.19 of the London Plan (July 2011).

26 RPD2 Obscured Glazing and Non-Opening Windows (a)

The east facing first and second floor seconary windows in Block A, serving units A 1.2,
A13,A14,A22 A23andA 24 facing 38A Horton Road and the north facing landing

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 14



windows in Block C facing 14-24 Horton Road shall be glazed with permanently obscured
glass and non-opening below a height of 1.7 metres taken from internal finished floor
level for so long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national

guidance.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE26 Town centres - design, layout and landscaping of new buildings

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

H4 Mix of housing units

H5 Dwellings suitable for large families

H8 Change of use from non-residential to residential

LE4 Loss of existing industrial floorspace or land outside designated
Industrial and Business Areas

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE5 Siting of noise-sensitive developments

OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures

OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 15



surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of
recreation, leisure and community facilities

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

LPP 5.1 (2011) Climate Change Mitigation

LPP 5.12 (2011) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2011) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.7 (2011) Renewable energy

LPP 6.3 (2011) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

LPP 7.3 (2011) Designing out crime

LPP 7.30 (2011) London's canals and other rivers and waterspaces

LPP 8.2 (2011) Planning obligations

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

3 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not
empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the
owner. If you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

4 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by
either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will
have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results
in any form of encroachment.

5 11 Building to Approved Drawing

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

6 111 The Construction (Design and Management) Regulations
1994

The development hereby approved may be subject to the Construction (Design and
Management) Regulations 1994, which govern health and safety through all stages of a
construction project. The regulations require clients (ie. those, including developers, who
commision construction projects) to appoint a planning supervisor and principal
contractor who are competent and adequately resourced to carry out their health and
safety responsibilities. Further information is available from the Health and Safety
Executive, Rose Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS (telephone 020
7556 2100).

7 112 Notification to Building Contractors

The applicant/developer should ensure that the site constructor receives copies of all
drawings approved and conditions/informatives attached to this planning permission.
During building construction the name, address and telephone number of the contractor
(including an emergency telephone number) should be clearly displayed on a hoarding
visible from outside the site.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 16



8 114C Compliance with Building Regulations Access to and use of
You are advised that the scheme is required to comply with either:-

- The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document Part M 'Access to and use of
buildings', or with

- BS 8300:2001 Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled
people - Code of practice. AMD 15617 2005, AMD 15982 2005.

These documents (which are for guidance) set minimum standards to allow residents,
workers and visitors, regardless of disability, age or gender, to gain access to and within
buildings, and to use their facilities and sanitary conveniences.

You may also be required make provisions to comply with the Disability Discrimination
Act 1995. The Act gives disabled people various rights. Under the Act it is unlawful for
employers and persons who provide services to members of the public to discriminate
against disabled people by treating them less favourably for any reason related to their
disability, or by failing to comply with a duty to provide reasonable adjustments. This
duty can require the removal or modification of physical features of buildings provided it
is reasonable.

The duty to make reasonable adjustments can be effected by the Building Regulation
compliance. For compliance with the DDA please refer to the following guidance: -

- The Disability Discrimination Act 1995. Available to download from www.opsi.gov.uk

- Disability Rights Commission (DRC) Access statements. Achieving an inclusive
environment by ensuring continuity throughout the planning, design and management of
building and spaces, 2004. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

- Code of practice. Rights of access. Goods, facilities, services and premises. Disability
discrimination act 1995, 2002. ISBN 0 11702 860 6. Available to download from www.drc-
gb.org.

- Creating an inclusive environment, 2003 & 2004 - What it means to you. A guide for
service providers, 2003. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

This is not a comprehensive list of Building Regulations legislation. For further
information you should contact Building Control on 01895 250804/5/6 and 8.

9 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank and
Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 17



C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public health
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

10 116 Directional Signage

You are advised that any directional signage on the highway is unlawful. Prior consent
from the Council's Street Management Section is required if the developer wishes to
erect directional signage on any highway under the control of the Council.

11 119 Sewerage Connections, Water Pollution etc.

You should contact Thames Water Utilities and the Council's Building Control Service
regarding any proposed connection to a public sewer or any other possible impact that
the development could have on local foul or surface water sewers, including building over
a public sewer. Contact: - The Waste Water Business Manager, Thames Water Utilities
plc, Kew Business Centre, Kew Bridge Road, Brentford, Middlesex, TW8 OEE.

Building Control Service - 3N/01, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (tel.
01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

12 121 Street Naming and Numbering

All proposed new street names must be notified to and approved by the Council. Building
names and numbers, and proposed changes of street names must also be notified to the
Council. For further information and advice, contact - The Street Naming and Numbering
Officer, Planning & Community Services, 3 North Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge,
UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250557).

13 I125A The Party Wall etc. Act 1996
On 1 July 1997, a new act, The Party Wall etc. Act 1996, came into force.

This Act requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement from, any
adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:-

1) carry out work to an existing party wall;

2) build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

3) in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining
building.

Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner
and are quite separate from Building Regulations or planning controls. Building Control
will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements with the adjoining
owner, and nothing said or implied by Building Control should be taken as removing the
necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Act.

14 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 18



the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

15 19 Community Safety - Designing Out Crime

Before the submission of reserved matters/details required by condition x you are
advised to consult the Metropolitan Police's Crime Prevention Design Advisor, Planning &
Community Services, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250538).

16

It is contrary to section 163 of the Highways Act 1980 for surface water from private land
to drain onto the highway or discharge into the highway drainage system. The hard
standing shall therefore be so designed and constructed that surface water from the
private land shall not be permitted to drain onto the highway or into the highway drainage
system.

17

With regard to the external materials (condition 2), you are advised that it will be
important to ensure that the materials match those older buildings in the locality. The
drawings are annotated as being dark red/brown tiles and these are considered
appropriate. The drawings also show stock brick, which should be a deep red, rather
than the yellow/buff shown in the perspectives.

18

In seeking to discharge condition 17 (car parking), the applicant is advised that the
preferred solution is to allocate 2 parking spaces each for the 3 bedroom flats and 1
space each for the smaller units.

19

With regard to surface water drainage it is the responsibility of a developer to make
proper provision for drainage to ground, water courses or a suitable sewer. Where the
developer proposes to discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water
Developer Services will be required. They can be contacted on 0845 850 2777. With
regard to water supply, this comes within the area covered by the Three Valleys Water
Company.

20

Specific security needs identified for the application site include CCTV coverage of
certain key areas within the development, namely the underground car park and the main
vehicular entrance to the development. This could be a simple fixed camera system for
deterrence and retrospective investigation only and not monitored system. You are
advised to submit details to expedite the specified security needs. In addition to the
above, for this site to achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation, you are advised to
consult with the local Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA). The CPDA's
contact number is 0208 246 1769.

21

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 19



The developer is requested to maximise the opportunities to provide high quality work
experience for young people (particularly the 14 - 19 age group) from the London
Borough of Hillingdon, in such areas as bricklaying, plastering, painting and decorating,
electrical installation, carpentry and landscaping in conjunction with the Hillingdon
Education and Business Partnership.

22

You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the pavement or public
highway. You are further advised that failure to take appropriate steps to avoid spillage or
adequately clear it away could result in action being taken under the Highways Acts.

23

The applicant is encouraged to discuss with Council officers in conjunction with the
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Officer whether on site CCTV cameras can be
linked to the Council's central CCTV system.

24

You are advised that the development hereby approved represents chargeable
development under the Mayor's Community Infrastructure Levy. At this time the
Community Infrastructure Levy is estimated to be £40,3550.00 which is due on
commencement of this development. The actual Community Infrastructure Levy will be
calculated at the time your development is first permitted and a separate liability notice
will be issued by the Local Planning Authority. Should you require further information
please refer to the Council's Website www.hillingdon.gov.uk/index.jsp?articleid=24738"

25

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex,
UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

26

The applicant/developer should refer to the current "Code of Practice for Works affecting
the Canal to ensure that any necessary consents are obtained
(http://canalrivertrust.org.uk/about-us/for-businesses/undertaking-works-on-our-

property)."

The applicant/developer is advised that any encroachment or access onto the canal
towpath requires written consent from the Canal & River Trust, and they should contact
the Canal & River  Trust's Estates Surveyor, Jonathan Young
(jonathan.young@canalrivertrust.org.uk) regarding the required access agreement."”

27

If surface water run-off and ground water is proposed to drain into the adjoining Grand

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 20



Union Canal waterway, details submitted pursuant to the discharge of conditions relating
to drainage will be subject to consultation with the Canal & River Trust, in order to assess
the potential for pollution of the waterway and likely volume of water.

The applicant is advised that surface water discharge to the Navigation will require prior
consent from the Canal & River Trust. Please contact Nick Pogson from the Canal &
River Trust Utilities team (nick.pogson@canalrivertrust.org.uk).

The applicant is also advised to ensure that potential contamination of the waterway
(Grand Union Canal) and ground water from wind blow, seepage or spillage at the site,
and high volumes of water be avoided, to safeguard the waterway environment and
integrity of the waterway infrastructure.

28

You are advised that details submitted pursuant to the discharge of conditions relating to
external lighting, CCTV scheme, the proposed hard and soft landscaping
scheme/boundary treatment for the canal waterside area, Waterborne Freight Feasibility
study and the Risk Assessment and Method Statement will be subject to consultation
with the Canal & River Trust.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site is a roughly 'T' shaped relatively flat plot of land, 1 acre or 0.42ha in area,
situated to the south of Horton Road. The primary axis is north-south with a western spur.
The Grand Union canal defines the southern boundary. There are currently a number of
dilapidated industrial buildings within the site with a large service yard and parking area to
the north of the buildings. The industrial buildings also directly abut the canal towpath to
the south of the site.

The surrounding area is largely residential in nature with groups of terraced properties to
the east and west of the site with a frontage onto Horton Road and terrace housing on the
opposite side of the road. The site borders residential properties to the north fronting
Horton Road and to the east, including a 1980's residential development, Knowles Close.
Commercial development is located to the west.

The application site falls within the a Growth Area as defined in Hillingdon's Local Plan:
Part 1- Strategic Policies. The site is located within the Yiewsley/West Drayton MajorTown
Centre, but outside both the primary and secondary shopping areas.

There is a tree preservation order TPO No 365 to the east of the site. The site has a
Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 2-3.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Planning permission ref:3507/APP/2013/2327 was originally granted for the erection of 3
residential appartment blocks, to provide 50 residential units, comprising 13 one bedroom,
35 two bedroom and 2 three bedroom apartments, together with associated parking,
involving demolition of existing industrial buildings.

In working up the scheme, the applicants submit that a number of errors have been
identified in the scale, levels and elevation drawings, including missing fenestration on the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 21



fourth floor plan to bedrooms of Block B on the approved plans. Along with the need to
rectify these planning matters, the applicants are also seeking to make further internal
layout/circulation efficiencies to Block C, necessitating external alterations to the approved
scheme. As such, consideration is limited to the following changes:

Block B (fronting canal) - Fourth Floor & Roof Fenestration Amendments
The amendments proposed to Block B, are listed below:

1. Additional 4th. floor flank windows

The approved drawing did not have any fourth floor flank windows serving the second
bedroom, unlike that of the flats on the floors below, with the only source of natural light
coming from oversized rooflights. The proposal is to insert three flank windows on either
side, serving the second bedrooms and lounges where none are currently approved, to
align with those of the same flats below. There has been a modest increase in roof height
Of 0.66 m, to allow for appropriate spacing of windows and required floor to ceiling
heights internally.

2. Reduced Size Rooflights

Following on from the additional flank wall windows, this now removes the requirement to
have over-sized Rooflights as proposed in the approved scheme. Consequently the size
of the rooflights have been reduced, although the number of roof lights remain the same.

3. Regularisation of Fenestration - Flank Elevations

The stair core and circulation area has been rationalised, which in turn has led to a
handed stepped arrangement to the fenestration to the stairs and bedroom at fourth floor
and below.

4. Internal Alterations / External Fenestration Alterations

The lounge and Bedroom 1 in the southern facing units have been handed to allow for a
better layout and dual aspect lounges. This has in turn resulted in changes to the
balcony fenestration with the double doors to the outer edge of the balconies.

Block C: Proposed Alterations to Entrance & Circulation Area

Amendments are sought to the approved entrance and stair core layout, to allow for a
more efficient layout and flat layouts. The amendments to the position of communal stairs
necessitates the handing of the stair core window to the other side of the centre line.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

3507/APP/2013/2327 26-36 Horton Road Yiewsley

Demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment to provide 50 residential units in 3 buildings
with associated car parking and cycle parking spaces, communal amenity areas, landscaping,
private gardens and balconies utilising existing access.

Decision: 16-01-2014  Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Planning permission ref:3507/APP/2013/2327 was granted on 17-01-14, for the erection
of 3 residential appartment blocks, to provide 50 residential units, comprising 13 one
bedroom, 35 two bedroom and 2 three bedroom apartments together with associated
parking, involving demolition of existing industrial buildings. The proposal includes parking

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 22



for 54 cars, 50 secure cycle spaces and integral bin stores, together with associated
landscaping.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1
PT1.E5
PT1.EM3
PT1.EM6
PT1.H2

(2012) Built Environment
(2012) Town and Local Centres
(2012) Blue Ribbon Network
(2012) Flood Risk Management
(2012) Affordable Housing

Part 2 Policies:

AM14
AM15
AM7
AM9

BE13
BE19
BE20
BE21
BE23
BE24
BE26
BE38

H4
H5
H8
LE4

OE1

OES5
OE7

New development and car parking standards.
Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.
Town centres - design, layout and landscaping of new buildings

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Mix of housing units
Dwellings suitable for large families
Change of use from non-residential to residential

Loss of existing industrial floorspace or land outside designated Industrial and
Business Areas

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Siting of noise-sensitive developments

Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection
measures

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 23



OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010
LPP 5.1 (2011) Climate Change Mitigation

LPP 5.12 (2011
LPP 5.13 (2011

Flood risk management
Sustainable drainage

)
)
LPP 5.7 (2011) Renewable energy
LPP 6.3 (2011) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
LPP 7.3 (2011) Designing out crime
LPP 7.30 (2011) London's canals and other rivers and waterspaces
LPP 8.2 (2011) Planning obligations
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 3rd September 2014
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
6. Consultations

External Consultees

The application has been advertised as a development under article 13 of the Town and Country
Planning (General Development Proceedure) Order 1995. In addition, 28 nearby owners and
occupiers were consulted. No comments have been received in respect of this consultation.

CANALS AND RIVERS TRUST - No objection.

Internal Consultees

URBAN DESIGN AND CONSERVATION OFFICER

Whilst there are no objections in principle to the amended elevations, block B now appears to be
taller than originally approved. In addition, given the new windows to the 4th floor, it is not clear as
to what spaces the roof lights to block B now light.

(Officer note: There is only a marginal increase in height and no new space is being created. The
roof lights will continue to serve the 4th. floor rooms).

FLOOD AND DRAINAGE OFFICER.
The proposed amendments do not affect drainage arrangements.

ACCESS OFFICER

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 24



| have considered the detail of this planning application and deem there to be no accessibility
issues raised by the proposal.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The principle of the development has been established under the original grant of
planning permission (Ref:3507/APP/2013/2327).
7.02 Density of the proposed development

The density of the development has been established under the original grant of planning
permission (Ref:3507/APP/2013/2327). There are no changes proposed with respect to
the number of units or habitable rooms.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The site does not fall within an Archaeological Priority Area and there are no Conservation
Areas or Listed Buildings within the vicinity.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

The proposal would not have any additional impact on airport safeguarding over that
considered within the original grant of planning permission (Ref:3507/APP/2013/2327).
7.05 Impact on the green belt

The application is not located within or in proximity to the Metropolitan Green Belt.
7.06 Environmental Impact

The proposal would not have any environmental impacts over those considered within the
original grant of planning permission (Ref:3507/APP/2013/2327).
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Part 1 Policy BE1 requires all new development to improve and maintain the quality of the
built environment in order to create successful and sustainable neighbourhoods. Saved
Part 2 Policies BE13 and BE19 seek to ensure that new development complements or
improves the character and amenity of the area, whilst Policy BE38 seeks the retention of
topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting and landscaping in
development proposals.

Policy BE26 seeks to ensure that within town centres, the design, layout and landscaping
of new buildings should reflect the role, overall scale and character of town centres as a
focus for shopping and leisure activity. The suporting text to Policy BE26 states that the
design of buildings and external spaces should increase the visual and functional
attractiveness of town centres, in order to attract people and investment; and new
buildings should maintain the feeling of bulk and scale of the town centres while creating
variety and interest in themselves.

London Plan Policy 7.1 sets out a series of overarching design principles for development
in London and policy 7.6 seeks to promote world-class, high quality design and design-led
change in key locations.

With regard to the proposed amendments, it is noted that there are no changes to the
total number of new residential units, the block positions, overall layout, the proposed
access and parking arrangements.

It is considered that the proposed insertion of the additional flank windows in Block B at
fourth floor level would resulted in a regularisation and balanced fenestration pattern, with
no enlarged areas of brickwork as in the approved scheme.

Individually the proposed alterations to Block B are considered to be modest in the context

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 25



of the articulation of the approved elevations. Moreover, despite a slight increase in
height of 660mm, to allow for appropriate spacing of windows and required floor to ceiling
heights internally, cummulatively, the proposed amendments would have a minimal impact
on the external appearance of the building, compared with the approved scheme.

With regard to Block C, the siting remains exactly the same and the proposed windows
are not in a materially different position to the approved windows.

Overall, it is considered that the scheme as amended, will introduce a built form that is
appropriate to its context and will improve the townscape character of the area, with a
satisfactory built form, in compliance with Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policy BE24 of the the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) requires that new development benefit from adequate levels of privacy.

The proposed internal layout alterations and efficiencies of the revised layout to block B
has led to the insertion of three flank windows at fourth floor level on both sides. With
separation distances of 16.7m to adjoining commercial/industrial premises and 27.7m at
an oblique angle to nearest residential properties in Knowles Close, these additional
windows at 4th floor level are not considered to have any material adverse impact on
amenities and living conditions of the neighbouring properties in terms of loss of privacy.

As a result of the additional flank wall windows in Block B, this now removes the
requirement to have over-sized rooflights, as proposed in the approved scheme.
Consequently, the size of the rooflights have been reduced, although the number of
rooflights to bedrooms, kitchen/living and lounge remains unchanged. The reduced size
and angle of the roof pitch will ensure that there is no adverse impact on amenities of
neighbouring residents or commercial properties as a consequence of these
amendments.

With regard to Block C, the repositioned north facing stair core windows will continue to
be obscure glazed and non-opening below 1.7m and this is secured by condition. It is
therefore considered that there will be no additional impact on the residential properties to
the north, fronting Horton Road.

The proposals would not result in any loss of privacy to neighbouring properties and the
scheme would accord with Policy BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) in this respect.

In addition, it is not considered that the proposed changes would result in any other
impacts on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

In terms of overall amenity provision for the future occupiers, the units within the proposed
development would maintain compliance with the Council's internal floorspace standards.
Overall, it is considered that the development as proposed would maintain an appropriate
environment for future occupiers.

7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The proposal would not alter any of the arrangement in respect of the number of parking
spaces, cycle parking, or vehicular access, which were previously agreed within the
original grant of planning permission (Ref:3507/APP/2013/2327).

7.11 Urban design, access and security

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 26



712

7.13

7.14

715

7.16

717

718

719

7.20

Issues of design and access have been discussed elsewhere in the relevant sections of
this report. In respect of security, it is not considered that the proposal would have any
significant adverse impacts in terms of security. A condition would ensure that the scheme
needs to comply with Secured by Design Standards.

Disabled access

The proposals would not alter the level of accessibility achieved within the development
from that previously agreed within the original grant of planning permission
(Ref:3507/APP/2013/2327). The scheme would retain appropriate internal layouts to
comply with Lifetime Homes Standards and an appropriate number of disabled units
would be provided.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

The original grant of planning permission (Ref:3507/APP/2013/2327) did not secure any
affordable housing, as it was demonstrated that this was not viable. The proposed
amendments would not increase the viability of the development and accordingly the
scheme would still provide no affordable housing, although an Affordable Housing review
mechanism has been secured under the existing S106 Agreement. It is recommended
that this review mechanism be carried forward to any future S106 Agreemnt, in the event
of an approval.

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

The proposal would not alter the development in terms of landscaping, trees and ecology
from the scheme previously agreed within the original grant of planning permission
(Ref:3507/APP/2013/2327). It is noted that that detailed landscaping and tree protection
conditions are attached to the recommendation, which would enable the final details to be
approved.

Sustainable waste management

The proposal would not alter the development in terms of waste management or storage
from the scheme previously agreed within the original grant of planning permission
(Ref:3507/APP/2013/2327).

Renewable energy / Sustainability

The proposal would not alter the development in terms of reneawable
energey/sustainability from the scheme previously agreed within the original grant of
planning permission (Ref:3507/APP/2013/2327).

Flooding or Drainage Issues

There are no specific flooding or drainage issues associated with this application, and the
proposal would not alter the development in terms of drainage or flood risk.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

The proposal would result in no additional impacts on noise or air quality over those
considered within the original grant of planning permission (Ref:3507/APP/2013/2327).
Comments on Public Consultations

No comments were received as a result of the public consultation.
Planning Obligations

The original grant of planning permission secured the following planning obligations by
way of a legal agreement:

i) Transport: All on site and off site highways works as a result of this proposal, including
improvements to the site access.

(i) Education: The applicant provides a financial contribution of £176,170 towards school
places in the area, commensurate with the estimated child yield of the development

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 27



(iii) Health: The applicant provides a financial contribution of £23,068.85 towards health
care in the area

(iv) Libraries: The applicant provides a financial contribution of £2,448.81 towards library
provision in the area

(v) Construction Training: Either a construction training scheme delivered during

the construction phase of the development or a financial contribution of £35,000

(vi) Air Quality: The applicant provides a financial contribution in the sum of £12,500.

(vii) Community Facilities/Public Realm, including towpath improvements: The applicant
provides a financial contribution of £50,000

(vii) Affordable Housing review mechanism

(viii) Project Management and Monitoring Fee: a contribution equal to 5% of the total cash
contribution to enable the management and monitoring of the resulting agreement.

Subject to a legal agreement to ensure that these matters are delivered in relation to this
application, the proposal would adequately mitigate the impacts of the development and
would accord with Policy R17 of the the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and the Planning Obligations SPD.

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

There are no enforcement issues associated with this site.
7.22 Other Issues

There are no other issues relating to this application.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and
use of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to
the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and
also the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 28



to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure
Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality
of opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks minor material amendments to the planning permission which was
granted on 17-01-14. The amendments would not result in any adverse impacts on the
character of the area, the amenity of neighbouring residents or future occupiers of the
development. Furthermore, the development would maintain compliance with all other
policies as secured under the original permission.

Subject to appropriate conditions and a legal agreement, the application is recommended
for approval.

11. Reference Documents

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (8th November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

London Plan 2011

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

The Greater London Authority Sustainable Design and Construction (2006)
Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Council's Supplementary Planning Document - Air Quality

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Accessible Hillingdon (January 2010)

Contact Officer: Karl Dafe Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 29



Yiewsley
Health
/I Centre

—

“ Crusader

‘ House_ o

n

MP 13.25

Bignell House

_ —

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2014 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

26-36 Horton Road

Yiewsley

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services

Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
3507/APP/2014/2724 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
Major Page 30 | October 2014

LONDON




Agenda ltem 7

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address UNIT 3, THE ARGENT CENTRE PUMP LANE HAYES

Development: Change of use from cellular radio telephone exchange (sui generis) to
wholesale (Class B8 - storage and distribution) and creation of mezzanine
floor providing ancillary storage and office space.

LBH Ref Nos: 46218/APP/2014/2186

Drawing Nos: Addendum to Planning Statement dated 21/7/14
BSPEC/-/PL/C
BSPEC/-/EE/A
BSPEC/-/PE/B
BSPEC/-/SP/A (Location Plan)
BSPEC/-/SP/A (Site Plan)
Planning Statement V3 18-06-14
Transport Statement (M942-01) Final June 2014
Unit 3 Argent Centre Acoustic Report (as amended).
BSPEC/00-01/DL/A
Sustainability Statement

Date Plans Received:  20/06/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 21/07/2014
1. SUMMARY

This proposal is for the change of use of a vacant unit located within the Pump Lane
Industrial and Business Area (IBA) from a former telephone exchange (sui generis) to a
storage and distribution warehouse (Class B8) for a trade only wholesaler of air
conditioning and refrigeration equipment. The proposal also involves the installation of a
122sgm mezzanine. A trade counter would also be provided at the rear of the unit
accessed through re-positioned double doors.

The proposed use would revert back to one of the uses for which the Argent Centre was
originally built and is acceptable in principle within an IBA. The Council's Highway
Engineer advises that the retained parking and servicing facilities are acceptable to serve
the proposed use and additional mezzanine floor space. The proposed external works to
the building with the re-positioning of the doors on the rear elevation would not have any
significant impact on the building's appearance. Furthermore, there are no surrounding
residential occupiers that would be affected by the change of use and the proposal does
not raise any accessibility, sustainability or flooding issues. The scheme would not
generate the need for any S106 contributions, although the additional mezzanine floor
space would be Mayoral and Council CIL liable.

The application is recommended for approval.
2, RECOMMENDATION

Approval, subject to no additional consultation responses being received which
raise new material planning considerations that have not been considered in the
officer's report.

1 COM3 Time Limit

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 31



The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 COoM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers BSPEC/-/SP/A,
BSPEC/-/PL/C and BSPEC/-/PE/B and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as
long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

3 NONSC Materials (Matching)

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building.

REASON

To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed
development does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing
building in accordance with Policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

4 COM11 Restrictions on Changes of Uses (Part 3, Sch. 2 GPDO 1995

Notwithstanding the provisions of Part 3, Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting
that Order with or without modification), the building(s) shall be used only for purposes
within Use Classes B8 of the Schedule to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes)
Order 1987 (as amended).

REASON

To enable the Local Planning Authority to assess all the implications of the development
and to ensure that adequate parking and loading facilities can be provided on the site, in
accordance with Policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012).

5 COM13 Restrictions - Enlargement of Industrial/Warehouse Buildings
Notwithstanding the provisions of Part 8, Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting

that Order with or without modification), the building(s) shall not be extended without the
prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To enable the Local Planning Authority to assess all the implications of the development
and to ensure that adequate parking and loading facilities can be provided on the site, in
accordance with Policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012).

6 COM14 No additional internal floorspace
Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 55 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 32



(or any others revoking and re-enacting this provision with or without modification), no
additional internal floorspace shall be created in excess of that area expressly authorised
by this permission.

REASON

To enable the Local Planning Authority to assess all the implications of the development
and to ensure that adequate parking and loading facilities can be provided on the site, in
accordance with Policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012).

7 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The development shall not be occupied until details for the covered and secure storage
of 5 cycle parking spaces have been be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA.
Thereafter, the proposed cycle parking shall be provided before occupation and
maintained and retained at all times for the use of the development.

REASON

To ensure that appropropriate provision is made for cycle parking in accordance with
Policy AM9 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

8 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Before occupation, details of covered and secure facilities to be provided for the
screened storage of refuse bins and recycling materials within the site shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved details shall
thereafter be retained and maintained for the life of the development.

REASON

To ensure a satisfactory appearance and in the interests of the amenities of the
occupiers and adjoining residents, in accordance with Policy OE3 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

LPP 4.4 (2011) Managing Industrial Land & Premises

LPP 6.3 (2011) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

LPP 6.5 (2011) Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport
infrastructure

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 33



LPP 6.9 (2011) Cycling

LPP 6.13 (2011) Parking
OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures
LE1 Proposals for industry, warehousing and business development
LE2 Development in designated Industrial and Business Areas
LE7 Provision of planning benefits from industry, warehousing and
business development
AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
3 125 Consent for the Display of Adverts and llluminated Signs

This permission does not authorise the display of advertisements or signs, separate
consent for which may be required under the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) Regulations 1992. [To display an advertisement without the necessary
consent is an offence that can lead to prosecution]. For further information and advice,
contact - Residents Services, 3N/04, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.
01895 250574).

4

You are advised that the development hereby approved represents chargeable
development under the Local and the Mayoral Community Infrastructure Levy. At this
time the Community Infrastructure Levy is estimated to be £610.00 and £4,538.07,
respectively, which is due on commencement of this development. The actual
Community Infrastructure Levy will be calculated at the time your development is first
permitted and a separate liability notice will be issued by the Local Planning Authority.
Should you require further information please refer to the Council's Website
www.hillingdon.gov.uk/index.jsp?articleid=24738

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1  Site and Locality

The Argent Centre is located on the southern side of Pump Lane, to the west of its
junction with Silverdale Road which also turns west to wrap around the southern side of
the estate. It dates from the 1980s and comprises two storey, shallow pitched roof
industrial/warehouse buildings containing 10 units grouped around a central servicing area
accessed from Silverdale Road to the east. The building fronting Pump Lane comprises
Units 1 to 3, with Unit 3 forming the corner plot at the eastern end of the building. Small
car parking areas are provided at the front of these units, adjacent to their main
entrances, with additional car parking / servicing areas at the rear, accessed from the
central service road. Units 2 and 3 are currently vacant although they were previously
used by Vodaphone (until March 2013), mainly providing a telephone exchange on the
ground floor with ancillary office space on the first floor. Unit 1 is in use as a discount
supermarket (B & M Stores), although the range of goods that can be sold has been

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 34



restricted.

The Argent Centre is generally surrounded to the east, south and west by similar
industrial/ warehouse/ commercial units. To the east, on the opposite side of Silverdale
Road is the Trinity Trading Estate whereas to the west, the Argent Centre is adjoined by a
Matalan store which has a frontage onto Pump Lane. On the opposite side of Pump Lane
is Silverdale House, a vacant industrial/commercial building, an overspill car park
providing 49 spaces for the Argent Centre and a working men's club, to the north of which
is a residential area.

The site has a PTAL score of 2 and is located within the Pump Lane Industrial and
Business Area and forms part of the Hayes/West Drayton corridor.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal is to change the use of Unit 3 from a cellular radio telephone exchange (sui
generis) to storage and distribution (Class B8) and installation of a mezzanine floor. The
proposal would allow use of the premises by Kooltech, a trade only wholesaler of air
conditioning and refrigeration equipment. There would be no sales to the general public.
The mezzanine floor would be 6.6m wide and 18.4m long and extend the existing first
floor area which runs along the front and side of the premises, increasing the 1,020sqm
gross floor area of the current unit by 122sqm. The only other works would involve the
creation of an internal ground floor office area at the rear of the unit which would also
accommodate a trade counter. The only external works would be the re-siting of a pair of
double doors on the rear elevation which would serve the office/trade counter.

The ground floor would mainly be used for stock storage with the first floor and mezzanine
being used for the administration of the business. Up to 10 - 12 branch staff would be
based at the site with around a further 6 external sales staff visiting the site from time to
time. Staff would mainly enter the building via the front entrance, with the trade counter
accessed at the rear. Current proposed hours of operation are 08:00 to 17:00 weekdays,
with a possible extension to 06:00 to 20:00 in the future.

There are a total of 11 car parking spaces serving the site, 6 staff spaces at the front and
5 spaces at the rear including a single disabled space and a loading area. A 49 space
overspill car park in the ownership of the applicant is also available to the Argent Centre
on the opposite side of Pump Lane.

The application is supported by the following documents:-
Planning Statement, June 2014:

This provides an introduction to the proposal and goes on to describe the site and
surroundings. Relevant planning history is assessed and the proposals are described. The
statement goes on to evaluate relevant national, strategic and local planning policy and
then assesses the key planning issues associated with the development. The statement
concludes that the proposal will bring a vacant industrial unit within an IBA back into
commercial use which would be fully compliant with relevant policy. Furthermore, it
advises that the submitted documents demonstrate that the proposal would not generate
any adverse highway impacts and is acceptable in terms of noise issues and that the
energy efficieny of the building would be improved and that therefore, planning permission
should be approved.

Transport Statement, June 2014 (as amended by Argent Consulting Engineers letter

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 35



dated 21/7/14:

This provides an introduction to the study and describes the existing site, the surrounding
highway and the proposals. Trip generation between the previous and proposed uses is
then assessed and the report concludes that in the absense of historical data for the
telephone exchange, even taking a worse case scenario which assumes this use did not
generate any peak hour trips and a general B8 use, the predicted increase in vehicle trip
attraction during weekday peak hours for the proposed B8 use, together with the
additional mezzanine floorspace is not significant and no further assessment is necessary.
As such, no objection should be raised to the proposal on transport grounds.

Noise Assessment, June 2014:

This provides an introduction to the study, describes the site and relevant national noise
assessment criteria and practice. Results of a noise measurement survey are presented.
The report concludes that the proposed change of use will not increase daytime ambient
noise levels and that no adverse effect will arise from the proposal and its noise impact is
considered to be insignificant.

Sustainability Statement, dated 17/6/14:

This provides the background to the study, describes the site and assesses relevant
policy. The report advises that this is a sustainable location for the proposal, being close
to major roads and Hayes and Harlington Station. From an environmental perspective, the
re-use of existing buildings makes sense, as it avoids the need for new development with
construction based environmental impacts, including their embodied carbon emissions.
The report goes on to identify indicative energy demands and suggests possible short,
medium and long term energy improvements for the building. However, as this is a
change of use application, energy improvements are not required although, this may be
possible in the future, particularly as part of a wider plant replacement schedule, where a
business case can be made for alternative energy systems, including renewables.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History

Planning permission for the redevelopment of the site to provide 10 industrial/warehouse
units with ancillary floorspace, parking and loading/unloading facilities was initially
approved on 2/8/84 (App. No. 2625AF/84/946 refers). Subsequently, planning permission
was granted on 20/1/87 to change the use of unit 3 from industrial/warehouse to cellular
radio telephone exchange and regional telephone sales centre (App. No. 39478/86/2099
refers).

An application has also been submitted for the change of use of part of Unit 2 from
telephone exchange (sui generis) to Use Class A1 (Shops) for use as a furniture store
involving internal alterations and alterations to front facade and installation of fencing
(App. No. 36726/APP/2014/1247 refers), although to date, no decision has been made.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 36



The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.E1 (2012) Managing the Supply of Employment Land
PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

PT1.EM1 (2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation
PT1.EM8 (2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

Part 2 Policies:

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

LPP 4.4 (2011) Managing Industrial Land & Premises

LPP 6.3 (2011) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

LPP 6.5 (2011) Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport infrastructure

LPP 6.9 (2011) Cycling

LPP 6.13 (2011) Parking

OEA1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

LE1 Proposals for industry, warehousing and business development

LE2 Development in designated Industrial and Business Areas

LE7 Provision of planning benefits from industry, warehousing and business
development

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 28th August 2014

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

16 neighbouring properties have been consulted on the application, the latest consultation period of
which expires on 8/10/14, a site notice was been displayed on site on 7/8/14 (Closing date:
28/8/14) and the application was advertised in the local press on 13/8/14. No responses have been
received to date.

Any additional responses will be reported via the addendum.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 37



Internal Consultees
HIGHWAY ENGINEER:

The development is for the change of use from a cellular radio telephone exchange (sui generis) to
a storage and distribution use (Use Class B8) at the site. As part of the proposals, a mezzanine
floor will be constructed within the existing building that will provide ancillary storage and office
space.

There are no proposals to provide additional car parking within the site. However, the existing
parking provision of 11 spaces will be retained for the use of the development. In addition, the
development will have the use of an existing shared overspill car park, which is located adjacent to
the site and is under the control of the applicant. There are no proposals to provide additional cycle
parking.

When reviewing the Transport Statement (TS) submitted in support of the development, an
assessment of the likely trip generation has been undertaken using the TRICS Database. However,
not all of the selected sample sites are considered representative due to their location and size.
Nevertheless, it is considered that the trip generation associated with the proposals would not have
a material impact along the adjacent highway network. In addition, an assessment of the adjacent
overspill car park has been undertaken based on a parking survey, which has demonstrated that
there is available parking capacity.

When assessing the PTAL index within the adjacent area, this has been identified as 3, which is
classified as moderate. Furthermore, it is noted that the site is located within the recommended
walking distances (as stated by Transport for London) to all public transport facilities, including
Hayes and Harlington Rail Station. As a result, and notwithstanding the availability of the existing
overspill car park, it is considered that the onsite car parking provision is acceptable to meet the
needs of the development.

Therefore, subject to the details below being provided under a suitably worded planning
condition/S106 Agreement, it is considered that he development would not be contrary to the
policies of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan, 2012, (Part 2).

Conditions/S106.

The development shall not be occupied until details of 5 cycle parking spaces have been be
submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA. Thereafter, the proposed cycle parking shall be
provided before occupation and maintained and retained at all times for the use of the
development.

ACCESS OFFICER:

| have considered the detail of this planning application and deem there to be no accessibility
issues raised by the proposal.

SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER:
| have no objections to this development.
FLOOD AND WATER MANAGEMENT OFFICER:

The site is outside flood zones 3 and 2 therefore there are no commments for a change of use.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 38



7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

7.09

710

The principle of the development

The proposed change of use from a telephone exchange (sui generis) to a storage and
distribution use (Class B8) fully complies with Policy LE2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) which designates Industrial and Business
Areas for business, industrial and warehousing purposes (Use Classes B1 - B8) and
seeks to promote and protect such industrial/warehousing uses in these areas. As such,
there is no objection in principle to the application.

Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this commercial development.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this proposal for a change of use and mezzanine floor.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this proposed development.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this proposed development.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The proposed use is appropriate within this IBA.

The re-siting of a double door on the rear elevation of the building would not have a
material impact upon its appearance.
Impact on neighbours

There are no residential properties in the vicinity of the application site that would be
affected by the proposed change of use which is also compatible with its
industrial/commercial neighbours.

Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this development.
Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policies AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) advise respectively that proposals for development will be assessed
against their contribution to traffic generation and impact on congestion, having regard to
the present and potential capacity of public transport and that the traffic generated by
proposed developments would need to be accommodated on principal roads without
increasing demand along roads or at junctions already used to capacity, not prejudice the
free flow of traffic, nor diminish environmental benefits brought about by other road
improvement schemes or infiltrate local roads. Policy AM9 supports cycle provision,
including the need for cycle storage provision within development schemes and Policy
AM14 advises that development should accord with adopted car parking standards.

The application site is located reasonably close to Hayes town centre and is within walking
distances of all its public transport facilities, including Hayes and Harlington Rail Station.
Although the site does have a PTAL score of 2, it does lie adjacent to an area with a
PTAL score of 3.

The proposals would retain the existing 11 car parking spaces, including a disabled
space, that currently serve the unit.

The application is supported by a Transport Statement. The Council's Highway Engineer
has reviewed the document and advises that despite some of the selected sample sites
not being representative of this site due to their size and location, the trip generation

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



7.1

712

713

714

715

7.16

717

7.18

associated with the proposal would not have a material impact on the adjacent highway
network. Also, the Transport Statement, based upon a parking survey, demonstrates that
the overspill car park on the opposite side of Pump Lane has spare parking capacity.

The proposal would revert the unit back to the use for which it was originally planned and
built and with 11 car parking spaces, it would have satisfied the Council's car parking
standards in place at that time. Currently, the most relevant parking standards are found
within the London Plan (July 2011) which identifies an appropriate parking provision
ranging from 2 to 12 spaces. The Highway Engineer advises that notwithstanding the
availability of the existing overspill car park, given the PTAL scores and availability of
public transport in the area, the existing onsite car parking provision is acceptable to meet
the needs of the development.

The Highway Engineer does recommend a condition to ensure that details of 5 cycle
parking spaces are provided, which would accord with the cycle parking standards of the
London Plan (July 2011).

With the recommended imposition of the is condition, the proposal is considered to
comply with Policies AM2, AM7, AM9 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Urban design, access and security

Relevant planning issues have been considered elsewhere in this report.
Disabled access

The Council's Access Officer advises that no accessibility issues are raised by the
proposal.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this commercial development.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Not applicable to this development for a proposed change of use.
Sustainable waste management

The proposed change of use from a telephone exchange to a storage and distribution
warehouse could potentially give rise to a greater generation of waste and recycling
material. Although no specific storage provision is indicated on the submitted plans,
suitable space is available within the rear service yard and a condition has been added to
ensure that suitable covered and screened provision is made for waste and recycled
material.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

The measures suggested in the Energy and Sustainability Assessment to minimise
energy consumption are welcomed. However, as no physical changes to the building are
proposed and the proposed change of use is unlikely to have any implications for energy
demand at the site as compared to the existing use, no conditions are recommended.

The Council's Sustainability Officer has assessed the change of use application and the
submitted Sustainability Statement and advises that there are no objections to the
proposal and in this case, there is no requirement for the imposition of energy efficiency
conditions.

Flooding or Drainage Issues

The Council's Water and Flood Management Officer advises that the site is not prone to
flooding and therefore the proposed change of use does not raise any flooding issues.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 40



7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Noise

The nearest residential property to the site is located on Copperdale Road, some 56m to
the north of the site and separated from the site by Pump Lane and the overspill car park.
The application is accompanied by a Noise Assessment which demonstrates that the
noise likely to be generated by the proposed Class B8 storage and distribution use, when
compared with the existing daytime noise levels, would not increase ambient noise levels
within the IBA. As such, the proposal would not result in any adverse impacts upon nearby
business or surrounding residential dwellings.

Air Quality

The proposal does not involve any increase in car parking on site and the mezzanine
would be used to provide additional ancillary administrative floor space. As such, the
proposals would not generate any significant adverse impacts for air quality.

Comments on Public Consultations

No public comments have been received.
Planning obligations

Due to the nature of the proposed development and previous use of the unit, the proposal
does not generate a requirement for a S106 contribution, however, the additional B8
floorspace created by the proposal would be Mayoral and Council CIL liable.

Expediency of enforcement action

No enforcement issues are raised by this site.
Other Issues

No other planning issues are raised by this application.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and
use of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to
the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and
also the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 41



Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related
to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure
Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality
of opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

The proposed change of use for a distributiion warehouse would revert the use of this unit
back to one of the uses for which the Argent Centre was originally built.

No objections are raised to this use within an IBA and the proposals, including the
installation of a 122sqm mezzanine is acceptable in planning terms.

The application is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)

Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014)

London Plan (July 2011)

Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan SPD: Accessible Hillingdon, May 2013
Consultation Responses

Contact Officer: Richard Phillips Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 42



Superstore

s ’
. ' ’
g [ (

AN -~

The Argent Centre

Silverdale
House

S Pro
Indust

Peter James
/R Business Centre
/ s

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2014 Ordnance Survey
100019283

g \7 ’T
[l 1
6
LT A R e rr S R
oy Ty e
ROAD e
\\
El Sub Sta

Notes Site Address

Unit 3, The Argent Centre

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services

Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Pump Lane
Hayes
Planning Application Ref: Scale
46218/APP/2014/2186 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
Major Page 43 | October 2014

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



Agenda Iltem 8

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address RYEFIELD HOUSE RYEFIELD AVENUE HILLINGDON

Development: Amendment to condition 3 of planning permission 11838/APP/2013/2650
dated 31/12/2013 to amend the approved plans to adjust external openings,
reconfigure the internal layout and alter the location, design and size of the
basement (S73 Application)

LBH Ref Nos: 11838/APP/2014/2350

Drawing Nos: 02

03

04

05

06

Planning Design Statement
LO1

01

Date Plans Received:  02/07/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 14/07/2014
1. SUMMARY

This application seeks consent for the amendment of condition 3 (approved drawings) of
planning permission 11838/APP/2013/2650 dated 31/12/2013, which granted consent for
the erection of a three storey 58-bed Care home for residents requiring nursing,
dementia and residential care with associated parking, landscaping and refuse/recycling
store. The amendments proposed are alterations to the window sizes and locations,
basement and internal layout of the building.

The scheme by reason of its acceptable design, scale and finish of the alterations
proposed, is not considered to have a detrimental impact on the character and
appearance of the building, nor the surrounding area. Further the proposed alterations
are considered acceptable in terms of their impact on the amenities of surrounding
occupiers and are not deemed to have an adverse effect on the approved parking layout
or surrounding highway network.

2. RECOMMENDATION

1. That the application be determined by the Head of Planning, Sport and Culture
under delegated powers, Subject to the completion of a Deed of Variation to the
legal agreement associated with planning permission 11838/APP/2013/2650 for the
following obligations:

i. Health: A contribution towards local health care facilities in the sum of £216.67
per person. Given that there are 58 beds proposed in this scheme and basing the
calculation on one person per bedroom the level of the contribution will be in the
sum of £12,566.86.

ii. Construction Training: A construction training contribution will be sought equal
to £2,500 for every £1 million build cost.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 45



iii. Libraries: £1,334 as contribution towards the local library.

iv. Project Management and Monitoring Fee: in line with the Planning Obligations
SPD a contribution equal to 5% of the total cash contributions is required to
enable the management and monitoring of the resulting agreement.

B) That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Council's reasonable costs in preparation of the Section 106 and 278
Agreements and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being
completed.

C) That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement and conditions of approval.

D) If the Legal Agreement/s have not been finalised by the 13th October 2014,
delegated authority be given to the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture to
refuse planning permission for the following reason:

'The applicant has failed to deliver necessary offsite highway works and to provide
contributions towards the improvement of services and facilities as a
consequence of demands created by the proposed development (in respect of
healthcare, construction training and libraries. The proposal therefore conflicts
with Policy AM2, AM7 and R17 of the adopted Local Plan and the Council's
Planning Obligations SPG.’

E) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be imposed subject
to any changes negotiated by the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture
prior to issuing the decision:

1 T8 Time Limit - full planning application 3 years
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 31st December 2016

REASON
To comply with Section 73 and 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and the
terms and conditions of planning application 11838/APP/2013/2650.

2 RCU2 Use Within Same Use Class

The premises shall be used for a Care Home or Nursing Home and for no other purpose
(including any other purpose in Class C2 of the Schedule to the Town and Country
Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987).

REASON

To ensure an adequate level of amenity and parking provision for future occupiers and
neighbouring properties in accordance with Policies BE24, AM7 and AM14 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

3 OM1 Development in accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans referenced below and shall
thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence:

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 46



Location Plan
A102 01
A102 02
A102 03
A102 04
A102 05
A102 06

REASON
To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

4 M1 Details/Samples to be Submitted

No development shall take place until details and/or samples of all materials, colours and
finishes to be used on all external surfaces have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

5 OoM2 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in
accordance with policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

6 OM14 Secured by Design

The development hereby approved shall incorporate measures to minimise the risk of
crime, including CCTV, and to meet the specific security needs of the application site and
the development. Details of security measures shall be submitted and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority prior to the occupation of the development. Any security
measures to be implemented in compliance with this condition shall reach the standard
necessary to achieve the 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the
Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO).

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with policies 7.1 and 7.3 of the London Plan (July 2011).

7 H7 Parking Arrangements (Residential)

The parking areas (including the marking out of parking spaces) shown on the approved
plans, shall be constructed, designated and allocated for the sole use of the occupants

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 47



prior to the occupation of the development and thereafter be permanently retained and
used for no other purpose.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).
and Chapter 3C of the London Plan (July 2011).

8 H14 Cycle Storage - details to be submitted

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until details of 12 covered
and secure cycle storage for users of and visitors to the development have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development
shall not be occupied or brought into use until the approved cycling facilities have been
implemented in accordance with the approved plan, with the facilities being permanently
retained for use by cyclists.

REASON

To ensure the provision and retention of facilities for cyclists to the development and
hence the availability of sustainable forms of transport to the site in accordance with
Policy AM9 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London
Plan (July 2011).

9 MCD10 Refuse Facilities

Prior to the occupation of the development, details of facilities to be provided for the
covered, appropriately sign posted, secure and screened storage of refuse and recycling
waste at the premises have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. No part of the development shall be occupied until the facilities have
been provided in accordance with the approved details and thereafter the facilities shall
be permanently retained.

REASON
In order to safeguard the amenities of the area, in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012). and London Plan (February 2008) Policy 4B.1.

10 TLA1 Existing Trees - Survey

Prior to the commencement of development, an accurate survey plan at a scale of not
less than 1:200 shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The plan must show:-

(i) Existing and proposed site levels.

(ii) Routes of any existing or proposed underground works and overhead lines including
their manner of construction.

REASON

To enable the Local Planning Authority to assess the amenity value of existing trees,
hedges and shrubs and the impact of the proposed development on them and to ensure
that the development conforms with Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November
2012).

1 TL3 Protection of trees during site clearance and development

Prior to the commencement of any site clearance or construction work, detailed drawings
showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root areas/crown spread of
trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or development shall be

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 48



commenced until these drawings have been approved and the fencing has been erected
in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height of 1.5 metres. The fencing
shall be retained in position until development is completed. The area within the
approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the course of the works and
in particular in these areas:

1. There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2. No materials or plant shall be stored;

3. No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

4. No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

5. No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation to be retained are not damaged during
construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with policy BE38 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

12 TL5 Landscaping Scheme

Prior to the commencement of development, a landscape scheme providing full details of
hard and soft landscaping works has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved. The scheme
shall include: -

- Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

- Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

- Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate,

- Implementation programme.

The scheme shall also include details of the following: -

- Proposed finishing levels or contours,

- Means of enclosure,

- Car parking layouts,

- Other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas,

- Hard surfacing materials proposed,

- Minor artefacts and structures (such as play equipment, furniture, refuse storage, signs,
or lighting),

- Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground (e.g. drainage,
power cables or communications equipment, indicating lines, manholes or associated
structures),

- Retained historic landscape features and proposals for their restoration where relevant.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality in compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November
2012).

13 TL6 Landscaping Scheme - implementation

All hard and soft landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
landscaping scheme and shall be completed within the first planting and seeding
seasons following the completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings,
whichever is the earlier period. The new planting and landscape operations should
comply with the requirements specified in BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1,
Specification for Trees and Shrubs' and in BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 49



Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. Thereafter, the areas of hard and soft
landscaping shall be permanently retained.

Any tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding shown on the approved landscaping scheme
which within a period of 5 years from the completion of development dies, is removed or
in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes seriously damaged or diseased
shall be replaced in the same place or, if planting in the same place would leave the new
tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a position to
be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority in the next planting season
with another such tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding of similar size and species
unless the Local Planning Authority first gives written consent to any variation.

REASON

To ensure that the landscaped areas are laid out and retained in accordance with the
approved plans in order to preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the locality in
compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

14 TL7 Maintenance of Landscaped Areas

Prior to the occupation of the development, a schedule of landscape maintenance for a
minimum period of 5 years shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme shall include details of the arrangements for its
implementation. Maintenance shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
schedule.

REASON
To ensure that the approved landscaping is properly maintained in accordance with
policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

15 M3 Boundary treatment - details

No part of the development shall be occupied until there has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, a plan indicating the positions,
design, materials and type of boundary treatment to be erected. The boundary treatment
shall be completed before the building is occupied or in accordance with a timetable
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To safeguard the visual amenities of the area in accordance with Policy BE13 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

16 NON2 plant noise

The rating level of noise emitted from any plant and/or machinery at the development
shall be at least 5 dB below the existing background noise level. The noise levels shall be
determined at the nearest residential property. The measurements and assessment shall
be made in accordance with British Standard 4142 'Method for rating industrial noise
affecting mixed residential and industrial areas'.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE3 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

17 DRC6 Contaminated Land - survey and remedial works

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 50



Development shall not begin until a site survey to assess contamination levels has been
carried out to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. The survey shall be
undertaken at such points and to such depth as the Local Planning Authority may
stipulate. A scheme for removing or rendering innocuous all contaminants from the site
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and all
works that form part of this scheme shall be completed before any part of the
development is occupied.

REASON

To ensure that the occupants of the development are not subjected to any risks from soil
contamination in accordance with Policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November
2012). and Policy 5.21 of the London Plan (July 2011).

18 SUS5S Sustainable Urban Drainage

No development shall take place on site until details of the incorporation of sustainable
urban drainage have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved details shall thereafter be installed on site and thereafter
permanently retained and maintained.

REASON

To ensure that surface water run off is handled as close to its source as possible/if
appropriate/ and to ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding
contrary to Policy OE8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) and policy 5.12 of
the London Plan (July 2011).

19 H1 Traffic Arrangements - submission of details

No part of the development hereby approved, shall be occupied until details of all traffic
arrangements, including provision of emergency vehicle parking have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved development
shall not be occupied until all such works have been constructed in accordance with the
approved details. Thereafter, the parking areas, sight lines, visibility splays and loading
areas must be permanently retained and used for no other purpose at any time. Disabled
parking bays shall be a minimum of 4.8m long by 3.6m wide, or at least 3.0m wide where
two adjacent bays may share an unloading area.

REASON

To ensure pedestrian and vehicular safety and convenience and to ensure adequate off-
street parking, and loading facilities in compliance with Policy AM14 of the adopted
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012). and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (July 2011).

20 MCD13 Extraction Vent or Chimney

No air extraction system shall be used on the premises until a scheme which specifies
the provisions to be made for the control of noise and odour emanating from the site or to
other parts of the building, has been submitted to, and approved by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall include such combination of measures as may be approved
by the LPA. The said scheme and all of it endures for use and that any and all
constituent parts are repaired and maintained and replaced in whole or in part so often
as occasion may require.

REASON
In order to safeguard the amenities of adjoining properties in accordance with Policy OE1
of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) and London Plan (July 2011) Policies 7.1
and 7.14.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 51



21 NONSC Imported soils

All soils used for gardens and landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of
contamination. Site derived soils and imported soils shall be inspected and tested for
chemical contamination, and the results of this testing shall be submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that the occupants of the development are not subject to any risks from soil
contamination in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November
2012).

22 NONSC plant/machinary

No plant and/or machinery including flues and kitchen extraction equipment shall be used
on the premises until a scheme which specifies the provisions to be made for the control
of noise emanating from the site or to other parts of the building, has been submitted to,
and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include such
combination of measures as may be approved by the LPA. The said scheme shall
include such secure provision as will ensure that the said scheme and all of it endures for
use and that any and all constituent parts are repaired and maintained and replaced in
whole or in part so often as occasion may require.

REASON
In order to safeguard the amenities of adjoining properties in accordance with Policy OE1
of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) and London Plan (July 2011) Policies 7.1
and 7.14.

23 NONSC Deliveries

Deliveries and collections, including waste collections, shall be restricted to the following
hours: 0800 hrs to 1800 hrs Monday to Friday, the hours of 0800hrs to 1300 hrs on
Saturdays. No deliveries or collections shall take place on Sundays, public and bank
Holidays.

REASON
In order to safeguard the amenities of adjoining properties in accordance with Policy OE1
of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) and London Plan (July 2011) Policies 7.1
and 7.14.

24 NONSC en-suite bathrooms

Prior to the occupation of the development, details showing access to all rooms by wheel
chair users and electric wheel chair charging points, as well as ensuite bathrooms to the
accessible bedrooms designed in accordance with BS 8300:2009 shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved details shall there
after been implemented prior to occupation into the scheme and thereafter permanently
retained.

Reason

To ensure that adequate facilities are provided for people with disabilities in accordance
with Policy AM13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) and London Plan
(February 2008) Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2.

25 NONSC Energy

Prior to the commencement of development a detailed energy assessment shall be
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The assessment shall clearly

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 52



demonstrate how a 20% reduction in CO2 emissions can be achieved from any proposed
renewable technologies. The development shall proceed in accordance with the
approved assessment unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with London Plan (July 2011) Policy 5.1 and 5.4.

26 NONSC Travel Plan

Prior to the occupation of the development, a scheme shall be submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority detailing how a 10 year Travel Plan
to meet the needs of the proposed development will be provided. The approved Travel
Plan shall then be implemented in accordance with the agreed scheme.

REASON
To promote the use of sustainable means of transport and to accord with Policy AM7 of
the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

27 NONSC Parking Management Plan

Prior to the occupation of the development, a car parking management strategy,
including provision of emergency vehicle parking, which seeks to ensure that the
development does not result in any on street parking in neighbouring streets, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved
details shall then be implemented for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure that an adequate level of parking provision is provided for the proposed use
and to prevent inappropriate parking of vehicles associated with the use hereby approved
in surrounding streets, and to accord with policy AM7 and AM14 of the adopted
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012)).

28 SUS8 Electric Charging Points

Prior to the occupation of the development, plans and details of 1 electric vehicle
charging point, serving the development and capable of charging multiple vehicles
simultaneously, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

REASON
To encourage sustainable travel and to comply with London Plan (July 2011) Policy 5.3.
29 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no antenna, masts,
poles, satellite dishes or the like shall be erected atop any of the buildings here by
approved.

REASON
To ensure that apparatus do not detract from the visual amenities of the area in
accordance with Policy BE37 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012)

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)
The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 53



planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national

guidance.
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety
BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.
BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
H10 Proposals for hostels or other accommodation for people in need of
care
LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010
LPP 5.1 (2011) Climate Change Mitigation
LPP 5.12 (2011) Flood risk management
LPP 5.13 (2011) Sustainable drainage
LPP 5.2 (2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
LPP 5.7 (2011) Renewable energy
LPP 5.8 (2011) Innovative energy technologies
LPP 6.13 (2011) Parking
LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
3 11 Building to Approved Drawing

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

4 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by
either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will
have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 54



in any form of encroachment.

5 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

6 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not
empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the
owner. If you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

7 17 Design Guidance - Reserved Matters

You are advised to consult the Council's Design Guides for guidance on matters of
design and layout prior to submitting details of reserved matters. These are available
from the Planning & Community Services Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre,
Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

8 110 lllustrative Drawings

You are reminded that the drawings submitted with the application are for illustrative
purposes only and do not form part of the application for which permission is hereby
granted.

9 111 The Construction (Design and Management) Regulations
1994

The development hereby approved may be subject to the Construction (Design and
Management) Regulations 1994, which govern health and safety through all stages of a
construction project. The regulations require clients (ie. those, including developers, who
commision construction projects) to appoint a planning supervisor and principal
contractor who are competent and adequately resourced to carry out their health and
safety responsibilities. Further information is available from the Health and Safety
Executive, Rose Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS (telephone 020
7556 2100).

10 112 Notification to Building Contractors

The applicant/developer should ensure that the site constructor receives copies of all
drawings approved and conditions/informatives attached to this planning permission.
During building construction the name, address and telephone number of the contractor
(including an emergency telephone number) should be clearly displayed on a hoarding
visible from outside the site.

11 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 55



should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank and
Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public health
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

12 116 Directional Signage

You are advised that any directional signage on the highway is unlawful. Prior consent
from the Council's Street Management Section is required if the developer wishes to
erect directional signage on any highway under the control of the Council.

13 118 Storage and Collection of Refuse

The Council's Waste Service should be consulted about refuse storage and collection
arrangements. Details of proposals should be included on submitted plans.

For further information and advice, contact - the Waste Service Manager, Central Depot -
Block A, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB8 3EU
(Tel. 01895 277505 / 506).

14 119 Sewerage Connections, Water Pollution etc.

You should contact Thames Water Utilities and the Council's Building Control Service
regarding any proposed connection to a public sewer or any other possible impact that
the development could have on local foul or surface water sewers, including building over
a public sewer. Contact: - The Waste Water Business Manager, Thames Water Utilities
plc, Kew Business Centre, Kew Bridge Road, Brentford, Middlesex, TW8 OEE.

Building Control Service - 3N/01, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (tel.
01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

15 120 Land Drainage

You are advised that, pursuant to the Land Drainage Act 1976, details of any works
affecting the beds, banks and flow of the river, including details of any outfall structures
discharging into the watercourse, should be submitted to the Environment Agency,
Planning Liaison Officer, Thames Region, Howard House, 10/11 Albert Embankment,
London SE1 7TG.

16

The applicant is encouraged to discuss with Council officers in conjunction with the
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Officer whether on site CCTV cameras can be

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 56



linked to the Councils central CCTV system.

17 128 Food Hygiene

The Council's Commercial Premises Section should be consulted prior to the use of the
premises so as to ensure compliance with the Food Safety Registration Regulations
1990, Hygiene (General) Regulations 1970, The Food Act 1984, The Health and Safety
at Work Act 1974 and any other relevant legislation. Contact: - Commercial Premises
Section, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Telephone 01895
250190).

18
You are asked to consider installing a fire evacuation lift into the development.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site is located towards the south-eastern end of Ryefield Avenue and has an area of
approximately 0.27 ha. With the exception of a truncated northern corner, it is rectangular
in shape. It previously contained a part single storey, part two storey and part three storey
flat-roofed brick building operated as the Ryefield House Nursing Home but is now
cleared. There is an existing in/out drive to Ryefield Avenue.

The site is bounded to the north-west by two storey semi-detached houses in Ryefield
Avenue, to the north by the rear gardens of two storey flats fronting Floriston Avenue and
Lynhurst Crescent, to the north-east and south-east by the grounds of Ryefield Primary
school and to the south-west by two storey flats and semi-detached houses located on the
opposite side of Ryefield Avenue.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks consent for the amendment of condition 3 (approved drawings) of
planning permission 11838/APP/2013/2650 dated 31/12/2013, to allow for amendments to
the approved scheme.

This application granted consent for the erection of a three storey 58-bed Care home for
residents requiring nursing, dementia and residential care with associated parking,
landscaping and refuse/recycling store.

The following amendments to the approved scheme are proposed:

- Two storey extension on the northern elevation removed and new entrance lobby
created at ground floor level;

- Replacement of some of the windows on ground floor elevations with doors or full length
windows;

- Enlargement of the windows on all elevations and subsequent reduction in the total
number of windows;

- Windows added on the end of the eastern and northern elevations to serve the hallway;

- Alteration of the location, design and size of the basement, with the use of this space as
staff offices, rest room, changing area, main kitchen, plant room and stores. The lightwells
are proposed to be removed.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 57



11838/APP/2004/2478 Ryefield Residential Home Ryefield Avenue Hillingdon

ERECTION OF A THREE STOREY CARE HOME WITH ASSOCIATED PARKING
(INVOLVING DEMOLITION OF THE EXISTING BUILDING)

Decision: 09-11-2004  Refused Appeal: 12-05-2005 Allowed

11838/APP/2005/3481 Ryefield House Ryefield Avenue Hillingdon
ERECTION OF A THREE STOREY CARE HOME WITH ASSOCIATED PARKING
(INVOLVING DEMOLITION OF THE EXISTING BUILDING)

Decision: 06-06-2006  Approved

11838/APP/2010/1713 Ryefield House Ryefield Avenue Hillingdon

Erection of a three storey care home with associated parking.

Decision: 20-12-2010 Refused

11838/APP/2011/553 Ryefield House Ryefield Avenue Hillingdon

Erection of a three storey care home comprising 58 rooms with associated parking.

Decision: 27-10-2011  Approved

11838/APP/2013/2650 Ryefield House Ryefield Avenue Hillingdon

Section 73 Application for the Variation of Condition 2 and 3 of planning permission
11838/APP/2011/553 dated 1/12/2011 for the Erection of a three storey care home comprising
58 rooms with associated parking.

Decision: 12-12-2013  Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

11838/APP/2013/2650 - Consent granted for a section 73 application for the 'Variation of
Condition 2 and 3' of planning permission 11838/APP/2011/553 dated 1/12/2011 for the
erection of a three storey care home comprising 58 rooms with associated parking. This is
an extant consent which expires on the 31st December 2015.

11838/APP/2011/553 - Consent granted for the erection of a three storey care home
comprising 58 rooms with associated parking. This is an extant consent which expires on
the 1st December 2014.

11838/APP/2010/1713 - Consent refused for the erection of a three storey care home with
associated parking. This scheme was refused due to the failure to provide accessible
facilities for the elderly and disabled, absence of any renewable energy measures and
failure to provide a contribution towards the improvement of services and facilities.

11838/APP/2005/3481 - Consent granted for the erection of a three storey care home with
associated parking (involving the demolition of the existing building).

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 58



4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

H10 Proposals for hostels or other accommodation for people in need of care

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

LPP 5.1 (2011) Climate Change Mitigation

LPP 5.12 (2011) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2011) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.2 (2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

LPP 5.7 (2011) Renewable energy

LPP 5.8 (2011) Innovative energy technologies

LPP 6.13 (2011) Parking

LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 11th August 2014
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
6. Consultations

External Consultees

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 59



42 surrounding residents and Oak Farm Residents Association were notified of the application. No
objections were received from this consultation.

Councillor Wayne Bridges has requested that the application be referred to the planning committee
for determination.

Internal Consultees

CONSERVATION OFFICER

There are no objections in design terms to the changes proposed to the originally approved
scheme, in fact overall the elevational changes are felt to be a slight improvement on the design of
the previous scheme

ACCESS OFFICER
No concerns are raised from an accessibility standpoint.

FLOOD AND WATER MANAGEMENT OFFICER
No comments on the application.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The principle of redeveloping this site for a care home has been established through the
previous applications on the site. Specifically applications 11838/APP/2011/553 and
11838/APP/2013/2650, which are both extant consents for the use of the site for a
residential and nursing care home.

Given that both local and national policies have not changed significantly since the
granting of these permissions, and that they could both still be implemented on site, it is
considered that the principle of using this site for a care home is acceptable and no
objection is raised to such.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

This is not relevant to this type of development.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The site is not located in a designated area and does not contain any listed buildings.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

There are no safeguarding issues arising from the proposed developemnt.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

The site is not located in the Green Belt.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The scheme presented to the Council has acknowledged the site constraints and previous
consents, and acknowledges that the most suitable location for the building is as
approved scheme (11838/APP/2013/2650). The building will be located on the same lines
as the approved application L shaped building, with parking between the front elevation
and Ryefield Avenue.

The overall size, scale and design of the building is broadly similar to that proposed within
the approved schemes to which no objection is raised, however it is noted that there are a
number of changes proposed to the elevations of the building and location of the
basement. The main changes to the design of the building are as follows:

-Two storey extension on the northern elevation removed and new entrance lobby created
at ground floor level;
- Replacement of some of the windows on ground floor elevations with doors or full length

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 60



windows;

- Enlargement of the windows on all elevations and subsequent reduction in the total
number of windows;

- Windows added on the end of the eastern and northern elevations to serve the hallway;

- Basement location altered and removal of lightwells at ground level.

On consideration of the alterations proposed to the windows and doors, these changes
are considered to be of a design and scale appropriate to the character, appearance and
finish of the building. Further the enlargement of the windows helps to break up the
massing of the elevations of the building, and increase the amount of natural light to the
proposed rooms. Overall no objection is raised to this alteration.

Given the subterranean nature of the basement, its proposed use, and that the lightwells
associated with this are being removed, the basement would not appear highly prominent
within the street scene. The scale of the basement is considered appropriate to the size of
the site and overall, this aspect of the scheme is considered acceptable.

No objection is raised to the removal of the two storey element on the northern elevation
of the building, and the proposed revisions to the entrance lobby are welcomed, with the
design of this more appropriate to the elevations of the building.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

To the north- and south-west of the site are the residential properties within Ryefield
Avenue. To the north of the site are the residential properties within Lynhurst Crescent
and Floriston Avenue and to the north- and south-east of the site is Ryefield Primary
School.

Within the 2011 and 2013 schemes, the impact of the scale, bulk and massing of the
proposed building on the amenities of the other surrounding occupiers was considered
and given the distance to these properties, it was deemed that they would be unduly
affected by the proposals. Given that the size and scale of the building has not altered to
any great degree from these previous consents, the principle, size and siting of the
proposed building is considered acceptable with regards to its impact on the surrounding
residential properties. The main issues for consideration with this application, are the
impact that the proposed alterations to the elevations will have on the surrouding
occupiers.

The closest residential property to the site is No. 211 Ryefield Avenue, which is sited
approximately 5.5 metres from the flank wall of the proposed care home building. The
2011 and 2013 applications considered this relationship acceptable given that the building
stepped down to two storeys in height adjacent to this property, and it being sited 5.5
metres from the flank wall with no windows proposed. This current submission retains the
same separation distance between the buildings, however proposes two windows on the
flank wall at ground and first floor level. These windows are proposed to serve the
hallways to the building and it is noted in the submissions that they are to be obscurely
glazed. Given their location and that they serve circulation areas within the building, the
Council would have no objection to the addition of these windows, provided that they are
obscurely glazed and non opening 1.8 metres from the finished floor level. Subject to the
windows being obscurely glazed and non opening as described, and the distance between
the flank wall of the buildings, the Council is of the view that the scheme would not give
rise to unacceptable levels of overlooking or loss of privacy to this property.

Three windows are also proposed on the eastern elevation of the building which adjoins

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 61



7.09

7.10

7.1

712

713

714

the boundary with Ryefield Primary School and playing fields for the school. Given such,
the addition of these windows is not considered to give rise to unacceptable levels of
overlooking or loss of privacy.

Living conditions for future occupiers

With regards to the quality of accomodation provided to any future occupiers of the
scheme, within the appeal scheme, the Inspector concluded that the appeal site was
within an area that does not experience unacceptably high levels of noise pollution or poor
air quality. On this basis, he was of the view that acceptable living conditions could be
created for future residents of the development.

Further, this scheme proposes to increase the size of the windows in the elevations of the
building to maximise the amount of natural light able to infiltrate the internal spaces and
also provide direct access for a number of ground floor rooms to the communal garden
areas. These alterations are overall considered to improve the quality of the accomodation
for its occupants and no objection is raised in this regard.

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Of relevance to the consideration of the impact of the proposed care home on the
highway conditions of the surrounding roads are applications 11838/APP/2004/2478,
11838/APP/2013/2650 and 1138/APP/2011/553. The 2004 consent allowed on appeal,
granted planning permission for a 48 bed care home providing 12 on site car parking
spaces. This scheme was considered acceptable on traffic generation and car parking
grounds. The 2011 and 2013 approvals were for a 58 bed care home with the level of on
site car parking remaining at 12 (a maximum of 14 spaces are required to accord with the
Councils parking standards).

The shortfall of on site car parking spaces was justified within the 2011 and 2013
schemes by the fact that the Inspector did not impose any condition on the 2004 planning
permission limiting the number of bed spaces, and in view of the fact that it would not
have been possible to increase the number of on site car parking spaces without a
reduction in the size of the building. These schemes therefore accepted the level of car
parking for the use to which no objection was raised by the Councils Highways Officer.
Given such, the provision of 12 car parking spaces, which includes two disabled spaces is
considered acceptable.

Urban design, access and security

These issues have been addressed within other sections of the report.
Disabled access

This was assessed and deemed acceptable under planning permission ref:
11838/APP/2011/553 dated 1 December 2012. Furthermore the Council's Acess officer
has raised no objections to the proposed scheme.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Policy BE38 of the Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies states that development
proposals will be expected to retain and utilise topographical and landscape features of
merit and provide new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate. Whilst the site
has been largely cleared of vegetation, there is a broken belt of vegetation and immature
trees close to the southern and eastern boundaries of the site, which provide some
screening.

The Design & Access Statement accompanying the application recognises that the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 62



715

7.16

717

7.18

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

proposal provides the opportunity for comprehensive landscaping both to the road
frontage and the rest of the site, and to reinforce the screen of existing off-site vegetation.
On this basis no objection is raised to the scheme subject to the protection of the existing
off-site vegetation during the course of development and the provision of a satisfactory
landscaping scheme. These matters can be secured by appropriate conditions in the
event of planning permission being granted. As such, the scheme would comply with
Saved Policy BE38.

Sustainable waste management

The scheme is to be supported by a communal bin storage facility which identifies
adequate space for waste and recycling bins. Full details of an appropriately screened,
covered and sign posted enclosure can be secured by condition in the event of planning
permission.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Policy 5.7 of the London Plan requires major developments to show how the development
would generate a proportion of the sites electricity or heat needs from renewables,
wherever feasible.

The proposals remain identical to the extant consent in terms of energy reductions.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

The scheme has been reviewed by the Councils Flood and Water Management Officer
and no objection is raised to the proposed scheme.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

With regard to the previous proposal considered at appeal, the Inspector concluded that
the appeal site was within an area that does not experience unacceptably high levels of
noise pollution or poor air quality. On this basis he was of the view that acceptable living
conditions would be created for future residents of the development. The revised scheme
is therefore considered acceptable in this respect.

Comments on Public Consultations

No comments were received.
Planning Obligations

There is an existing legal agreement associated with this site and it is recommended that
a Deed of Variation is completed should the application be approved. Further details of
the planning obligations can be found in Section 13 of the report.

Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Other Issues

There are no other issues for consideration of this application.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and
use of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to
the application concerned.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 63



Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and
also the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related
to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure
Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality
of opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

For the reasons provided throughout this report, the application is considered to be
appropriate and acceptable and to comply with the relevant policies and planning
guidance for the site. Therefore, the application is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 64



Hillingdon Local Plan

London Plan (July 2011)

National Planning Policy Framework

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement - Residential Layouts (July 2006)
Accessible Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document

Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document

Contact Officer: Charlotte Bath Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 65



School

Site Address

) LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary Ryefield House OF HILLINGDON
For identification purposes only. Ryefleld Avenue RSISider'ts ger‘{:_ices
. . HIH anning section
This copy has been made by or with HIIIIngdon o ) )
the authority of the Head of Committee Clwgl.clen:e’ U)'i‘bn_dge‘bM(;ddx'ngai 11 uw
Services pursuant to section 47 of the elephone No.. Uxbridge
Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale
Act 1988 (the Act). 1 _1 250
Unless the Act provides a relevant 11838/APP/2014/2350 =
exception to copyright.
Planning Committee Date

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2014 Ordnance Survey

100019283 Major Page 66 | October 2014 | 4L [ INGDON

LONDON




Agenda ltem 9

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address ST HELENS SCHOOL EASTBURY ROAD NORTHWOOD

Development: Development of a new part two-storey and part single-storey Junior School
building with associated external works.

LBH Ref Nos: 7402/APP/2014/2761

Drawing Nos: 1284-301-01 (Site Location Plan)

Appendix 10 - School Recycling policy Documents

1284-301-03 (Block Plan - Proposed)

1284-301-04 (Ground Floor - Proposed)

1284-301-05 (First Floor - Proposed)

1284-301-06 (Roof Plan - Proposed)

1284-302-01 (Elevations as Proposed - 01 & 02)

1284-302-02 (Elevations as Proposed - 03 & 04)

1284-302-03 (Elevations as Proposed - 05 & 06)

1284-302-04 (Elevations as Proposed - 07 & 08)

1284-303-01 (Site Sections - Existing)

1284-303-02 (Site Sections - Proposed)

1284-308-01 (3D Views 1)

1284-308-02 (3D Views 2)
532_GA 001 Rev.P04 (Site Wide Landscape GA Plan)
D300 Rev.P1 (Swept Path Analysis)
Planning Application Supporting Stateemnt - Incorporating Design and
Access Statement, prepared by IID Architects dated July 2014
Appendix 1 - Tree Survey, Arboricultural Impact Assessment, Tree
Protection Plan and Heads of Terms for the Arboricultural Method
Statement Rev.1, prepared by MJC Tree Services Ltd dated 24/09/14
Appendix 2 - pre-application Planning Advice
Appendix 3 - Consultation Material (Exhibition Boards)
Appendix 4 - Phase 1 Habitat Survey Prepared by Arbtech
Appendix 5 - School Travel Plan 2010 Review
Appendix 6 - Rainwater Harvesting Feasibility Report for Planning (Rev.B),
prepared by Couch Perry Wilkes dated 21/07/14
Appendix 7 - Outline Energy Assessment for Planning (Rev.B), prepared by
Couch Perry Wilkes dated 21/07/14
Appendix 8 - landscape Strategy Rev.E dated July 2014
Appendix 9 - Flood Risk Assessment and Surface Water Drainage Strategy
prepared by Elliott Wood dated 28/07/14
1284-301-02 (Block Plan - Existing)
Supplementary Parking Study Sheets 1 - 3
Email from 11D Architects dated 19/09/14 confirming pupil numbers

Date Plans Received:  04/08/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 04/08/2014
Date Application Valid: 04/08/2014 27/08/2014
11/09/2014
19/09/2014
24/09/2014

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 67



1. SUMMARY

This application seeks full planning permission for the erection of a new part two-storey
part single-storey junior school building (Key Stage 2) at St Helen's School in Northwood.

St Helen's School is an independent day school for girls aged between 3 and 18 years.
Founded in 1899 and originally a boarding school it has been a day school since 2009.
The existing junior school currently occupies five buildings located towards the west of
the site. These include a Victorian building, two pre-fabricated mobile classroom units,
and two comparatively modern buildings. Some of these buildings were not purpose
designed and, as such, offer poor teaching spaces and accessibility.

The school aspires to bring the school into the 21st century and "promote a more open
and spacious environment which will provide the model for the future development of the
school as a whole."

A number of shortcomings have been identified with the existing junior school
accommodation, which inhibit the school's ability to achieve its aspirations. These include
the following:

- Inconsistent class sizes;

- No direct views of grounds beyond;

- Accommodation scattered in different buildings;

- Poor accessibility to all floors;

- Claremont, the oldest of the buildings, has a particularly awkward layout resulting in
poor circulation and ineffective teaching spaces;

- Poor relationship between class bases and external areas generally;

- Insufficient capacity in junior hall;

- Limited storage;

- No real defined Junior School identity;

- Lack of changing facilities linked to hall;

- Lack of good quality library and learning resources - these facilities are currently
scattered across different buildings.

In order to address these shortcomings through this application the school is seeking to
provide an "inspirational and innovative new Junior School which relates well to and is
integrated within the landscape and which enhances the character of the site." The
proposals seek to:

- Create a clear identity for the Junior School with its own separate entrance and
convenient drop-off access;

- Integrate the new building within the landscape;

- Keep the organisation and layout clear, simple and intelligible;

- Enhance and consolidate the links between the three lower school buildings and also
between the junior and senior school;

- Minimise the impact on surrounding properties;

- Create a new shared social plaza and focus at the heart of the site;

- Generally improve the landscape character at the heart of the site as this currently lacks
coherence;

- Improve traffic movement around the site.

It should be noted that the applicant has confirmed that there is no intention to increase
pupil numbers as a result of the proposals and would be content to accept a cap on pupil
numbers in order to allay any concerns there may be in this regard.

The proposed works form the first part of a site wide masterplan for the entire school site
and this seeks to provide a strategic long-term approach to address the site's

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 68



shortcomings and to enhance the overall school. Whilst not forming part of this
application an indicative masterplan has been provided within the Planning
Statement/Design and Access Statement. This demonstrates that the long-term intention
is to review the use of existing spaces within the school site to improve the cohesiveness
of the school environment through the clear zoning of different parts of the school site to
relate to different key stages and specialisms in addition to ancillary uses such as
administration and sport. The school aspires to provide a new sixth form centre and
learning resource centre, expand its drama and music facilities, enhance the
administration areas and main entrance, provide additional informal social spaces and to
improve vehicular and pedestrian access and circulation.

The two existing mobile classroom units, currently forming part of the junior school,
would be removed from the site and this area would be relandscaped. The remaining
vacated junior school buildings would become specialist teaching areas, a sixth form
centre and a careers centre.

Whilst it must be acknowledged that the masterplan is indicative only at this stage and
subject to change it should also be recognised that many of the changes proposed relate
to better use of existing spaces and educational enhancements rather than the physical
expansion of the school and would not therefore require planning permission.

The proposal fully complies with the aims of the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF), London Plan policy 3.18 and Local Plan: Part 2 policy R10, which seek to
encourage the provision of new and/or enhanced educational facilities.

The proposed new building will be of a high quality design appropriate to its setting on
the edge of a Conservation Area and would be visually acceptable in this location. Whilst
some existing mature and attractive trees would be lost as a result of the proposals,
extensive new planting and landscaping would be provided which would mitigate against
their loss.

The proposal would not have any significant detrimental impact on the amenities of the
occupiers of neighbouring residential properties and there would be no increase in traffic
associated with the development.

The proposal is considered to comply with relevant Local Plan and London Plan policies
and, accordingly, approval is recommended.

2. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 1284-301-01, 1284-
301-02, 1284-301-03, 1284-301-04, 1284-301-05, 1284-301-06, 1284-302-01, 1284-302-
02, 1284-302-03, 1284-302-04, 1284-303-01, 1284-302-02, 1284-308-01, 1284-308-02,
532_GA_001 Rev.P04 & D300 Rev.P1, and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 69



long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

3 COM5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall be completed in accordance with the mitigation
measures and recommendations within the following supporting documents:

i) Planning Statement - Incorporating Design and Access Statement
ii) School Travel Plan

iii) Landscape Strategy Rev.E

iv) Flood Risk Assessment prepared by Elliot Wood dated 28/07/14

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence

REASON

To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of Local Plan Part 1 and 2
Policies, London Plan policies, the NPPF and relevant Supplementary Planning
Documents and Guidance.

4 COMG6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in
accordance with policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)

5 COoM7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces, to
include details of the fenestration and roof light, canopies and external stairs, have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be
retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON

To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policies BE4 and BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

6 COMS8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 70



1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum
height of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

7 COM9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Covered and secure cycle storage for 20 bicycles

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Car Parking Layouts (including demonstration that 20% of all parking spaces (10%
active and 10% passive) are served by electrical charging points)

2.e Hard Surfacing Materials

2.f External Lighting

2.g Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

3. Living Roofs
3.a Full details of the proposed green roofs

4. Details of Landscape Maintenance
4.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.
4.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 71



the landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority
becomes seriously damaged or diseased.

5. Schedule for Implementation

6. Other
6.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
6.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with
the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual
amenities of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13,
BE38 and AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and Policies 5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan
(July 2011).

8 COM10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the
Local Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely
damaged during construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree,
hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would
leave the new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in
a position to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a
size and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be
planted in the first planting season following the completion of the development or the
occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a
schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree
surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1,
Specification for Trees and Shrubs'

Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

9 NONSC Ecological Enhancements

Prior to the commencement of development an ecological enhancement scheme shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
clearly detail measures to promote and enhance wildlife opportunities within the
landscaping and the fabric of the buildings including measures such as habitat walls, bird
and bat boxes and nectar rich planting. The scheme shall aim to include an area of land
dedicated to wildlife habitat. The development must proceed in accordance with the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 72



approved scheme.

REASON
To ensure the development contributes to ecological enhancement in accordance with
Policy EM7 (Local Plan) and Policy 7.28 of the London Plan.

10 NONSC Living Screens

Prior to commencement of development a scheme for the inclusion of living screens shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme
shall provide details of the types of living material to be used and the locations and
methods of maintenance where necessary. The development should proceed in
accordance with the approved plans.

REASON
To ensure the development contributes to a number of objectives in compliance with
Policy 5.11 of the London Plan and Policy EM1 of the Local Plan.

11 NONSC Energy

Prior to the commencement of development a detailed energy assessment shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The assessment shall clearly set out the baseline energy performance of the
development, and the detailed measures to reduce CO2 emissions by 40%. The
assessment shall provide detailed specifications of the measures and technology set out
in the outline energy assessment. The assessment shall also include full details of the
photovoltaics including type, specification, and a detailed roof layout which must be
reflected in other plans.

Finally, the assessment must include appropriate measuring and monitoring proposals
and how the information will be submitted to the Local Planning Authority to demonstrate
CO2 reductions are being met.

The development must proceed in accordance with the approved scheme.

REASON

To ensure appropriate carbon savings are delivered in accordance with London Plan
Policy 5.2.

12 NONSC Cap on pupil numbers

The total number of pupils on roll at the school shall not exceed 1,192, unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

In order to allow a full assessment of parking and traffic impacts should an increase in
pupil numbers occur, in compliance with policies AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

13 NONSC Construction Traffic Management Plan

Prior to the commencement of development a Construction Traffic Management Plan
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This shall
include measures to ensure the safety of children, access (vehicular and pedestrian) and
parking provision for school and conrtacting staff and the delivery of materials during
construction. These measures shall be complied with in accordance with the approved

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 73



details thereafter for the duration of construction works.

REASON

To ensure that the construction does not have an unacceptable impact on pedestrian and
highway safety in accordance with policies AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

14 NONSC Changing Places requirement

The staff/hygiene room shall be a designated 'Changing Places' cubicle and signed as
such. The cubicle shall be locked by means of an access control system, with
appropriate pass cards issued to individuals who need to use the room. The cubicles
shall be designed and fitted in accordance with 'Changing Places' specifications.

REASON

To ensure that adequate facilities are provided for people with disabilities in accordance
with Policies AM13 and AM16 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 and London Plan (July
2011) Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2.

15 NONSC Fire Evacuation Plan

Prior to construction of the building hereby approved an emergency evacuation plan/fire
strategy that is specific to the evacuation of persons unable to escape by stairs should be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Provisions could
include: a) a stay-put policy within a large fire compartment(e.g. within a classroom at
first floor with suitable fire resisting compartmentalisation); b) provisions to allow the lift to
be used during a fire emergency (e.g. uninterrupted power supply attached to the lift); c)
contingency plans to permit the manual evacuation of disabled people should other
methods fail.

REASON

To ensure that adequate facilities are provided for people with disabilities in accordance
with Policies AM13 and AM16 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 and London Plan (July
2011) Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2.

16 COM15 Sustainable Water Management

Prior to commencement of development, a scheme for the provision of sustainable water
management shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate how it follows the strategy set out in the
Flood Risk Assessment produced by Elliot Wood dated 28th July 2014, and incorporates
sustainable urban drainage in accordance with the hierarchy set out in Policy 5.15 of the
London Plan and will:

i. provide information on all Suds features including the method employed to delay and
control the surface water discharged from the site and:

a. calculations showing storm period and intensity and volume of storage required to
control surface water and size of features to control that volume.

b. any overland flooding should be shown, with flow paths depths and velocities identified
as well as any hazards, ( safe access and egress must be demonstrated).

c. measures taken to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface
waters;

d. how they or temporary measures will be implemented to ensure no increase in flood
risk from commencement of construction.

ii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development of

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 74



arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. Including
appropriate details of Inspection regimes, appropriate performance specification,
remediation and timescales for the resolving of issues.

iii. provide details of the body legally responsible for the implementation of the
management and maintenance plan.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iii. incorporate water saving measures and equipment.

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does not
increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy EM6 (Flood Risk Management)of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (Nov 2012), Policy 5.12 (Flood Risk
Management) of the London Plan (July 2011), the aims of the National Planning Policy
Framework (March 2012) and the Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014). Also to
ensure surface water is handled as close to its source as possible in compliance with
Policy 5.13 (Sustainable Drainage) of the London Plan (July 2011), and conserves water
supplies in accordance with Policy 5.15 (Water use and supplies) of the London Plan
(July 2011).

17 COM31 Secured by Design

The building(s) shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the
Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No building shall be occupied until
accreditation has been achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

18 NONSC Japanese Knotweed

Prior to commencement of development a method statement detailing the safe and
effective removal of Japanese Knotweed, as identified in the submitted Tree Survey,
shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To prevent the spread of this invasive species and to ensure that the proposed
development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the locality and provide
adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13, BE38 and AM14 Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Policies 5.11 (living walls and
roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (July 2011).

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 75



19 NONSC Topsoil storage

If site won topsoil is to be re-used, then prior to its handling and storage a method
statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
to demonstrate that it will be handled and stored in an appropriate manner and to ensure
that it is of sufficient quality to be used in landscape mitigation earthworks. Soil should be
stored in accordance with British Standard 3882:2007.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13, BE38
and AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Policies 5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (July
2011).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

BE39 Protection of trees and woodland - tree preservation orders

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

R10 Proposals for new meeting halls and buildings for education, social,
community and health services

R16 Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and
children

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people

and people with disabilities in development schemes through

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 76



(where appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

3 11 Building to Approved Drawing

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

4 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Residents Services, Building Control, 3N/01 Civic
Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

5 111 The Construction (Design and Management) Regulations
1994

The development hereby approved may be subject to the Construction (Design and
Management) Regulations 1994, which govern health and safety through all stages of a
construction project. The regulations require clients (ie. those, including developers, who
commision construction projects) to appoint a planning supervisor and principal
contractor who are competent and adequately resourced to carry out their health and
safety responsibilities. Further information is available from the Health and Safety
Executive, Rose Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS (telephone 020
7556 2100).

6 112 Notification to Building Contractors

The applicant/developer should ensure that the site constructor receives copies of all
drawings approved and conditions/informatives attached to this planning permission.
During building construction the name, address and telephone number of the contractor
(including an emergency telephone number) should be clearly displayed on a hoarding
visible from outside the site.

7 114 Installation of Plant and Machinery

The Council's Commercial Premises Section and Building Control Services should be
consulted regarding any of the following:-

The installation of a boiler with a rating of 55,000 - 1% million Btu/hr and/or the
construction of a chimney serving a furnace with a minimum rating of 1% million Btu/hr;
The siting of any external machinery (eg air conditioning);

The installation of additional plant/machinery or replacement of existing machinery.
Contact:- Commercial Premises Section, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge,
UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190). Building Control Services, 3N/01, Civic Centre, High

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 77



Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (tel. 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

8 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Councilgs Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out
construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

9 119 Sewerage Connections, Water Pollution etc.

You should contact Thames Water Utilities and the Council's Building Control Service
regarding any proposed connection to a public sewer or any other possible impact that
the development could have on local foul or surface water sewers, including building over
a public sewer. Contact: - The Waste Water Business Manager, Thames Water Utilities
plc, Kew Business Centre, Kew Bridge Road, Brentford, Middlesex, TW8 OEE.

Building Control Service - 3N/01, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (tel.
01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

10 134 Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings’

Compliance with Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings' and Disability
Discrimination Act 1995 for commercial and residential development.

You are advised that the scheme is required to comply with either:-

- The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document Part M 'Access to and use of
buildings', or with

- BS 8300:2001 Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled
people - Code of practice. AMD 15617 2005, AMD 15982 2005.

These documents (which are for guidance) set minimum standards to allow residents,
workers and visitors, regardless of disability, age or gender, to gain access to and within
buildings, and to use their facilities and sanitary conveniences.

You may also be required make provisions to comply with the Disability Discrimination
Act 1995. The Act gives disabled people various rights. Under the Act it is unlawful for

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 78



employers and persons who provide services to members of the public to discriminate
against disabled people by treating them less favourably for any reason related to their
disability, or by failing to comply with a duty to provide reasonable adjustments. This
duty can require the removal or modification of physical features of buildings provided it
is reasonable.

The duty to make reasonable adjustments can be effected by the Building Regulation
compliance. For compliance with the DDA please refer to the following guidance: -

- The Disability Discrimination Act 1995. Available to download from www.opsi.gov.uk

- Disability Rights Commission (DRC) Access statements. Achieving an inclusive
environment by ensuring continuity throughout the planning, design and management of
building and spaces, 2004. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

- Code of practice. Rights of access. Goods, facilities, services and premises. Disability
discrimination act 1995, 2002. ISBN 0 11702 860 6. Available to download from
www.drc-gb.org.

- Creating an inclusive environment, 2003 & 2004 - What it means to you. A guide for
service providers, 2003. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

This is not a comprehensive list of Building Regulations legislation. For further
information you should contact Building Control on 01895 250804/5/6.

1 158 Opportunities for Work Experience

The developer is requested to maximise the opportunities to provide high quality work
experience for young people (particularly the 14 - 19 age group) from the London
Borough of Hillingdon, in such areas as bricklaying, plastering, painting and decorating,
electrical installation, carpentry and landscaping in conjunction with the Hillingdon
Education and Business Partnership.

Please contace: Mr Peter Sale, Chief Executive Officer, Hillingdon Training Ltd: contact
details - c/o Hillingdon Training Ltd, Unit A, Eagle Office Centre, The Runway, South
Ruislip, HA4 6SE Tel: 01895 671 976 email: petersale@hillingdontraining.co.uk

12

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex,
UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

13

With regard to condition 10 it should be noted that living screens can be used on 'blank
elevations' and can consist of affordable wire trellising systems which climbing plants can

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 79



be trained up. These living screens can also be used for the growth of 'vertical
allotments' and food production.

14
You are advised to note the following:

a) The Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services
from discrimination on the basis of a 'protected characteristic', which includes those with
a disability. As part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access to and
within the structure of their building, particularly in situations where reasonable
adjustment can be incorporated with relative ease. The Act states that service providers
should think ahead to take steps to address barriers that impede disabled people.

b) Fixtures, fittings and furnishings, particularly hard materials should be selected to
ensure that sound is not adversely reflected. The design of all learning areas should be
considerate to the needs of people who are hard of hearing or deaf. Reference should be
made to BS 8300:2009, Section 9.1.2, and, BS 223 in selecting an appropriate acoustic
absorbency for each surface.

c) Care should be taken to ensure that the internal decoration achieves a Light
Reflectance Value (LRV) difference of at least 30 points between floor and walls, ceiling
and walls, Including appropriate decor to ensure that doors and door furniture can be
easily located by people with reduced vision.

d) Induction loops should be specified to comply with BS 7594 and BS EN 60118-4, and
a term contract planned for their maintenance.

e) Care must be taken to ensure that overspill and/or other interference from induction
loops in different/adjacent areas does not occur.

f) Flashing beacons/strobe lights linked to the fire alarm should be carefully selected and
installed to ensure they remain within the technical thresholds not to adversely affect
people with epilepsy.

15 158 Opportunities for Work Experience

The developer is requested to maximise the opportunities to provide high quality work
experience for young people (particularly the 14 - 19 age group) from the London
Borough of Hillingdon, in such areas as bricklaying, plastering, painting and decorating,
electrical installation, carpentry and landscaping in conjunction with the Hillingdon
Education and Business Partnership.

Please contace: Mr Peter Sale, Chief Executive Officer, Hillingdon Training Ltd: contact
details - c/o Hillingdon Training Ltd, Unit A, Eagle Office Centre, The Runway, South
Ruislip, HA4 6SE Tel: 01895 671 976 email: petersale@hillingdontraining.co.uk

16
You are advised to note the following advise from the Council's Trees/Landscape Officer:

- The Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981: Note that it is an offence under the Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981 to disturb roosting bats or nesting birds or other species. It is
advisable to consult your tree surgeon/consultant to agree an acceptable time for
carrying out any work.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 80



- New planting should seek to enhance biodiversity, by including species of known value
to wildlife which produce berries and / or nectar.

- Japanese Knotweed is designated as an invasive species by the Environment Agency
and is a structurally damaging plant able to penetrate a range of hard man-made
surfaces and structures. All Japanese Knotweed identified on site should be accurately
plotted on plan and the contaminated areas sealed off. No site clearance or
development should be undertaken until Japanese Knotweed remediation works have
been completed, and disposed of, by a specialist licensed contractor, in accordance with
Environment Agency guidelines.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

St Helen's School is an independent day school for girls aged between 3 and 18 years. It
occupies an approximately 7.8 hectare irregularly shaped plot located on the east side of
Eastbury Road in Northwood.

The site accommodates a number of buildings, largely located towards the periphery of
the site, which make up the nursery, infant, junior and senior schools; sixth form and staff
accommodation; specialist teaching blocks; and indoor sports facilities. It also
accommodates sports pitches, tennis courts, car parks and associated facilities.

The buildings on site vary significantly in age and size, with some dating back to the turn
of the 20th century, and the swimming pool building, the largest and newest building on
site, having been granted planning permission in 2002.

Despite its proximity to Northwood Town Centre the site falls within a predominantly
residential area. It is bounded to the north by Carew Road, beyond which are residential
properties. To the east it is bounded directly by residential properties in Maycock Grove
and Wildoaks Close. It is bounded to the south by retail units in Rowlands Place and by
Green Lane, beyond which are residential properties. To the west it is bounded by
Eastbury Road, beyond which are residential properties and retail units.

The application site itself comprises an area of approximately 1.7 hectares, located within
the middle of the site, which currently accommodates landscaped areas, including a
number of mature trees, and an area of car parking.

A large part of the school site, including the north west and south west corners and a
large part of the eastern half of the site, falls within the Northwood, Frithwood
Conservation Area as designated in the Hillingdon Local Plan, as does the eastern half of
the application site. The remainder of the school site falls within the developed area.
Several trees on the site are protected by Tree Preservation Order with trees located
towards the northern part of the application site are covered by Order number 415. Green
Lane, to the south of the school, is designated as a Local Distributor Road.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks full planning permission for the construction of a new junior school
(Key Stage 2) building, to be located relatively centrally within the site and towards the
rear of the existing nursery building and car park.

The existing junior school currently occupies five buildings, located towards the west of

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 81



the site. These buildings, some of which were not purpose designed, fail to offer high
quality modern teaching space, offer poor accessibility and, due to the nature and location
of the buildings, they offer a fragmented junior school, which has a poor physical
relationship with the infant and nursery schools, located towards the east of the site.

Through the provision of a new KS2 building the school seeks to give the junior school a
clear identity, provide a better relationship between the different key stages and
significantly improve accessibility to this part of the school.

The proposed building, which would provide approximately 2,200m? of floor space, would
essentially comprise a two-storey core with single-storey parallel wings. The design
concept is to provide 'fingers' which, at single-storey level, would merge into the
landscape.

At ground floor level, the building would comprise several classrooms, in addition to a
music room with associated practice rooms, a school hall, a library and ICT suite, a staff
room, administration and office space, WCs, circulation space and ancillary facilities. At
first floor level it would accommodate classrooms, WCs and circulation space.

Externally, the building would be of a high quality modern design with the landscape
running up and over the single-storey elements of the building to create intensively
planted roofs. Photovoltaic panels would be located on the two-storey roof.

'Learning courtyards' would be created around and between the ‘fingers' of the building
and would predominantly comprise hard communal areas for gathering, socialising,
informal lessons and play. Moveable seating would be provided in these areas and
existing mature trees would provide shade to these areas.

To the north of the proposed building informal soft landscaped play areas would be
provided with turf mounds and valley pathways, punctuated with existing and proposed
tree planting. This seeks to complement the roof form of the proposed building and help
the building to sit comfortably within its landscaped setting.

The existing Little St Helen's Nursery play area (shown as 'Little Gables' on drawing no.
1284-301-02) would be relocated from the north to the east of that building. This enables
the provision of a soft landscaped area, a wildlife pond and an outdoor classroom with
canopy over for occasional use during warmer weather, to be provided to the south east
of the new building. To the south west a formal entrance plaza would be created.

Access will be retained via Green Lane but internally the existing car park will be
reconfigured to create a more rational layout, including a drop-off zone, to avoid
congestion currently experienced when coaches are parked. Eight additional spaces will
be provided for drop-off and pick-up. A central plaza would be created to provide an area
for coach and minibus parking at the start and end of the school day and also an area for
special school events.

The applicant has confirmed that there would be no increase in pupil numbers as a result
of the proposals and that whilst the school wish to improve their existing facilities they
have no desire to expand and would be willing to accept a reasonable cap on pupil
numbers if considered necessary.

As part of a longer term master plan the vacated junior school buildings would be
converted to provide specialist learning areas and would allow the reconfiguration of

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 82



3.3

spaces within the existing school buildings to provide improved links between different
teaching areas and age groups. Any external alterations, extension or new buildings
proposed as part of the longer term master plan would be the subject of a separate
application.

Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History
There is no planning history directly relevant to this proposal.

Planning Policies and Standards

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

Policy Statement - Planning for Schools Development (DCLG, 15/08/11)
London Plan (July 2011)

National Planning Policy Framework

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Noise

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Air Quality

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.EM1 (2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation

PT1.EM7 (2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

)
)
PT1.EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management
)
)

PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

BE39 Protection of trees and woodland - tree preservation orders

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

R10 Proposals for new meeting halls and buildings for education, social, community

and health services

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 83



R16 Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and children

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people

with disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 3rd September 2014

5.2  Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations

External Consultees

Consultation letters were sent to 338 local owner/occupiers and the Northwood Residents'
Association. Site and press notices were also posted. One letter of support, six letters of objection,
including one from the Northwood Residents' Association, and one letter raising general comments
were received.

The letters of objection raise the following concerns:

i) The design is quite attractive but requires building in part of the Conservation Area.

ii) Loss of many mature and significant trees including two with TPOs, although it's not clear which
ones these are.

iii) The documents online all have the same name making them difficult to consider.

iv) There is a discrepancy in the location and numbers of trees between the tree surgeon's report
and the summary document. 26 trees, not 23 will be removed. The applicant also needs to be clear
which trees are to be felled and the numbers.

v) The entrance to the site and new building would be via Carew Road which is already congested
at school times. Adding further traffic would make the situation untenable and using Green Lane
would offer little improvement.

vi) Noise, disturbance and pollution during construction.

vii) The proposed 'overflow courts' would be very disturbing to residents.

viii) The application states that no increase in pupil numbers is planned but this is hard to believe.
ix) Increase in traffic problems including congestion, queues at junctions and inconsiderate parking.
This particularly impacts on more vulnerable residents needing to attend appointments.

x) The building works will impede residents' enjoyment of their gardens. For some this is a major
factor in coping with ilinesses.

xi) Green space in Northwood is limited and this will further reduce it.

xii) Careful assessment of the impact of construction traffic on Eastbury Road, which has a history
of serious accidents, needs to be carried out.

xiii) Road markings at the junction of Carew Road and Eastbury Road are faded and poor and
should be renewed and maintained to a high standard. The 'give way' sign should be replaced with
a 'stop' sign.

xiv) The school's Travel Plan identifies Carew Road as dangerous and refers to the provision of a
pedestrian crossing, which has not been implemented. Carew Road remains a key pedestrian

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 84



access route to Frithwood School
xv) It is inadequate not to include any assessment of traffic impact on Carew Road.

Northwood Residents' Association raise the following concerns:

i) The development would not preserve or enhance the Conservation Area contrary to policy BE4 of
the Local Plan.

i) The development would not harmonise with the features of the area contrary to policy BE13 of
the Local Plan.

iii) The loss of 23 trees, including 2 protected by TPOs and 10 in a Conservation Area, would be
contrary to policies OL26, BE38 and BE39 of the Local Plan.

iv) An alternative location, as shown in the applicant's options appraisal, would be preferable.

v) Carew Road would be unsuitable for use for access and egress by construction related vehicles.

One general comment has been received which confirms that no objections are raised to the
proposed development but that concerns are raised about construction traffic using Carew Road
rather than Green Lane and that the hours quoted for access (9am - 3pm) would clash with peak
school start/finish times. It also suggests the 'give way' sign at the junction of Carew Road and
Eastbury Road is replaced with a 'stop' sign.

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Having considered the proposals with reference to information held in the Greater London Historic
Environment Record and/or made available in connection with this application, | conclude that the
proposal is unlikely to have a significant effect on heritage assets of archaeological interest.

There is no known archaeological interest on or in the immediate vicinity of this site.

No further assessment or conditions are therefore necessary.

Internal Consultees

FLOOD & WATER MANAGEMENT SPECIALIST

A Flood Risk Assessment has been undertaken and Sustainable Drainage Systems are proposed,
including green roofs, permeable paving, cellular storage and an attenuation pond to control
surface water drainage. A restriction is proposed to limit run off to green field run off rates. It is
important any scheme is designed to meet National Sustainable Drainage standards to manage
water quality as well as quantity.

A suitable condition to ensure this is undertaken is therefore requested.

CONSERVATION/URBAN DESIGN OFFICER

The site of the proposed new building falls in part within the Northwood Frithwood Conservation
Area. The school site is quite large and comprises a number of 2 and 3 storey buildings from the
late Victorian period onward. Many of the older buildings on the site are of architectural interest,
although none are designated. Some of the newer buildings, for example, the swimming pool are
large, although most are well designed. A particular feature of the site is the spacious landscaped
grounds, with mature trees and grassed open areas. To the north of the school, along Carew Road,
are a number of Locally Listed Buildings, mainly large late Victorian/Edwardian houses.

The new building has been subject to extensive pre-application discussion and the current design
has evolved as a result of this process. Whilst the proposed building will be partially visible from
Green Lane, it is unlikely to impact on other views into the site or wider views within the
conservation area, and will not affect the setting of the adjacent Locally Listed Buildings.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 85



The design of the proposed building is modern, innovative, carefully considered and of a very high
quality. The careful choice of materials, attention to detail and the integration of the building with
the existing and new landscape will ensure that this building enhances the site and does not detract
from its open and green character.

No objections are raised in conservation or design terms subject to conditions relating to all
external materials, details of the fenestration and roof light, canopies and external stairs.

ACCESS OFFICER

Situated close to the Northwood Commercial Centre, St Helens School is an independent
establishment for girls aged 3 to 18. Planning permission is sought to construct a replacement
during the school element. It is understood that the purpose is not to increase the number of pupils,
but rather to improve the quality of the accommodation.

The proposal would include a hygiene room for pupils with a complex impairment, in addition to
accessible toilets for staff and visitors. There is an aspiration to create an inclusive school
environment.

The car park capacity would increase from 83 to 89 spaces, and the existing two accessible
parking spaces would remain.

Whilst the details submitted with the application present an aspiration to create a fully inclusive
learning environment, the following observations should be translated into suitable planning
conditions attached to any grant of planning permission:

1. The staff/hygiene room should be a designated 'Changing Places' cubicle and signed as such.
The cubicle should be locked by means of an access control system, with appropriate pass cards
issues to individuals who need to use the room. The cubicles should be designed and fitted in
accordance with 'Changing Places' specifications.

2. An emergency evacuation plan/fire strategy that is specific to the evacuation of persons unable
to escape by stairs should be submitted and reviewed prior to the occupation of the building.
Provisions could include: a) a stay-put policy within a large fire compartment(e.g. within a
classroom at first floor with suitable fire resisting compartmentalisation); b) provisions to allow the
lift to be used during a fire emergency (e.g. uninterrupted power supply attached to the lift); c)
contingency plans to permit the manual evacuation of disabled people should other methods fail.

Conclusion: acceptable, subject to suitable planning conditions which secure the above provisions.

Standard informatives should also be attached to any grant of planning permission.

TREES/LANDSCAPING OFFICER

Landscape Character/Context -

Site description:

- The site is occupied by St Helen's School campus, which comprises school buildings and external
spaces including sports facilities, play areas, car parks and landscaped areas. It is located
immediately north-east of Northwood Town Centre and is bounded by residential streets, with
Carew Road (to the north), Green Lane (south), Watford Road (east) and Eastbury Road (west).
The development area lies within the centre of the site, to the north-east of the swimming pool and
gym complex.

Landscape Planning designations:

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 86



- Parts of the development site lie within the Northwood Frithwood Conservation Area, a
designation which protects trees. Specific trees within the site are also afforded protection by three
separate Tree Preservation Orders. TPO No. 415 affects trees within the current development
area.

Landscape constraints / opportunities:

- The landscape quality and appearance of the site is characteristic of this area, with fine trees and
well-maintained external spaces, which should be retained and enhanced.

- The land is higher to the north and slopes down to Green Lane. The local topography should be
respected and understood as it offers both opportunities and constraints with regard to the changes
of levels, the effects on retained trees and the visual impact of proposed built development.

Proposal -
The proposal is to develop a new part two-storey and part single-storey Junior School building with
associated external work.

Landscape Considerations -
Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of
merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.

- The proposal has been the subject of pre-application discussions with planning and landscape

officers.

- A Tree Survey and Tree Constraints Plan, to BS5837:2012 has been prepared by MJC Tree

Services. This is primarily intended to inform the architect and the design process, with a view to

safeguarding the best trees.

- The survey acknowledges that the removal of 'A’' and 'B' grade trees (particularly 'A2' and 'B2'

grade trees), to facilitate development, will increase the risk of refusal, unless appropriate

justification and replacement can be provided as part of the proposal.

- More than 100 trees have been assessed within the survey, including trees outside the red line of

the application.

- An Arboricultural Implications Plan identifies approximately 25No. individual trees which will be

removed to facilitate the development. This includes some 'B' grade trees, although most are 'C' or

'U' grade - of poor quality and value with limited useful life expectancy. Due to their location within

the site few of the trees have a high visual amenity value from outside the site.

- This plan is annotated with much useful information regarding the site layout and areas of 'no dig'.

- A further plan provides Tree Protection measures, including root protection areas, a protective

fencing specification and model site notices. This plan would have been clearer if it had omitted the

trees 'to be removed' - or made the information clearer graphically.

- Finally, the report notes that a full Arboricultural Method Statement has yet to be prepared and will

be submitted by condition.

- The Planning Statement, confirms (2.2) that several trees will be removed to accommodate the

new buildings and notes that all are internal to the site and of limited public visual amenity.

- It also notes that two are protected by TPO and 10No. are within the Conservation Area.

- It is considered that the proposal to plant a substantial number of new trees and the other soft

landscape work will contribute to the parkland quality of the school campus, providing renewal and

succession for the tree cover on site. In time, the new planting will mitigate the effects of the tree

removal.

- The submission is supported by an illustrative Landscape Strategy for the proposed development.
The whole building concept has been designed to sit comfortably within the local topography and

landscape setting.

- Specific landscape features include an intensive green roof, plaza, new play area, earth

modelling, learning courtyards, roof terraces, an amphitheatre and wildlife garden and pond. New

planting will include native species which will enhance local biodiversity.

- The submission is supported by a Phase 1 Habitat Survey, undertaken by Arbtech, in June 2014.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 87



The survey raises no particular concerns based on the evidence on site. The conclusions and
recommendations for further work are noted in Table 4.

- The tree survey notes the presence of Japanese Knotweed on site. A method statement with
regard to its safe and effective removal is required, by condition.

- If site won topsoil is to be re-used, a method statement is required to ensure that it is handled and
stored in an appropriate manner to ensure that it is of sufficient quality to be used in landscape
mitigation earthworks. Soil should be stored in accordance with British Standard 3882:2007.
Condition required.

- If the application is recommended for approval, landscape conditions should be imposed to
ensure that the proposals preserve and enhance the character and local distinctiveness of the
surrounding natural and built environment.

Recommendations -

This application has been subject to pre-application discussions and the proposed tree retention
and landscape proposals reflect the outcome of the discussions. No objection, subject to the above
observations and COM6, COM7, COM8, COM9 (parts 1,2,3,4,5, and 6) and COM10.

HIGHWAY ENGINEER

The proposals are for the construction of a new Junior School building, which will replace the
existing accommodation within the site. The existing school buildings will be either removed from
the site or be retained and used for associated activities.

As part of the development, it is proposed to reconfigure the existing car park, drop off/pick up area
and coach parking facilities, in order to provide improvements to the internal site circulation
alongside the provision of 6 additional drop off/pick up parking spaces that will be used by
parents/guardians. Access from the adjacent highway will remain as existing, from Green Lane.

When assessing the proposals, it is noted that there will not be an increase in the number of pupils
or staff as a result of the development. In addition, the existing number of coach and car parking
spaces within the site will be retained and a total of 20 cycle parking spaces will be provided for the
use of staff and pupils, which is considered acceptable.

Therefore, it is considered that the development would not be contrary to the Policies of the
adopted Hillingdon Local Plan, 2012, Part 2 and an objection is not raised in relation to the highway
and transportation aspect of the proposals, provided that the details below are made conditional to
the planning consent.

Conditions

In order to prevent the expansion of the school without a formal assessment, the number of staff
and pupils shall not be increased without prior permission from the LPA.

Staff car parking within the school should be provided with 20% (active and passive) electrical
charging points in accordance with the London Plan.

A Construction Traffic Plan is required to be submitted to and agreed in writing by the LPA before
commencement of works at the site in order to minimise the impact along the adjacent highway
network during construction. Thereafter, all works shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved document.

Details of the proposed cycle parking shall be submitted to the LPA for approval in writing before
occupation of the development. Thereafter, the cycle parking shall be maintained and retained at
all times for the use of the Junior School. All cycle parking is required to be provided within a

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 88



secured location and undercover.

SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER
No objections are raised to the proposed development subject to the following:

Ecology Comments:

The ecology report submitted with the application provides an unhelpful assessment of the impacts
of the proposed development. It fails to decouple the whole survey site from the proposed
development. As a consequence, the recommendations seem unrelated to the proposals. For
example, the reports states in reference to reptiles:

"If either of the long grass areas around P[ond]1 or to the North-East of the site is to be removed,
Full Reptile Surveys will be needed."

Pond 1 and the long grass to the north east are not included within the red line application
boundary.

The proposed development will actually have limited impacts on the ecology by virtue of
development being proposed on heavily managed amenity grassland with limited need for the
removal of vegetation. The recommendations requiring further surveys are deemed unnecessary
and not linked to the proposals.

However, the development still needs to contribute to a net biodiversity improvement in accordance
with the National Planning Policy Framework. The following condition is therefore necessary to
provide final details of the proposed enhancement measures:

Condition: Prior to the commencement of development an ecological enhancement scheme shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly
detail measures to promote and enhance wildlife opportunities within the landscaping and the fabric
of the buildings including measures such as habitat walls, bird and bat boxes and nectar rich
planting. The scheme shall aim to include an area of land dedicated to wildlife habitat. The
development must proceed in accordance with the approved scheme.

Reason: To ensure the development contributes to ecological enhancement in accordance with
Policy EM7 (Local Plan) and Policy 7.28 of the London Plan.

Living Walls and Roofs:
Living walls and roofs can improve air quality, operate as carbon sinks and also be of importance
for nature conservation. The following condition is therefore necessary:

Condition: Prior to commencement of development a scheme for the inclusion of living screens
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
provide details of the types of living material to be used and the locations and methods of
maintenance where necessary. The development should proceed in accordance with the approved
plans.

Reason: To ensure the development contributes to a number of objectives in compliance with
Policy 5.11 of the London Plan and Policy EM1 of the Local Plan.

Nb: Living screens can be used on 'blank elevations' and can consist of affordable wire trellising
systems which climbing plants can be trained up. These living screens can also be used for the
growth of 'vertical allotments' and food production.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 89



Energy Comments:

The energy assessment submitted with the application demonstrates the development can meet
the necessary 40% reduction in CO2. The energy assessment alludes to the improvement of
glazing at 'Claremont' [the neighbouring school] as a potential method of realising the 40%
reduction.

The Council is satisfied that there is a suitable energy solution but that detailed designs need to be
included in the final option. The following condition is therefore necessary:

Condition: Prior to the commencement of development a detailed energy assessment shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The assessment shall clearly set out the baseline energy performance of the development, and the
detailed measures to reduce CO2 emissions by 40%. The assessment shall provide detailed
specifications of the measures and technology set out in outline energy assessment. The
assessment shall also include full details of the photovoltaics including type, specification, and a
detailed roof layout which must be reflected in other plans.

Finally, the assessment must include appropriate measuring and monitoring proposals and how the
information will be submitted to the Local Planning Authority to demonstrate CO2 reductions are
being met.

The development must proceed in accordance with the approved scheme.

Reason: To ensure appropriate carbon savings are delivered in accordance with London Plan
Policy 5.2.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

Policy R10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
seeks to encourage the provision of enhanced educational facilities across the borough,
stating:

"The Local Planning Authority will regard proposals for new meeting halls, buildings for
education, social, community and health services, including libraries, nursery, primary and
secondary school buildings, as acceptable in principle subject to other policies of this
plan."

This is reiterated in the London Plan Policy 3.18 which states:

"Development proposals which enhance education and skills provision will be supported,
including new build, expansion of existing facilities or change of use to educational
purposes. Those which address the current projected shortage of primary school places
will be particularly encouraged.”

Whilst at national level the DCLG Policy Statement on Planning for Schools Development
and the NPPF focus predominantly on provision of state funded education, the Local
Planning Authority acknowledges that there may also be a demand for private provision
and that this can also, to some degree, help to meet the increasing need for additional
school places. Paragraph 72 of the NPPF confirms that great importance should be
attached to ensuring that a sufficient choice of school places is available to meet the
needs of existing and new communities and that great weight should be given to the need
to create, expand or alter schools.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 90



The site does not fall within the Green Belt, does not comprise school playing fields and
has no other specific designations which would preclude development. Furthermore, it
complies with current planning policy which seeks to enhance educational facilities.
Accordingly, no objections are raised to the principle of the development in this location,
subject to site specific criteria being met. The impact of the development on the
Northwood Frithwood Conservation Area and on existing trees, particularly those afforded
protection by their location with the Conservation Area or by way of Tree Preservation
Orders, are however key policy considerations.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this type of development.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The site does not fall within an Archaeological Priority Area and no statutorily listed
buildings fall within the vicinity of the site. A number of locally listed buildings are located
on the opposite side of Carew Road to the school, but these are located in excess of 85m
from the nearest part of the application site and due to screening provided by existing
buildings and existing and proposed landscaping the development would have no impact
on their setting.

The eastern part of the application site falls within the Northwood, Frithwood Conservation
Area. However, limited views of the building would be available from outside the school
site to the north, east and west. Whilst the building would be visible from Green Lane,
careful consideration has been given to its design, the choice of materials and its
landscape setting to ensure that it enhances rather than detracts from the site. Notably,
the Council's Conservation and Urban Design Officer is supportive of the proposals and
English Heritage have raised no objections.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable. There is no requirement to consult the aerodrome safeguarding authorities
on this application.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Not applicable. There is no green belt land within the vicinity of the application site.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Limited views of the proposed building would be visible from Carew Road to the north or
from Eastbury Road to the west due to screening provided by existing buildings and
landscaping within the school grounds. The development would be visible from Green
Lane, however, it would be set back some distance from the road, behind the car park
and nursery building and, as such, would not appear as overly prominent or dominant
when viewed from this location. The building would be of a high quality design,
sympathetic to its location within and adjacent to a Conservation Area, and significant
landscape enhancements are proposed. Accordingly, it is not considered that the proposal
would have any significant detrimental impact on the character or appearance of the
school site or on the visual amenities of the surrounding area.
7.08 Impact on neighbours

The nearest part of the proposed building would be located over 40m away from the

nearest residential properties at Sentis Court. Given this distance, in addition to existing

and proposed tree screening which would limit views available from outside the school

site, it is not considered that the development would have any significant detrimental

impact on residential amenity in terms of loss of outlook, overshadowing or loss of privacy.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this type of development.
7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 91



No alterations are proposed to the school's existing vehicular and pedestrian access
points as a result of the development and the applicant has confirmed that there would be
no increase in pupil numbers as a result of the proposals. At the request of the Council's
Highway Engineer, the school has agreed to the imposition of a condition which would cap
pupil numbers to provide the necessary assurance that no future increase will take place
without the consent of the Local Planning Authority.

The school has advised that the maximum total number of pupils at the School will be
1,192 based on the following:

Nursery - 48

Reception, Yr1 and Yr 2 - 60 (per year) = 180 total
Junior School (Yrs 3-6) - 66 (per year) = 264 total
Senior School (Yrs 7-13) - 100 (per year) = 700 total

This is considered to be reasonable based on existing pupil numbers and capacity and will
be reflected in the condition.

On the basis of the above, there would be no increase in traffic and associated impacts on
the local highway network as a result of the proposals.

Notwithstanding the above, it is proposed to reconfigure the existing car park, drop
off/pick up area and coach parking facilities within the site, in order to provide
improvements to the internal site circulation.

Coach and minibus parking would be relocated to a central plaza area, to be managed by
the school to allow parking during start and finish times and alternative uses by the school
during the day. The relocation of the coach/minibus bays allows for the reconfiguration
and enhancement of the drop-off and pick-up area to ease congestion within this area.

Overall the reconfiguration of space would result in an increase of one minibus bay and
six car parking spaces. No objections are raised to this small increase. Provision would
also be made for 20 cycle parking bays, which is encouraged in order to promote more
sustainable modes of travel to/from the school.

7.11 Urban design, access and security

The proposed building would feature four arms, splayed out in the centre of the site, on an
approximately north-south axis. The centre arms would be two-storeys in height and their
roofs would house photovoltaic panels. The two outer arms would be single-storey with
intensive green roofs.

A key concept of the design is to integrate the building within the landscape and the
intense green roofs on the single-storey wings would effectively merge into the ground
level to the north.

The size, scale and height of the proposed building is considered to be appropriate for this
location and no objections are raised to the overall design concept, which reflects the high
quality landscape value of the site and is sensitive to the location of the development
partly within, and adjoining, a Conservation Area. Furthermore, the suggested use of
clay/earthy coloured materials is generally supported, subject to further details, and the
'green’ design is welcomed.

The design successfully integrates safe and secure access to the single-storey roof

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 92



spaces, whilst ensuring that this does not detract from the visual amenities of the building
through intensive planting. A large glazed rooflight would be provided within the two-storey
element of the building to provide a bright and airy interior space.

The development is considered to be of an attractive high quality design which would
effectively integrate into its landscape setting. The proposed use of soft red brick stock,
natural mortar, terracotta rainscreen cladding and timber fascias and soffits, combined
with large areas of glazing with aluminium curtain walling is considered to complement the
green, almost parkland type setting of the building and is considered to be appropriate for
this location.

Notably, the design reflects comments provided during pre-application discussions and
the Council's Conservation/Urban Design Officer is supportive of the proposals.
7.12 Disabled access

The applicant's Supporting Statement confirms that the proposed development will be fully

inclusive and will comply with the requirements of Part M of the Building Regulations and

the Equality Act 2010. It confirms that level access would be provided throughout,

accessible toilets would be provided for students, visitors and staff and that due regard

has been given to those with visual and sensory impairments. Notably, the Council's

Access Officer has raised no objections to the proposals subject to appropriate conditions.
7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this type of development.
7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Trees/Landscaping:

The site is located partly within a Conservation Area and, as such, many of the trees on
site are protected. A Tree Preservation Order protects some of the other trees which fall
within the application site but outside the Conservation Area.

Several trees would be removed, including some B Grade trees, in order to enable the
development. However, the majority of these are considered to be lower quality trees.
Furthermore, due to the location of the trees central to the application site they have
limited amenity value from publicly accessible locations outside the school grounds.

A high quality landscaping scheme is proposed which includes the planting of a
substantial number of new trees, extensive planting, intensive green roof, earth modelling,
a wildlife garden and pond, in addition to hard landscape measures. It is considered that
this high quality landscaping scheme would contribute to the parkland quality of the school
campus and provide renewal and succession for the tree cover on site which, in time, will
mitigate the effects of the tree removal.

In this instance, given the high quality design of the building and extensive replacement
tree planting and landscaping proposed, it is not considered that the tree loss would have
such a detrimental impact on the visual amenities of the Conservation Area, school site or
surrounding area that refusal could be justified. Notably, the Council's Trees/Landscape
Officer has raised no objections subject to suitable conditions.

Ecology:

The applicant has provided a Phase 1 Habitat Survey, albeit that this would appear to
relate to the entire school campus and it is unclear which recommendations are specific to
the school site. Nevertheless, the Council's Sustainability Officer has confirmed that the
proposed development will actually have limited impacts on the ecology by virtue of this
part of the site being on heavily managed amenity grassland with limited need for the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 93



removal of vegetation. Accordingly, the recommendations requiring further surveys are
deemed unnecessary and not linked to the proposals.

In terms of ecological enhancements a wildlife area and pond are proposed in addition to
native tree planting. The applicant's Planning Statement also gives mention to habitat
creation through the selection of vegetation proposed. Whilst these measures are
considered to be acceptable and are encouraged, it is recommended that a condition is
attached to ensure opportunities to enahnce wildlife habitats within the site are enhanced
through the landscaping and the fabric of the buildings to include measures such as
habitat walls, bird and bat boxes and nectar rich planting.
7.15 Sustainable waste management

The applicant has confirmed that the school's existing waste management facilities will be
used. Notably, the school ultimately has discretion over which waste management
methods are used on site.

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Policy 5.2 of the London Plan (July 2011) requires development proposals to make the
fullest contribution possible to reducing carbon emissions. Major development schemes
must be accompanied by an energy assessment to demonstrate how a 40% target
reduction in carbon dioxide emissions will be achieved, where feasible.

In accordance with this policy the applicant has submitted a Sustainability Statement and
an Outline Energy Assessment to demonstrate how the London Plan objectives will be
met. This confirms that through the incorporation of passive design measures, such as
reducing the building's air permeability, ensuring high levels of natural daylight, use of a
passive cooling strategy, use of high efficiency boilers, energy efficient lighting, etc, and
the installation of photovoltaic panels on the roof of the building, a 40% reduction in
carbon dioxide emissions above Part L of the Building Regulations would be acheived in
compliance with London Plan requirements.

It is understood that the applicant intends to acheive the full 40% reduction is CO2
emissions through passive design measures and the installation of photovoltaic panels on
the proposed building only. However, notwithstanding this, the Energy Assessment
alludes to improvements to another building on the school's campus, albeit that it is
believed that this is referred to in error. Accordingly, whilst it is considered that there is a
suitable energy solution, it is recommended that a condition is attached, should planning
permission be granted, to require further details.

In compliance with London Plan policy 5.11 extensive accessible green roofs, which would
provide roof gardens planted with drought tolerant species, would be provided.

Overall, the development is considered to provide for an appropriate level of sustainable
design, which would accord with the requirements set out within Chapter 5 of the London
Plan. Notably, the Council's Sustainability Officer has raised no objections subject to
conditions.

7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

The site does not fall within a flood zone and no issues relating to flooding have been
identified. A Flood Risk Assessmemt and Surface Water Drainage Strategy has been
provided which confirms that a number of sustainable drainage systems will be
incorporated into the development including green roofs, permeable paving, cellular
storage and an atenuation pond, to ensure that there is no increase in runoff following
development.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 94



Whilst a Rainwater Harvesting Feasibility Report has been submitted which demonstrates
that the incorporation of rainwater harvesting facilities would not be feasible, the
applicant's Planning Statement nevertheless confirms a committment to reducing potable
water demand. Accordingly, a condition would be attached to encourage the incorporation
of measures to reduce water usage.

Notably, the Council's Flood and Water Management Specialist has raised no objections
to the scheme subject to the standard condition which seeks to minimise surface water
run-off and potable water usage.

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

It is not considered that the proposal would give rise to any significant increase in noise or
pollution over and above the existing use of the site.

Resident's concerns regarding noise, disturbance and pollution during construction are
noted. However, the developer would be required to comply with strict environmental
legislation relating to construction impacts and, as such, refusal could not be justified on
these grounds. An informative would be attached to any grant of planning permission
however to advise the application of the need to comply with relevant legislation. A
condition would be attached to ensure traffic associated with construction does not have
an adverse impact on the highway network.
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

Points (i), (ii), (iv), (v), (vi), (viii), (ix), (x) and (xii) have been addressed in the report.
Point (iii) suggests that documents are not displayed clearly enough online. This is noted.

Point (vii) suggests that the 'overflow courts' would be disturbing to residents. It is unclear
what this objection relates to as no 'overflow courts' are proposed within the application
site. Any future alterations proposed to other parts of the site would require separate
planning permission.

Point (ix) raises concerns over the loss of green space. The benefits of providing a high
quality educational facility with landscape and ecological enahncements is considered
sufficient to offset the loss of private green space which would occur as a result of the
scheme.

Points (xiii), (xiv) and (xv) raise concerns over the ftraffic impact on Carew Road,
suggesting that a Transport Assessment should be provided and mitigation measures
implemented. As the proposal would result in no increase in pupil numbers and no
alterations are proposed to the existing access arrangements the provision of a Transport
Assessment is considered unnecessary and highway mitigation measures could not be
justified as part of this scheme. A condition requiring the submission of a Traffic
Management Plan would ensure that construction traffic using surrounding roads is
appropriately managed.

Points (i), (ii), (iii) and (v) as raised by the Northwood Residents' Association are
addressed in the report. Point (iv) suggests that an alternative location would be
preferable. These views are noted, however, the merits of locating the building in its
proposed location are considered to outweigh those of alternative locations on the school
site for a number of reasons including those relating to the operation of the school, impact
on sports facilities and impact on residential amenity.

7.20 Planning obligations

Not applicable to this development. As the development is for educational use it would

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 95



not necessitate a contribution towards the Mayoral or Hillingdon Community Infrastructure
Levy.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable.
7.22 Other Issues

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and
use of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to
the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and
also the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related
to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure
Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality
of opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 96



Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposal is considered to fully comply with the aims of the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF), London Plan policy 3.18 and Local Plan: Part 2 policy R10, which
seek to encourage the provision of new and/or enhanced educational facilities.

The proposed new building would be of a high quality design appropriate to its setting in
and on the edge of a Conservation Area and it is considered that it would be visually
acceptable in this location. Whilst some existing mature and attractive trees would be lost
as a result of the proposals, extensive new tree planting and landscaping would be
provided which it is consdiered would sufficiently mitigate against their loss.

The proposal would not have any significant detrimental impact on the amenities of the
occupiers of neighbouring residential properties and there would be no increase in traffic
associated with the development.

The proposal is considered to comply with relevant Local Plan and London Plan policies
and, accordingly, approval is recommended.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

Policy Statement - Planning for Schools Development (DCLG, 15/08/11)
London Plan (July 2011)

National Planning Policy Framework

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Noise

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Air Quality

Contact Officer: Johanna Hart Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 97



St Helen's School

Playing Field

Sports Facility

Sports Facility

Swimming Pool

Sentis
Court

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2014 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

St Helens School
Eastbury Road
Northwood

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services

Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Scale

1:1,250

Planning Application Ref:
7402/APP/2014/2761

Date
October 2014

Planning Committee

Major Page 98

AR

HILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda ltem

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 2 MIDCROFT RUISLIP

Development: Demolition of existing petrol station with tanks and erection of a four storey
building comprising 14 residential units, 2 commercial units at the ground
floor with associated access, underground car parking and cycle storage.

LBH Ref Nos: 4918/APP/2014/1274

Drawing Nos: 1329 - Design and Access Statement
1329 CIL Form
P101 - Location Plan
P203 Rev C Proposed Floor Plan
P204 Rev B Visibility Splays
P202 Rev D Proposed Floor Plan
P201 Rev D Proposed Elevations

Date Plans Received:  11/04/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 11/04/2014
Date Application Valid: 04/09/2014 20/08/2014
26/09/2014

1. SUMMARY

This application proposes the demolition of an existing petrol station and the erection of a
four storey building comprising 14 residential units, a commercial unit at the ground floor
level and associated access, underground car parking and cycle storage.

It is considered that the proposed development would provide an acceptable use on the
ground floor in this location and residential units of an acceptable standard for future
occupiers. The design, layout, parking and scale of the proposal are deemed to conform
with the requirements of the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) and the London Plan (2011).

Therefore, subject to conditions, the application is recommended for approval.
2. RECOMMENDATION

1.That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and
Culture to grant planning permission subject to:

A)Entering into an agreement with the applicant under Section 106 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or S278 of the Highways Act
1980 (as amended) and/or other appropriate legislation to secure:

i) Air Quality Management contribution £12,500;

ii) Construction Training: £2500 per £1m of building costs + £9600 per phase of
development for coordinator costs or an in kind scheme.

iii) Travel Plan including a £20,000.00 bond;

iv) Project Management and Monitoring Sum: a financial contribution equal to 5%
of the total cash contribution.

v) Affordable Housing Review Mechanism.

B)That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Councils reasonable costs in preparation of the Section 106 and/or 278

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 99

10



Agreements and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being
completed.

C)That Officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement and conditions of approval.

D)If the Legal Agreements have not been finalised by 4th December 2014,
delegated authority be given to the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture to
refuse planning permission for the following reason:

'The applicant has failed to deliver necessary offsite highway works and to provide
contributions towards the improvement of services and facilities as a
consequence of demands created by the proposed development (in respect of
employment, air quality management and Travel Plan). The proposals therefore
conflicts with Policy AM2, AM7 and R17 of the adopted Local Plan and the
Councils Planning Obligations SPG.'

E)That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture under delegated powers, subject to
completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant.

F)That if the application is approved, the following conditions be imposed subject
to changes negotiated by the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture prior to
issuing the decision:

1 RES3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers P201 Rev C, P202
Rev C, P203 Rev C and P204 Rev B.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

3 RES5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:
Lifetime Home Standards and Accessibility (Design and Access Statement)

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan:

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 100



Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

4 RES7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces,
including details of balconies have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance
with the approved details and be retained as such.

i) Render- colour, texture and finish

ii)Brick sample to be provided for agreement

iiilDesign and materials for balconies, railings and screening, including high level
enclosures

iv) Design details, colour and finish for external doors and windows

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

5 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Cycle Storage for 14 bicycles

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Car Parking Layouts (including demonstration that 1 parking space will be served by
electrical charging points)

2.e Hard Surfacing Materials

2.f External Lighting

2.g Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

3. Living Walls and Roofs
3.a Details of the inclusion of living walls and roofs or
3.b Justification as to why no part of the development can include living walls and roofs

4. Details of Landscape Maintenance

4.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

4.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within
the landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority
becomes seriously damaged or diseased.

5. Schedule for Implementation

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 101



6. Other
6.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
6.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with
the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual
amenities of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13,
BE38 and AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and Policies 5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan
(July 2011)

6 RES12 No additional windows or doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be
constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7 RES16 Code for Sustainable Homes

The dwelling(s) shall achieve Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes. No
development shall commence until a signed design stage certificate confirming this level
has been received. The design stage certificate shall be retained and made available for
inspection by the Local Planning Authority on request.

The development must be completed in accordance with the principles of the design
stage certificate and the applicant shall ensure that completion stage certificate has been
attained prior to occupancy of each dwelling.

REASON
To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development identified in London Plan (July
2011) Policies 5.1 and 5.3.

8 RES18 Lifetime Homes/Wheelchair Units

All residential units within the development hereby approved shall be built in accordance
with 'Lifetime Homes' Standards. Further 10% of the units hereby approved shall be
designed and constructed to be fully wheelchair accessible or easily adaptable for
residents who are wheelchair users, as set out in the Council's Supplementary Planning
Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'.

REASON
To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2

9 RES23 Visibility Splays - Pedestrian

The access for the proposed car parking shall be provided with those parts of 2.4m x
2.4m pedestrian visibility splays which can be accommodated within the site in both

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 102



directions and shall be maintained free of all obstacles to the visibility between heights of
0.6m and 2.0m above the level of the adjoining highway.

REASON
In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with policy AM7
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

10 RES24 Secured by Design

The dwelling(s) shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the
Hillingdon Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the
Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No dwelling shall be occupied until
accreditation has been achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

11 RES26 Contaminated Land

(i) The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a scheme to deal with
contamination has been submitted in accordance with the Supplementary Planning
Guidance Document on Land Contamination and approved by the Local Planning
Authority (LPA). The scheme shall include all of the following measures unless the LPA
dispenses with any such requirement specifically and in writing:

(a) A desk-top study carried out by a competent person to characterise the site and
provide information on the history of the site/surrounding area and to identify and
evaluate all potential sources of contamination and impacts on land and water and all
other identified receptors relevant to the site;

(b) A site investigation, including where relevant soil, soil gas, surface and groundwater
sampling, together with the results of analysis and risk assessment shall be carried out
by a suitably qualified and accredited consultant/contractor. The report should also
clearly identify all risks, limitations and recommendations for remedial measures to make
the site suitable for the proposed use; and

(c) A written method statement providing details of the remediation scheme and how the
completion of the remedial works will be verified shall be agreed in writing with the LPA
prior to commencement, along with details of a watching brief to address undiscovered
contamination.

(i) If during development works contamination not addressed in the submitted
remediation scheme is identified, the updated watching brief shall be submitted and an
addendum to the remediation scheme shall be agreed with the LPA prior to
implementation; and

(iii) All works which form part of the remediation scheme shall be completed and a
comprehensive verification report shall be submitted to the Council's Environmental
Protection Unit before any part of the development is occupied or brought into use unless
the LPA dispenses with any such requirement specifically and in writing.

(iv) All soils imported or used for the development shall be clean and free of

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 103



contamination. Site derived soils and imported soils shall be inspected and tested for
chemical contamination.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable
risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with policy OE11
of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

12 RES15 Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

Prior to commencement, a scheme for the provision of sustainable water management
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall clearly demonstrate how it incorporates sustainable urban drainage in
accordance with the hierarchy set out in Policy 5.15 of the London Plan and will:

i. provide information on all Suds features including the method employed to delay and
control the surface water discharged from the site and:

a. calculations showing storm period and intensity and volume of storage required to
control surface water and size of features to control that volume.

b. any overland flooding should be shown, with flow paths depths and velocities identified
as well as any hazards, ( safe access and egress must be demonstrated).

c. measures taken to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface
waters;

d. how they or temporary measures will be implemented to ensure no increase in flood
risk from commencement of construction.

ii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development of
arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. Including
appropriate details of Inspection regimes, appropriate performance specification,
remediation and timescales for the resolving of issues.

iii. provide details of the body legally responsible for the implementation of the
management and maintenance plan.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iii incorporate water saving measures and equipment.

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

Reason:

To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does not
increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (Nov 2012) Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management of
the London Plan (July 2011) and National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) and
the Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014). To be handled as close to its source as
possible in compliance with Policy 5.13 Sustainable Drainage of the London Plan (July
2011 or Jan 2014), and conserve water supplies in accordance with Policy 5.15 Water
use and supplies of the London Plan (July 2011).

13 COM17 Control of site noise rating level
The rating level of noise emitted from the plant and/or machinery hereby approved shall

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 104



be at least 5 dB below the existing background noise level. The noise levels shall be
determined at the nearest residential property. The measurements and assessment
shall be made in accordance with British Standard 4142 "Method for rating industrial
noise affecting mixed residential and industrial areas".

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy
OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

14 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The ground floor commercial premises shall not be used for loading and unloading
including rubbish collections outside the hours of 08:00 and 18:00, Monday to Friday, and
between the hours of 08:00 and 01:00 on Saturdays and not at all on on Sundays or
Bank Holidays.

Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby
properties in accordance with Policy OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

15 H7 Parking Arrangements (Residential)

The parking areas (including the marking out of parking spaces) shown on the approved
plans, shall be constructed, designated and allocated for the sole use of the occupants
prior to the occupation of the development and thereafter be permanently retained and
used for no other purpose.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).
and Chapter 3C of the London Plan (July 2011).

INFORMATIVES

1

Control of environmental nuisance from construction work

Nuisance from demolition and construction work is subject to control under the Control of
Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Act 1993 and the Environmental Protection Act 1990.
You should ensure that the following are complied with:

(i) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
0800 and 1800 on Monday to Friday and between the hours of 0800 and 1300 on
Saturday. No works should be carried out on Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays;

(i) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard 5228, and use "best practicable means" as defined in section 72 of the Control
of Pollution Act 1974;

(i) Measures should be taken to eliminate the release of dust, odours and other
emissions caused by the works that may create a public health nuisance. Guidance on
control measures is given in "The control of dust and emissions from construction and
demolition: best practice guidelines”, Greater London Authority, November 2006; and

(iv) No bonfires that create dark smoke or cause nuisance to local residents should be
allowed at any time.

2

The applicant/developer is advised to review the Environment Agency's Pollution
Prevention Guidelines (PPG) 7 'The safe operation of refuelling facilities'.

3 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 105



The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

4 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through
(where appropriate): -
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(i) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE3 Investigation of sites of archaeological interest and protection of
archaeological remains

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE26 Town centres - design, layout and landscaping of new buildings

H3 Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

H4 Mix of housing units

H8 Change of use from non-residential to residential

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

LPP 2.15 (2011) Town Centres

LPP 3.4 (2011) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 106



LPP 3.8 (2011) Housing Choice
LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction
LPP 6.13 (2011) Parking
LPP 6.9 (2011) Cycling
LPP 7.3 (2011) Designing out crime
LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character
LPP 7.6 (2011) Architecture
OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
5 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies.
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1  Site and Locality

The site is located within Ruislip Town Centre, Ruislip Village Conservation Area, and
within an archaeological priority area. It is also adjacent to an Area of Special Local
Character and located opposite a locally listed building at No. 63 High Street.

There is a good quality public park and a cemetery to the north of the site (Church Field
Gardens public open space). It is therefore a sensitive context in which to bring forward
redevelopment. The site currently comprises of a petrol filling station that is not currently
operational and a car wash facility that does not benefit from planning permission as a
planning unit operating in isolation.

The site fronts onto Midcroft, a residential street comprising good quality two storey
suburban housing. It is positioned immediately to the rear of No 53 - 61 High Street. This
comprises a 1970s three storey building (including mansard roof) that has
commercial/retail units at ground floor with office use above. Surface car parking lines its
rear courtyard area, immediately abutting the site. To its east lies an important pedestrian
route, leading into the expansive open space of Church Field Gardens, with good quality
two storey family houses lining Midcroft beyond. The nearest house, No 4 Midcroft, abuts
the pedestrian route and is a two storey single family dwelling with flank windows at
ground and first floor level together with a long and large rear garden (all of which are
sensitive to issues of overlooking). To the more immediate north of the site lie a series of
service yards associated with uses to businesses in 43-51 High Street. These uses have
considerable parking and servicing associated with them and which are accessed via the
road/right of way that forms the site's eastern edge. On the south side of Midcroft the site
faces onto the return two storey flank and service yard of the locally Listed Building at No
63 High Street.

The site is on the border of PTAL score areas of 3 & 4 and within a developed area as
designated by the policies contained within the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 107



3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposed development relates to the demolition of the existing petrol station and
removal of petrol storage tanks with the construction of a four storey building with a
commercial unit on the ground floor and three storeys of residential use above to provide
a total of 14 units (11 x 2 bed units and 3 x studios. Also proposed is a basement car park
with 14no. spaces and one surface level disabled parking space and an additional
standard space. Cycle parking for 14 units and bin storage is also located within the
building at ground floor level.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

4918/AD/83/0633 Jr Inwards Midcroft Ruislip
Alterations to elevations of sales building.

Decision: 07-06-1983  Approved

4918/AE/89/3615 R/O 53-61 Fronting Midcroft High Street Ruislip
Installation of an internally illuminated pole sign, shop fascia, wall mounted promotional sign and
canopy sign

Decision: 27-02-1990 Approved

4918/AG/94/1574 Midcroft Self-Serve, Midcroft High Street Ruislip
Installation of underground fuel storage tank and erection of jet wash facility

Decision: 29-03-1995 Approved

4918/APP/2001/482 Midcroft Self Service Midcroft Ruislip

INSTALLATION OF A 10,000 LITRE ABOVE GROUND DIESEL TANK TO THE REAR OF THE
SERVICE STATION

Decision: 17-07-2001  Approved

4918/APP/2008/805 Jet Petrol Station Midcroft Ruislip
Erection of a 60-bedroom hotel (involving demolition of existing petrol station) (outline
application).

Decision: 29-08-2008 Withdrawn

4918/PRE/2006/36 Jet Petrol Station Midcroft Ruislip
T P PRE - CORRES: RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

Decision:

Comment on Relevant Planning History

The site has been subject to a number of applications relating to its former use as a petrol
station, such as the installation of fuel tanks. In relation to the current proposal an
application was made in 2008 (ref. 4918/APP/2008/805) for a 60 bedromm hotel. This

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 108



application was withdrawn however prior to a determination on the schemes acceptability
being made.

4. Planning Policies and Standards
No additional policies.
UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people
with disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE3 Investigation of sites of archaeological interest and protection of archaeological
remains

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE26 Town centres - design, layout and landscaping of new buildings

H3 Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

H4 Mix of housing units

H8 Change of use from non-residential to residential

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 109



LPP 2.15 (2011) Town Centres

LPP 3.4 (2011) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2011) Housing Choice

LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 6.13 (2011) Parking

LPP 6.9 (2011) Cycling

LPP 7.3 (2011) Designing out crime

LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character

LPP 7.6 (2011) Architecture

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1  Advertisement Expiry Date:- 26th June 2014

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

46 neighbouring occupiers were consulted on the proposal on the 28/05/14 and a site notice was
displayed. By the end of the consultation period thirteen comments or letters of objection had been
received. These can be summarised as:

- Inappropriate use

- Out of scale

- Out of character

- Overlooking/loss of privacy

- Health and safety

- Impact of shop displays

- Delivery concerns

- Overdevelopment

- Poor design for the area

- Loss of light

- Insufficient parking

- Do they have the legal right to build over the rear access road?

- Insufficient height and width for refuse collection and delivery vehicles

- Detrimental impact on access to Churchfield Gardens

- Neighbouring properties would all be seriously inconvenienced by the construction
- The proposed structure comes too far towards the pavement

- Could set precedent for future proposals damaging to the quiet residential nature of the street
- Impact on outlook

- Potential youth problems and anti social behaviour

- The fence on the West side of the pedestrian access to Churchfield Gardens must be maintained
and should be a condition of any consent

- Development is not environmentally friendly

- Strain on the waterworks and sewage system

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 110



- Oversight of playground (or not) and any attendant risks

- Fails to provide sufficient green areas that would make it compatible with its setting
- The proposed front and rear building lines do not follow the existing building lines.
- Devalue of property

RUISLIP, NORTHWOOD AND EASTCOTE LOCAL HISTORY SOCIETY

I am writing on behalf of the society to express our grave concerns about the application to
demolish the garage and car wash at 2 Midcroft and replace them with a four storey block of flats.

The proposed development of four full storeys will be higher than the surrounding buildings and the
monolithic solid looking design will make it obtrusive and over-dominant. The flat roof will not be in
keeping with the predominant pitched roofs of all the surrounding properties especially the locally
listed building opposite (the NatWest bank).

The site is very sensitive as it sits within the Ruislip Village Conservation Area and adjacent to an
Area of Special Local character. When the Conservation Area was extended in 2008 to include the
High Street it was to protect a remarkably intact Metroland suburban shopping centre with its two
storey buildings in an attractive brickwork with pitched roofs and gables. The centre of Ruislip was
planned as a garden suburb and the Area of Special Local Character has retained this feel with its
good quality housing and mature gardens and tree- lined streets.

The site is also within an archaeology priority area and we are concerned that the necessary
evaluation and assessments must be taken into account when making a planning decision.

We think that this proposed development will be detrimental to an important historical site and have
a negative impact on the Ruislip Village Conservation Area and should be refused.

WARD COUNCILLOR

A local Ward Councillor also raised concerns regarding the scale of the development and an
objection to the proposal on the grounds that it would be over dominant.

RUISLIP CONSERVATION PANEL

I am writing on behalf of the Ruislip Village Conservation Area Panel because of the effect such a
development would have upon the Conservation Area, which it adjoins, and the High Street, upon
which the Council has spent so much money in recent years, not to mention the lives of people
living in the houses in Midcroft.

The main objections are to the height of the building and its monolithic appearance.

It would be quite out of keeping with the High Street, which generally provides a pleasing
townscape of low-rise buildings in brick, characterised by hipped roofs and gables, many with Arts
and Crafts details, complementing the Garden Suburb principles of the 1914 Ruislip-Northwood
Town Plan that guided Ruislip's suburban development.

If such a development were allowed to proceed, it would appear to residents that Conservation
Areas are not valued in this Borough.

Case Officer's Comments:
The Conservation Panels comments relate to the original plans. The proposal has since been
reduced in height to match the adjacent building.

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 111



As potentially contaminating activities have previously been conducted at this site, an assessment
of risks to controlled waters from the land should be carried out in accordance with the National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (Reference ID: 33-007-20140306).

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) paragraph 109 states that the planning system should
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by preventing both new and existing
development from contributing to or being put at unacceptable risk from, or being adversely
affected by unacceptable levels of water pollution. Government policy also states that, after
remediation, land should not be capable of being determined as Contaminated Land under Part 2a
of the Environmental Protection Act 1990.

Responsibility for the safe development and secure occupancy of the site rests with the
developer/landowner. Any visibly contaminated or odorous material encountered on the site during
the development work, must be investigated. The Planning Authority must be informed immediately
of the nature and degree of contamination present.

We also recommend that developers:

- Apply the risk- based framework set out in the Model Procedures for the Management of Land
Contamination (CLR 11) and follow the guidance in that document so that you can make the best
decisions for your site.

- Refer to the Environment Agency guidance on requirements for land contamination reports.

- Should the level of contamination exceed the Generic Risk assessments, a detailed Quantitative
risk assessment should be carried in accordance with Environment Agency Remedial Targets
Methodology (2006).

- Use MCERTS accredited methods for testing contaminated soils at the site.

Surface Water and foul drainage

Approved Document Part H of the Building Regulations 2000 establishes a hierarchy for surface
water disposal, which encourages a SUDS approach giving preference to the use of infiltration. In
all cases, it should be established that these options are feasible, can be adopted and properly
maintained and would not lead to any other environmental problems. For example, using
soakaways or other infiltration methods on contaminated land carries groundwater pollution risks
and may not work in areas with a high water table. Where the intention is to dispose to soakaway,
these should be shown to work through an appropriate assessment carried out under Building
Research Establishment (BRE) Digest 365. We would like to refer the applicant/enquirer to our
groundwater positions in Groundwater Protection: Principles and Practice (August 2013), this sets
out our position for a wide range of activities and developments including:

- Waste management

- Discharge of liquid effluents

- Land contamination

- Drainage

Pollution Prevention Guidance
The applicant is advised to review our Pollution Prevention Guidelines (PPG), in particular PPG 27
on the Installation, Decommissioning and Removal of Underground Storage Tanks.

Case Officer's Comments:
The condition requested by the Council's Water and Flood Management Officer is designed to
ensure both issues raised by the EA will be implemented.

GREATER LONDON ARCHEALOGICAL ADVISORY SERVICE (GLAAS)

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 112



Having considered the proposals with reference to information held in the Greater London Historic
Environment Record and/or made available in connection with this application, | conclude that the
proposal is unlikely to have a significant effect on heritage assets of archaeological interest.

Despite several unreliable or questionable assertions (see below), the applicant's desk-based
assessment has helped clarify the site's archaeological potential. Most valuably it has shown that
although adjacent to thehHgh Street and close to the village's medieval core, the site lay just within
Ruislip's the medieval open fields and so is unlikely to have significant remains of that period.

Assertions that there is no evidence for the motte & bailey castle at Ruislip (4.2.3) is of course
absurd - it is a scheduled monument situated c 400m to the north of the application site. It is stated
that the site is not in an Archaeological Priority Area - this is incorrect as a simple reading of my
pre-application advice letter would have shown, and if in doubt could have been checked. The
assumption that the archaeological interest would have been removed by use as a petrol station is
too sweeping a generalisation to be acceptable without further site-specific evidence - whilst some
disturbance will have occurred examples are known of sites which nevertheless have significant
surviving interest.

Overall however despite these technical flaws the relatively modest scale of the development,
location outside the known extent of the medieval village and modern ground disturbance overall do
taken together support an assessment of low potential. No further assessment or conditions are
therefore necessary.

Internal Consultees

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT:

This Phase 1 report follows the correct procedure in assessing the site for a desk study. The report
details a conceptual model showing the potential pollutant linkages and classifies the site as
'Medium to High' risk. The main potential problems are anticipated to be from the fuel tanks (above
and below ground tanks), the fuel interceptors, any other associated pipework and spillage of fuel
affecting the soil or ground water. The ground water under the site appears to be in an
unproductive aquifer with 300 metres to a more sensitive secondary A aquifer.

The tanks and infrastructure are not removed and the application is at the stage of the desk study
only. A remediation strategy cannot be proposed until the site investigation and risk assessment is
completed.

For this application | would ideally like sufficient ground investigation information to confirm what
likely level of remediation is required at the site including the removal of all tanks and infrastructure.
I cannot currently assess whether or not there is likely to be a problem with a sensitive residential
use. It is possible that the building of the basement (523 m2) may remove most of the
contaminated soil if found below the site.

If the past contamination investigations and assessments can be obtained from the developer or
current owner (if the site is not yet purchased) these may help clarify the likely pollution levels
below the site. | appreciate that the site is full of cars so new boreholes by a rig or even window
sampling may be difficult prior to the application being considered.

We have a number of residential developments mainly flats on former petrol stations in the
borough. These have been remediated but at each site a precautionary gas/vapour membrane has
been installed. | would anticipate a similar membrane at this site.

Should a decision be taken to allow a planning permission for residential flats with some
commercial units it is essential to apply our full contaminated land condition below to the consent.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 113



Contaminated Land Condition
RES26 - Contaminated Land

(i) The development hereby permitted shall not commence untii a scheme to deal with
contamination has been submitted in accordance with the Supplementary Planning Guidance
Document on Land Contamination and approved by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The
scheme shall include all of the following measures unless the LPA dispenses with any such
requirement specifically and in writing:

(@) A desk-top study carried out by a competent person to characterise the site and provide
information on the history of the site/surrounding area and to identify and evaluate all potential
sources of contamination and impacts on land and water and all other identified receptors relevant
to the site;

(b) A site investigation, including where relevant soil, soil gas, surface and groundwater sampling,
together with the results of analysis and risk assessment shall be carried out by a suitably qualified
and accredited consultant/contractor. The report should also clearly identify all risks, limitations and
recommendations for remedial measures to make the site suitable for the proposed use; and

(c) A written method statement providing details of the remediation scheme and how the
completion of the remedial works will be verified shall be agreed in writing with the LPA prior to
commencement, along with details of a watching brief to address undiscovered contamination.

(ii) If during development works contamination not addressed in the submitted remediation scheme
is identified, the updated watching brief shall be submitted and an addendum to the remediation
scheme shall be agreed with the LPA prior to implementation; and

(iii) All works which form part of the remediation scheme shall be completed and a comprehensive
verification report shall be submitted to the Council's Environmental Protection Unit before any part
of the development is occupied or brought into use unless the LPA dispenses with any such
requirement specifically and in writing.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological
systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers,
neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan
(November 2012).

Please attach the following conditions:

Noise affecting residential property

The rating level of noise emitted from the plant and/or machinery hereby approved shall be at least
5 dB below the existing background noise level. The noise levels shall be determined at the
nearest residential property. The measurements and assessment shall be made in accordance
with British Standard 4142 "Method for rating industrial noise affecting mixed residential and
industrial areas".

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

Loading/unloading/deliveries

The premises shall not be used for loading and unloading including rubbish collections outside the
hours of 08:00 and 18:00, Monday to Friday, and between the hours of 08:00 and 01:00 on
Saturdays and not at all on on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 114



Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties in
accordance with Policy OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

INF 20 Control of environmental nuisance from construction work (~ Informative 20)

Nuisance from demolition and construction work is subject to control under the Control of Pollution
Act 1974, the Clean Air Act 1993 and the Environmental Protection Act 1990. You should ensure
that the following are complied with:

(i) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of 0800 and
1800 on Monday to Friday and between the hours of 0800 and 1300 on Saturday. No works should
be carried out on Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays;

(i) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British Standard
5228, and use "best practicable means" as defined in section 72 of the Control of Pollution Act
1974;

(iii) Measures should be taken to eliminate the release of dust, odours and other emissions caused
by the works that may create a public health nuisance. Guidance on control measures is given in
"The control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition: best practice guidelines”,
Greater London Authority, November 2006; and

(iv) No bonfires that create dark smoke or cause nuisance to local residents should be allowed at
any time.

TREES AND LANDSCAPING

The site is occupied by a small petrol station and forecourt to the rear of Ruislip High Street. The
site is situated at the interface of the Town Centre and a residential street, whose character and
visual amenity is enhanced by front gardens and street trees.

The site lies within the Ruislip Village Conservation Area. However, there are no trees, protected
or otherwise, within the curtilage.

Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of
merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.

- No trees or other landscape features of merit will be affected by the proposal.

- The Design & Access Statement proposes that the entrance forecourt will feature hard and soft
landscape, providing pedestrian access and two off-street parking spaces (including one disabled
access space).

- The visualisations and Location Plan: Proposed Floor Plans drawing No. 1329 P202 indicate the
provision of a specimen tree on the frontage, which will benefit both the setting of the building and
the street scene.

- Planting in the form of low hedges / shrubs will define the site boundaries and wrap around the
building. This layout drawing indicates one (disabled) parking space only.

- Drawing No. 1329_P901 (aerial view) indicates the provision of photovoltaic cells and a green roof
on the flat roof structure.

- With appropriate hard and soft landscape detailing the development could enhance this site and
provide an enhanced transition between the High Street and the neighbouring residential street.

- If the application is recommended for approval, landscape conditions should be imposed to
ensure that the proposals preserve and enhance the character and local distinctiveness of the
surrounding natural and built environment.

Recommendations:

No objection, subject to the above observations and COM9 (parts 1,2,3,4,5, and 6).

ACCESS OFFICER:

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 115



Located within Ruislip Town Centre the site consists of a disused fuel filling station and car wash
facility. Planning permission is sought to form two commercial units on the ground floor, with 14
flats above over three floors. It is understood from the Design and Access Statement that the
development would be constructed to comply with the Lifetime Homes Standards.

In assessing this application, reference has been made to London Plan July 2011, Policy 3.8
(Housing Choice) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document "Accessible Hillingdon"
adopted May 2013. Compliance with all 16 Lifetime Home standards (as relevant) should be
shown on plan. In addition, 10% of new housing should comply with the Wheelchair Home
Standards.

The proposed buildng would be of a contemporary design with a flat roof, an entrance forecourt
with hard and soft landscaping. Two parking spaces are proposed on the forecourt, including one
accessible bay.

The design incorporates a basement car park with 14 spaces, accessed via a 12.7% car ramp.
Access to the residential units from the car park would be via a stair case and lift. The entrance to
the residential core is in the middle of the layout, stepped back and facing Midcroft Road. Each
floor typically comprises one studio flat and four, two bedroom units. All units have a private
balcony leading from the living room.

It would appear that the proposed design does not include the requisite one unit which has been
designed to meet the Wheelchair Home Standards.

The following access observations are provided:

1. A minimum of one bathroom in every flat should be designed in accordance with Lifetime Home
standards. At least 700mm should be provided to one side of the WC, with 1100 mm provided
between the front edge of the toilet pan and a door or wall opposite.

2. To allow a minimum of one bathroom in every flat to be used as a wet room in future, plans
should indicate floor gulley drainage.

3. The development is required to incorporate a minimum of one dwelling which has been designed
to meet the Wheelchair Home Standards. To ensure that the flat is designed to the correct
specifications, reference should be made to the 'Accessible Hillingdon' SPD.

Case Officer's Comments:
The above issues have been addressed through revised plans and the attachment of an
appropriate condition.

FLOODING AND WATER MANAGEMENT OFFICER

The site already has underground tanks and a desktop study has been undertaken indicating the
site should have a low risk of groundwater issues. Therefore please can | request the following
condition be placed on the permission. A detailed site investigation should be submitted to support
any drainage proposals, and the site should as a minimum meet the requirements of a 50%
reduction in surface water discharge from the site ideally aiming for greenfield run off rates.

Prior to commencement, a scheme for the provision of sustainable water management shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly
demonstrate how it incorporates sustainable urban drainage in accordance with the hierarchy set
out in Policy 5.15 of the London Plan and will:

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 116



i. provide information on all Suds features including the method employed to delay and control the
surface water discharged from the site and:

a. calculations showing storm period and intensity and volume of storage required to control
surface water and size of features to control that volume.

b. any overland flooding should be shown, with flow paths depths and velocities identified as well as
any hazards, ( safe access and egress must be demonstrated).

c. measures taken to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

d. how they or temporary measures will be implemented to ensure no increase in flood risk from
commencement of construction.

i. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development of
arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. Including appropriate
details of Inspection regimes, appropriate performance specification, remediation and timescales
for the resolving of issues.

iii. provide details of the body legally responsible for the implementation of the management and
maintenance plan.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable water
through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iii incorporate water saving measures and equipment.

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance with
these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

Reason:

To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does not increase the
risk of flooding contrary to Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1-
Strategic Policies (Nov 2012) Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management of the London Plan (July 2011)
and National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) and the Planning Practice Guidance (March
2014). To be handled as close to its source as possible in compliance with Policy 5.13 Sustainable
Drainage of the London Plan (July 2011 or Jan 2014), and conserve water supplies in accordance
with Policy 5.15 Water use and supplies of the London Plan (July 2011).

In response to comments received from the Environment Agency - there are two issues which they
raise, firstly that of contamintation and what the standard the site will be remedicated too after
development, and second is how the developer will manage water on site to ensure that controlled
waters are not polluted and that sustainable drainage systems are utilised where ever possible. The
condition | have requested is designed to ensure both will be implemented.

SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER

| have no objections to the proposed development subject to a roof plan showing the required m2
of PVs as set out in the energy report.

Case Officer's Comments:
The applicant has provided this detail in plan reference number P203 Revision C.

CONSERVATION AND URBAN DESIGN OFFICER

This site lies opposite a Locally Listed Building (The Natwest Bank), close to the village centre and
within the Ruislip Village Conservation Area. It is also adjacent the Midcroft, Ruislip, Area of
Special Local Character - all heritage assets. The existing building on the site is a petrol garage

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 117



and associated shop which has no architectural merit. The area can otherwise be characterised by
the commercial post-War office premises relating to the High Street to one side and the inter-War
semi-detached properties to the other. A public facing site, within and surrounded by heritage
assets, the proposal should be of a quality that sustains and enhances the appearance of the area.

Comments: There is no objection to the demolition of the existing building; it is of no heritage merit.
The site was formerly the rear garden/yard to 61 High Street, redeveloped as a garage in late 70s.
A gap site, it is in need of careful redevelopment.

Position: The new building would be set back from the established building line and the plan-form
generally integrates well within the plot. However, because it fills the plot, there is little by way
green amenity space for the occupants and little by way of green buffering to the side and rear. A
smaller scheme would of course enable the incorporation of more green space as part of the
development.

Scale/bulk: It would be hard to resist a building of a substantial size on this site given the scale of
the existing commercial office blocks to the High Street and the existing petrol garage. However, |
am concerned about the overall height, as it is higher than 61 High Street. Ideally, it could be
reduced in height and width.

Design: A contemporary design is proposed, and to the Midcroft frontage, it could certainly be said
to sustain the appearance of the area - especially if high quality materials are used. The revised
drawings locate bike storage and bins to the front of the ground floor. This creates a less active
frontage, but does not harm the overall appearance of the front elevation. However, to the sides
and rear, the square pilotis make the building look as if it is floating, albeit less visible to the
streetscene. The side elevation is lacking in any articulation and the main entrance could be made
more prominent, increasing legibility.

There is simple hard and soft landscaping.

Materials: There is no objection to the proposed materials, but the overall design could be let down
if not of quality.

Conclusion: Acceptable in principle. on balance, it would be difficult to argue the building does not
sustain appearance of the streetscene.

Case Officer's Comments:

Amendments have been made to the proposed plans following receipt of these comments,
including the introduction of a 'green wall' in the front elevation and a reduction in the total height of
the development.

S106 OFFICER

The S106 Heads of Terms sought are:

1. Construction Training: Training costs - £2500 per £1m build cost - £2500 x 5 = £12,500 + £9600
coordinator costs = £22,100 or an in-kind scheme.

2. Air Quality Monitoring: £12,500

3. Project management & Monitoring fee equal to 5% of total cash contributions.

HIGHWAYS OFFICER

No adverse comments received

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 118



7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

Paragraph 17 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that one of the core
principles of the document is the "effective use of land by reusing land that has been
previously developed (brownfield land)."

The London Plan (July 2011) aims to provide more homes within a range of tenures
across the capital meeting a range of needs, of high design quality and supported by
essential social infrastructure. In terms of new housing supply, the Borough of Hillingdon
has been allocated a minimum target of 4,250 in the period from 2011-2021.

The form of such housing should provide a mix of dwelling types in different locations with
those at higher densities providing for smaller households focused on areas with good
public transport accessibility.

The proposed site is located within the 'Developed Area' as identified in the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). The site is also located in a
conservation area and the building is not listed. There are no policies which prevent the
redevelopment of the site, in principle. The principle for redevelopment of the site is thus
accepted.

Redevelopment of the site is not opposed and the opportunity to enhance the
Conservation Area, support the town centre, and upgrade the quality of the
pedestrian entrance to the park in this location is welcomed. Given the site is located in a
town centre the Council's first preference in policy terms would be for a mixed use
development with ground floor commercial units and residential above, as currently
proposed.

Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) Policy H4 states that wherever practicable a mix
of housing units of different sizes should be provided in schemes of residential
development including in particular units of one or two bedrooms. Within town centres
predominantly one and two bedroom development will be preferable, as proposed.

The development is considered an acceptable reuse of a brownfield site and would
represent an increase in residential accommodation, in accordance with the NPPF and
Policy H4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012). Therefore, the development is
considered acceptable in principle.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Table 3.2 of the London Plan (July 2011) recommends that developments on urban sites
with a PTAL score of 3/4 should be within the ranges of 45 - 185 u/ha or 200 - 700 hr/ha.
The application proposes 11 x 2 bedroom, 3 x studio units, with the site area being
approximately 775 sqm. This equates to a development density of 180 units per hectare
and 645 habitable rooms per hectare which is within the density range for dwelling
numbers and the habitable room density thresholds contained within Table 3.2 of the
London Plan (July 2011).

It is considered that the density of the development is acceptable and the site can
accommodate the proposed level of development whilst maintaining a satisfactory
environment within and around the site.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The Greater London Archealogical Advisory Service (GLAAS) has reviewed the
development and concluded that the proposal is unlikely to have a significant effect on
heritage assets of archaeological interest. GLASS conclude that 'the relatively modest

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 119



scale of the development, location outside the known extent of the medieval village and
modern ground disturbance overall do, taken together, support an assessment of low
potential. No further assessment or conditions are therefore necessary. The impact of the
development on the Archaelogical Priority Area is therefore deemed acceptable.

The site lies opposite a Locally Listed Building, close to the village centre and within the
Ruislip Village Conservation Area. It is also adjacent the Midcroft/Ruislip Area of Special
Local Character - all heritage assets. However the existing building on the site is a petrol
garage and associated shop which has no architectural value or heritage merit. The
Councils Conservation and Urban Design Officer has reviewed the proposal and
determined that the scheme is acceptable in principle and that it would be difficult to argue
the building does not sustain the appearance of the streetscene as required by policy.

The proposed development is therefore deemed in accordance with Policie BE1, BE3 and
BE4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).
7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

As stated above the existing building on the site is a petrol garage which has no
architectural merit. The area can otherwise be characterised by the commercial post-War
office premises relating to the High Street to one side and the inter-War semi-detached
properties to the other.

Notwithstanding that the site is located in a designated conservation area and adjacent to
a designated area of special local character, there is no objection to the principle of a
contemporary architectural design as proposed. The site sits in a transitional position in
townscape terms from the relative scale associated with the commercial High Street of
Ruislip that lies to its west and the residential neighbourhood to its east. It is also directly
opposite a 2 - 3 storey locally listed building.

To the Midcroft frontage, it is considered to sustain the appearance of the area, subject to
the use of high quality materials. The proposal locates bike storage and bins to part of the
front of the ground floor. This creates a less active frontage, but does not harm the
overall appearance of the front elevation. The developer has agreed to introduce a green
wall in this location, to be agreed by the Council's Landscape Team, so as to improve the
appearance of the frontage.

The Council's Conservation and Urban Design Officer has reviewed the proposal and
states that 'The new building would be set back from the established building line and the
plan-form generally integrates well within the plot.'

With regards to the scale of the development they go on to say 'lt would be hard to resist
a building of a substantial size on this site given the scale of the existing commercial office
blocks to the High Street and the existing petrol garage. However, | am concerned about
the overall height, as it is higher than 61 High Street. Ideally, it could be reduced in height
and width.'

Concerns regarding the height of the scheme were brought to the attention of the
applicant during the planning process and the height of the development has now been
reduced to match that of the adjacent property No. 61 High Street.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 120



The Council's Conservation and Urban Design Officer has therefore considered the
proposal as submitted and determined that the design of the scheme is acceptable and
that on balance, it would be difficult to argue that the proposed building would not sustain
the appearance of the streetscene. The proposed mass and height of the building, with a
step down in height to the east, is considered to be acceptable in this location, responding
to the existing transition in the townscape.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

The nearest residential properties to the development site are located to the north on the
opposite side of the access path for the adjacent Church Field Gardens public open
space. The nearest house, No 4 Midcroft, abuts the pedestrian route and is a two storey
single family dwelling with flank windows at ground and first floor level together with a long
and large rear garden, all of which are sensitive to issues of overlooking.

Concerns have been raised throughout the pre-application process regarding what impact
the scheme would have on the amenity of adjacent occupiers. As a result the proposed
scheme has been through a number of redesigns in order to achieve an acceptable
solution. The current proposal incorporates the units in a manner that allows them to
benefit from acceptable levels of outlook and natural daylight without detrimentally
impacting on the amenity of adjacent occupiers. The use of only high level windows in the
side elevations is considered to have resolved concerns regarding overlooking. There is a
roof garden proposed, however it will be set back from the edge of the building to again
prevent issues of overlooking. Given the constraints on the site in terms of the proximity of
adjacent buildings, the proposal is deemed to achieve an acceptable solution.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Floor Space
The proposed flats are 3 x studios with a stated floor area of 47.6sq.m flats and 11 x 2
bedroom 4 person flats with a stated floor area range of between 73.7sq.m and 86.7sq.m.

The standards required by Policy 3.5 of the London Plan 2011, are a minimum floor area
of 70sq.m for a 2 bedroom 4 person flat and 39sqg.m for a studio flat in order to ensure the
development would be considered good quality housing stock. All of the proposed flats
meet these standards and therefore the proposal provides an acceptable standard of
living accommodation in accordance with Policy 3.5 of the London Plan.

External Amenity Space

The Council is committed to ensuring that new residential developments provide an
acceptable standard of living accommodation for future occupiers, including the provision
of acceptable levels of external amenity space. Policy H4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan
(November 2012) states that in town centre locations predominantly one and two bedroom
development will be preferable, as proposed. Council standards normally require 20sq.m
of amenity space for 1 bedroom/studio flats and 25 sq.m for 2 bedroom flats. However
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts document goes on to
state:

'Exceptions to garden area requirements will only apply in special circumstances such as
the provision of small non-family housing, predominantly made up of 1 bedroom units, in
town centres or the provision of small nonfamily housing above shops. However, even in
these areas, care should be taken to provide some usable and reasonable private outdoor
amenity space, perhaps in the form of balconies.'

The proposed development includes the provision of balconies for 12 of the proposed
units and a roof garden of 50.8sq.m. On balace, given the location of the site within a

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 121



Town Centre, above a commercial unit on the ground floor and within close proximity to
the adjacent Church Field Gardens public open space, the development is considered to
provide sufficient levels of external amenity space. The proposal is therefore deemed in
accordance with Policies H4 and BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) and
the Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts SPD.

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Traffic Impact

The highways officer has reviewed the proposal and raised no objection in terms of traffic
generation. Therefore, the development is considered to comply with Policy AM2 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

Car Parking

The development proposes the creation of 14 basement car parking spaces and 2 surface
level parking spaces, one of which will be a disabled access space, to service the 14 flats.
The highways officer has reviewed the proposal and considers that the provision of more
than 1 space per flat is acceptable in this location and in accordance with Policy AM14 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) and the Council's adopted car parking
standards.

Cycle Storage

The submitted plan shows the creation of a secure internal cycle storage room with space
for 14 bicycles. This provision is considered acceptable and appropriate given the scale of
the development.

7.11 Urban design, access and security

Security
Should the application be approved, a condition is recommended to ensure that the
scheme meets all Secured By Design Criteria.

Contamination

The Environment Agency and the Council's Environmental Protection Unit have reviewed
the proposal. In terms of potential contamination concerns regarding the former use of the
site as a petrol filling station neither the Environment Agency nor the Council's
Environmental Protection Unit raised any objections to the proposal, subject to the
attachment of appropriate conditions to any planning consent. As such the development is
considered in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

7.12 Disabled access

The Council's Access Officer has reviewed the development and raised no objection to

the development subject to it being in compliance with Lifetime Homes standards. To

ensure this requirement is met it is recommended to be covered by way of a condition.
7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

The development would introduce a total of 14 residential units, therefore triggering the
affordable housing requirement threshold of 10 units as set out in Policy 3.13 of the
London Plan.

Policy H2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies relates to Affordable
Housing with the Council seeking 35% of all new units in the borough delivered as
affordable housing. The Council note however, that subject to the provision of robust
evidence, it will adopt a degree of flexibility in its application of Policy H2, to take account,

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 122



of tenure needs in different parts of the borough as well as the viability of schemes.

Whilst no affordable housing has been included within the proposed scheme a Financial
Viability Assessment has been submitted with the application which has been
independently assessed by a specialist third party contractor. They have confirmed that,
with an obligations package of £236,430 accepted together with a review mechanism, the
current proposal is deemed acceptable.

7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

The site lies within the Ruislip Village Conservation Area. However, there are no trees,
protected or otherwise, within the curtilage.

Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape
features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is
appropriate.

The Councils Trees and Landscape Officer has reviewed the proposal and determined
that no trees or other landscape features of merit will be affected. The visualisations and
proposed floor plan indicate the provision of a specimen tree on the frontage, which will
benefit both the setting of the building and the street scene. It is considered that with
appropriate hard and soft landscape detailing the development could improve this site and
provide an enhanced transition between the High Street and the neighbouring residential
street.

A landscape condition is recommended to be attached to any approval to ensure that the
proposals preserve and enhance the character and local distinctiveness of the
surrounding natural and built environment. As such the development is considered to
accord with Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

7.15 Sustainable waste management

The proposal makes adequate provision for refuse/recycling storage.
7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Policy 5.3 of the London Plan 2011 requires the highest standards of sustainable design
and construction to be achieved. To ensure the development complies with this policy a
condition would be added to any approval for the development to be built to Code for
Sustainable Homes Level 4, with an interim certificate and specification provided before
the commencement of works.

The Council's Sustainability Officer has reviewed the submitted plans and raised no
objections to the development subject to a roof plan showing the required m2 of PVs as
set out in the energy report. The applicant has provided this detail in plan reference
number P203 Revision C.

7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

The Environment Agency and the Council's Flooding and Water Management Officer
have reviewed the development and raised no objection to the proposal subject to the
attachment of an appropriate condition to any consent. As such the development is
considered to accord with Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part 1- Strategic Policies (Nov 2012) and Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management of the
London Plan (July 2011).

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 123



The matters raised in submissions have been either been dealt with by amendments
made to the proposed plans, conditions attached to any approval, covered in the body of
the report or are not material planning considerations.

7.20 Planning obligations

Policy R17 of the Council's Unitary Development Plan states that: "The Local Planning
Authority will, where appropriate, seek to supplement the provision of recreation open
space, facilities to support arts, cultural and entertainment activities, and other community,
social and education facilities through planning obligations in conjunction with other
development proposals'.

As of 1st August 2014, the Council's CIL would become effective which replaces a
number of S106 requirements. In this instance new floorspace is CIL liable, which would
require a payment calculated as:

627 x £35 = £21,945

1174 x £95 = £111,530

Total = £133,475

The new floorspace would also be liable for the Mayoral CIL at a payment calculated as:
Mayoral CIL = £66,992.35 (this is an approximate figure as it needs to be adjusted for
inflation).

The S106 Heads of Terms sought are:

1. Construction Training: Training costs - £2500 per £1m build cost - £2500 x 5 = £12,500
+ £9600 coordinator costs = £22,100 or an in-kind scheme.

2. Air Quality Monitoring: £12,500

3. Project management & Monitoring fee equal to 5% of total cash contributions.

Subject to the payment of the above by the applicant, the scheme complies with Policy
R17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application
7.22 Other Issues

No further issues for consideration

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and
use of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to
the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and
also the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 124



Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related
to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure
Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality
of opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
None

10. CONCLUSION

It is considered that the proposed development would provide an acceptable use on the
ground floor in this location and residential units of an acceptable standard for future
occupiers. The design, layout, parking and scale of the proposal are deemed to conform
with the requirements of the Hillingdon local Plan (2012) and the London Plan (2011).

The application, subject to appropriate conditions, is therefore recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
National Planning Policy Framework.
Hillingdon Design and Access Statement 'Residential Layouts'.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 125



Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'.

Supplementary Planning Document Noise.

Supplementary Planning Guidance Planning Obligations.

Supplementray Planning Guidance Planning Obligations - Revised Chapter 4 Education
Contributions.

The London Plan 2011.

GLA's Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing.

Contact Officer: Ed Laughton Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 126



~- - EISub Sta

z N
N ?

Church Field Gardens

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2014 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

2 Midcroft
Ruislip

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services

Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref:
4918/APP/2014/1274

Scale

1:1,250

Planning Committee

Date

Major Page 127| October 2014

TILLINGDON

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 128



Agenda Annex

Plans for
Major Applications
Planning Committee

7th October 2014

™NILLINGDON

NNNNNN

www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 26-36 HORTON ROAD YIEWSLEY

Development: Amendments to block B (including amendments to Bedroom 2 windows,
reduced size rooflights, amendments to fenestration and internal alterations)
and block C (amendments to entrance and circulation area) of planning
permission 3507/APP/2013/2327 approved on 17-01-14 (Application for Minor
Material Amendments under S73).

LBH Ref Nos: 3507/APP/2014/2724

Date Plans Received: 31/07/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 31/07/2014

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 130






LLIV | VL. ﬂﬂw FA ¥4 - SLSPaP ELE10 IBL
uoisiaay soquN Bumesg LB S1ET faung ewbler
39 fa poonin uaissigng Bupuueid | iz . |
a5 . umgzis|  UOMKeIq 1o ‘P UOLOH SOUIOH OISO | 51110B}IL|OJERISIA

008° 1

Ueld 8IS - V' :

Page 132




T ; — -
g pavioso o o o 5w By wod'e Su5w
. | .ﬂ 1 ampeye Ty '
e EE ll‘..iil oo o saormusp vty | PrE A

ek

Page 133




]
il
HIE
i |
g
i
: e f
=Ly :
il -~ 1 ;
B 3
oo | A |f
e T e .o %o | |
I I | O0-0m |-
L = Lo tg =t He '
HEENEREERENRERERE | | BUNIEEERRGEC RN :
| &, 52 5
T et _f_; . —
| O 0. || : LIIIII'[IIIIIII J
: | |
o | B
h;}!i
T fEizE
bl
18 il
??:

2

Page 134

vistaarchitecture

01372 464575

Tal:




_};_LA-PﬂfschﬁWOS

Al

Scake
Dearwn by
cl

1:200

LA Side 2 (North)

Amendments (2 of 2)

Titie

Horton Rd, West Drayton | Biecis -

1:200

LA - Rear (East)

F
~ LA - Perspective 02

LA Side 1 (South)

= 1:200

Page 135

Clerview Homes
- ;| .
5 awars o i condions g &

Clhent

LA - Front (West)
1:200

vistaarchitecture

Tal: 01372 464575




vl

g38]]

sl

E

s ..@Wﬂ.. m.




100
[s7%
GE
Fevision

A

Drawing Numbar

| Chacked by
 Sep'14 |LA175

N+
=z
Submission
Date Drawn

Mt

212

Bisté B prans

fiorion Rd, West Drayton

LTI

41

o™ s A
- D:i* D < B' : D -
[ I - (L W oo |

.it

[ oy

ANNENNANRRNQNRNN C LIy L |

o -

Gl
Clearview Homes

Page 137

Vistaarchitecture

Tol: 01372 464575




HERNNENNEN

=

o~ n..__wﬂﬁ i ....Ei_ﬂu.wem _1. : .‘.. : Fﬁf Bi5ER 2LELD 0L

D Aq paysed iilf.&[l - vou oRA 2

oy | Weesewvomew ppou|  UOWDID WOM PUMOUON) e— seuloH MEINDSID | 3 11| DD |1 DIODISIA
o L S

Page 138




RF‘I_ v, ﬂﬁw ' 2z h.ﬂigifiiiillsfi%éii}.“ i ore FrR———
uersinel soquiny Buimesq e e o . e e jo 100 sBunsp osels &a TS Pl BT O fRaung emefiei

ED) A poonis uaisspugns Buuueid o N st Suorieup iz . |
o g suopenors wouig g oo UOMEIQ 1SOM 'PH UOHOH| a— SeuloH MOILRRID | - 51NJOB)ILIOIER)SIA

0oL !

(isam)opis

{
: 1
,;,
Page 139

mit e
gse3) opis - T -
| T ] _ " _ : _
|0 O H i [ i —H BR
I 8 & i i v BaeH e
jod B O 0 Hi =5 8 F




ELIV| b1, dos 21z b = e o pymee——
[ saquiny Buimeig LMEN] S5 saquingy 1oakbid W o uwp i !i...s.mllu.lil.!-..a..!!!. .E.!me!a.ic
I JFr—— uossjwans Bupueig o % e | PRSAE °
vo Amg ‘ SelWOoH MeIAJes|)
o S— ooy g UoMABIQ 1591 i ooy i 10| 91n10811LOIERISIA
waor 5 — o
0oL: L v 0oLk .\.Mw/_
ﬁ_._tozu 2opIS-y1 (1seg) reay -y1

l‘ fmmg punais 0o

-, 0GBZE
/I‘ Hmimg =04 1o

l‘ fauoig puooss 20

l‘ _s.._.m_..__.s.os

-, OSEZE
,l‘ Aoscig 1804 10

l‘ is.w!ﬂsmu..

N Ny
==

% s i
. 0Feze
1‘ Amioig 1524 10

l‘ faig puooss 20

N N I O A

[0 11] S S

I O I I

l:l:l'

2
(ynog) L epIS -y

Bl

ki

S5, H- -H
- 70 M
v SPEo e B

Page 140

ook _._
(1sep) o4 -y




9.1V ¥1, deg cle pocoa u o s e e ome 526995 2LE10 0L
[ saquiny Buimeig LMEN] S5 saquingy 1oakbid o Wy o u i :iihlluli.-.!-..ﬂ..h..lf. Aoung ‘eyEdle
39 Apepety s s - S eyt | U e et o
Yo T ‘ SOWOH MaIAIES|)
o v T suopens(3 -8 yooig uolheiq 1sep ‘PH -mzmw.—aw;___.u__ - i o ol Dwomw_ F-_U‘_ gﬁm_>
00b:L wor s 001 o
(yoN)2opISYT T ————— (1iseq)ieey -y
l‘. ﬁ:ﬁ-&o!gs
a M._nﬂﬁts m —— - — W — w
/I‘/ HMMEFE m [ 1 T = _ _ m m [ ] w

-, DODOE

\‘ Ieae] Buisineg punaug oo

- 05gE
l‘ Aaioig g Lo

-, DDO9E
m‘ Amicis pucoes 20

-, 0585%
l‘ faiois paul, g0

-, DDV
m‘ Aoicis yunod #0

0Ll

(2)
(uinog) 1 apIS ¥ -

i

- 0000E

I! 1940] Bugsanog punoss 00

-, DSIEE

“ Fmicig 15 10
. 000%E

l! Fainig pusaes 20

l‘ il paL eo

onzky
l‘, Aoz yunod vo

I

L1

L1 T

O |

|
a

“ -

(

h
\
a

Page 141

00k

(1sep) uoi4 -y -




1t06
Deen Court

Yiewsl|
Healtﬁy
;i Centre

30.7m

= /HonDnFar"dn/ e ,e'u“")
; % 11012
““ ‘ Crusader
.,‘ Py e
o

Bignell House

MP 1325

Notes Site Address LONDON BOROUGH
[ ]site boundary OF HILLINGDON
26-36 Horton Road Residents Services

For identification purposes only. P 2 Secti
; : Yiewsle anning Section
This copy has besn made by arwith y Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Services pursuant to section 47 of the

Copynight, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale
Act 1988 (the Act). 1 1 250

Unless the Act provides a relevant 3507/APP/2014/2724 i

exception to copyright.

; Planning Committee Date

© Crown copyright and database

ights 2014 Ord S z L L1 NI YO N
:%00519233 rdnance Survey Major Page 142 OCtOber 2014 ki | l ] N (g [ ) ) [\

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address UNIT 3, THE ARGENT CENTRE PUMP LANE HAYES

Development: Change of use from B1(a) cellular radio telephone exchange to B8 (storage
and distribution) wholesale and creation of mezzanine floor providing ancillary
storage and office space.

LBH Ref Nos: 46218/APP/2014/2186

Date Plans Received: 20/06/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 21/07/2014

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 143



V | dS . 23dSsg | *uesey
s Bumesq _——— T — w—

ev@oneil 31vos

NY1d 3LIS

V1idVD

Fs0eo 3 Ag paxsays)

HE

o B oo Wv3 i)

(Ev@00S/1) NV1d 3LIS

AWYN ONIMYH

=

S3AVH
FULINID LNIONY
€ 1INN

SEIWO0Y S

SJLU3T LU

NVid 31IS
4
L_
e

4diNO

Page 144

s ]
MOISIATH ”h Ava | AdH
AEIRIHOTIY .
M- AN A5 ( A THOAY £ el ckadiss v

3SNOH
310PUBANS

‘papincid
SAMNAUSS Y USIDBUU0S Ul Juawded paaibe [y jo jdizoal
uodn AjUo JusD PAWEU 3U) 0} pawajsues e siubly Bumesn

SIUL UMM PRUIRIUOD USHBULLO pue SINOAR| suflisap yim
uoauuoo u sbiy Ausdod EnpayR) Iy sUesse epdes
“Bumeip woy pajBIs 8 0] SUCISUSUIP ON Hiom 0

BUIBUBWILLICS 810J34 S|IS UD Pa¥D2YD 34 JSNLU SUOISUSLUIP [
“JUSSU0D oyl paonposdal Jo
paidon ag jou few pue eydes jo Auadosd 3u) si Buwedp syl




<
o
w

om Ewm -eoualsley

Bumesq
nigy | inodey ] e kg

oiREe|en) NN o wpdes wenr ding M DML AZO3
uopue
00SF BOLL 020 'L 19245 WSS 53

Fs0En

i

Ag paaan

ovioszil

§

Wv3 M)

NV1d 31IS

AWYN ONIMYH

S3AVH
FULINID LNIONY

Vid 31IS

SAE

[N TEEET p—"
avox.uiu!___bﬁ!uooz‘:wwvz{:n_—b_.vy(._m;n:n_(a

‘papinoid

S3TUUSS Yl UOLDBUUOS Ul juaLufed paasbe jing Jo jdizoal
uodn Auo WsiD PaWel 4| o) pauajsuel 358 siubly Bumelp
SIY] UM PRUIRIUOD USHEWLOM pUB SINoAR| “sufisap yim
uaneuLss u siwbily Ausdoid Erpseiu) N spesse epdes
BuMesp Wwoy pajess 8 0 SUCISUSWIP O Hiom
BUIDUSLILICD 250450 3)IS UD PAKD2UD 3q 1SN SUDISUSUID [y
JUSSUOD JNoUM peonposdal w0

paidos aq jou few pue eyded) jo Auadosd au si Bumelp siy)

mmmmmmmmmmmmm

NY1d 3LIS

RN

|

2403 S4adNg




V |70 | 1000 | J3dsSg | ®°ueeey

Bumesq
aoy | imodey o 4004 B kg
BRRISAR DI N 0 BNE manp i DML AZO3
wopua)
00S¥ B0LL 0Z0 L 19845 WSSO 5§

V1idVD

FLBED ] A paaas)

8oz L W3 [

S1NOAVT ONILSIX3
SY0074 1Syld ® ANNOYO

AN SNV

S3AVH
FULINID LNIONY
€ 1INN

SSIWOY 1S

4diNO

AN

ONILSIX3

NOISIATY IECERED

OO0V OO A0S | PI-A0EL | ¥

4

‘papinosd

1AUSS Ji U0 ul fed paasbe |Inj jo jdiaoal

uodn fjuo 2D palsen U} o) pauaisuel aie siubly Bumesp
SIU) UM PRUIBIUOD USHEBLIONI PUE SINOAR| “SUBISaP Lim
uoauuoo u sbiy Ausdod EnpayR) Iy sUesse epdes
“Bumeip woy pajBIs 8 0] SUCISUSUIP ON Hiom
BuLisua1LILI0D 2048 S)IS UG PAYIUD 3q 1SNL SUDISUSLLID Iy
JUSSUOD JNoUM peonposdal w0

paidos g jou few pue eyded jo fuadasd auy s) Buivelp siy)

ev@ooz

28 [/
HOO14 LSIL ONILSIXT S

5555555

HOO14 ONNOXD DNILSIXT

EEEEEEE

ewDosz:L 3Was ¥

Page 146




2(7d - 03dsg | °ouemiey

Bumesq
nay (3] o0y Oy kg
SiRiSaRIN 63 B manr i M oNE AZo3
uopua
005k 60LL 0Z0 L 19845 WeYssD 59

V1idVD

FLBED ok A paaas)

8oz L W3 [

S1NOAV1 03S0d0¥dd
SY00T4 1S¥ld '? ANNOYO

AN SNV

S3AVH
FULINID INIONY
€ 1INN

SSIWOY 1S

4diNO

AN

d3s0d0yd

NOMSIATY ETL e ]

MMOHE B TVEOS0N S.ANVHEL INLTI4800d | FL-90ED | ¥

SWECA0NE DL G300V vz FI-00GE0 | 8
—t 4
00V HOK NG| FLEL | D

|
1
1
1
T
|
b

‘papincsd

0I5 LI UOID ul fied paaife |inj 4o jdisoal
uodn Auo JuaiD PaLeU U} 0) paLsjsuel aie subly Bumein
SIL] LIl PRUIRIUOS USHEULSIN PUE SINOAE| "SUBSaD Ui
usiaauLGes Ul siuby Ausdoi [erpsSI) N spesse eydes
“BUIMEID WY P2IBDS 84 0} SUOISUSLIP BN oM
BUIRUSLIWD S10}3 SHS U0 PAYOILD 2q 1SN SUOISUSLLID 1Y
JUSSUOD IIOURM PRINPOITS) 1O

paidos 2q jou few pue eyded jo fuadasd au) st Buvesp syl

ev@ooz: \
—p

28
0074 LS| G380d0¥d ./

IVHLSTTVE ML ININVTT I W LN YT O3S Oa0td

ENH0

TN (A5

evDooz SaE N

Y0014 ONNOYS 0350d08d

Page 147

5555555




Yy|33 - 03dsg | °ouemiey

Bumesq
nay (3] e | Oy kg
BpEgsaER N 63 Bded e diiy DML AZD3
wopua)
00S¥ B0LL 0Z0 L 19845 WSSO 5§

V1idVD

FLBvED 3 Ag paxsays)

aeg
Bk L Wv3 [

ONILSIX3
099V SNOILYAT13

AWYN ONIMYH

S3AVH
FULINID LNIONY
€ 1INN

SEIWO0Y S

4diNO

AN

ONILSIX3

MO Y | Auva | AIH

NN NCALYDON O D300y B0 S_wm PLBEL | W

“papiacud

SIS Y UOHDSUUCD ul Juawled passbe iy jo jdisoad
uodn Ao JUsD paleu suj o) paussues aie SIubly Buimep
S Ll PRUIRILOT USHELLSUI PUE SINoAE| Sufisap Ui
uoauuoo u sbiy Ausdod EnpayR) Iy sUesse epdes
BuMesp Wwoy pajess 8 0 SUCISUSWIP O Hiom
BUIDUSLILICD 250450 3)IS UD PAKD2UD 3q 1SN SUDISUSUID [y
JUSSUOD JNoUM peonposdal w0

EvB005 L 31v08E

paidon 2q jou Aew pue eyded jo fusdoid 31 si Buwesp siyL

N¥1d NOILYDOD1 '\ ./

¥

Y

ew®osicl 31aE

ONILSIX3 - O NOILYASIT '

Page 148

Wwg Wy WE  WE W wg
ew@osi L 3tvas
ONILEIXT - 8 NOILVAITS '
— —
T T
aqeaﬁ._w:um._..
ONILSIX3 - ¥ NOILVA313
— — —
Wg Wy W WE Wy wg




8 (3d - 03dsg | °ouemiey

Bumesq

nay (3] e | Oy kg
BpEgsaER N 63 Bded e diiy DML AZD3
wopua)
00S¥ B0LL 0Z0 L 19845 WSSO 5§

V1idVD

F/a0eo Ag paxsays)

aeg
Bk L Wv3 [

a3sododd
2949V SNOILYAT13

AWYN ONIMYH

S3AVH
FULINID LNIONY
€ 1INN

SEIWO0Y S

4diNO

AN

d3s0d0yd

MO Y | v |AIH

AN 0 HVEH D1 D00 B000 I0vies | FLe0rE0 | v

WY NOMLYD0 DL 0300V HO00 30e8| PI-90CH| B

“papiacud

SIS Y UOHDSUUCD ul Juawled passbe iy jo jdisoad
uodn Ao JUsD paleu suj o) paussues aie SIubly Buimep
S Ll PRUIRILOT USHELLSUI PUE SINoAE| Sufisap Ui
uoauuoo u sbiy Ausdod EnpayR) Iy sUesse epdes
BuMesp Wwoy pajess 8 0 SUCISUSWIP O Hiom
BUIDUSLILICD 250450 3)IS UD PAKD2UD 3q 1SN SUDISUSUID [y
JUSSUOD JNoUM peonposdal w0

paidoo 2q jou Aew pue eyde) jo Auadoid au) st Bumedp sy

EvB005 L 31v08E

N¥1d NOILYDOD1 '\ ./

v

ev®osicl 31WaE

a350d408d - 2 NOILYAIIT

Page 149

W we wg Wz W wg
ew@osi L 3tvas
0380d4d0Hd - 8 NOILVYAITI3 'L
— —
T T
e¥@ogics 31¥DS J
03S0d0OY¥d - ¥ NOILYA31T
— — —
Wg Wy W WE Wy wg




Silverdale i
House S Proy

L Indust

Superstore

he Argent Centre

T

P—— {"\ 1 {_‘
' '
ro -
\I
Notes Site Address LONDON BOROUGH
[__Isite boundary Unit 3, The Argent Centre c;fsi';'l';t';'g'e ﬁfggN
For identificati ly.
origentiication pumposes onty. Pump Lane Planning Section
e auhorty of e Head o Gommitee Hayes " clphons No. trbrdge 250111

: ) Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the

Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale
Act 1988 (the Act). 1 1 250
Unless the Act provides a relevant 46218/APP/2014/2186 "
exception to copyright.
] Planning Committee Date

© Crown copyright and database

i H I.L11 1 r S 7y N
2%85513[2)18431 Ordnance Survey Major Page 150 October 2014 ¢ 'a_‘_L | L L 1 L\'I G E"U O [‘x“

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address RYEFIELD HOUSE RYEFIELD AVENUE HILLINGDON

Development: Amendment to condition 3 of planning permission 11838/APP/2013/2650 date
31/12/2013 to amend the approved plans to adjustment external openings,
reconfigure the internal layout and alter the location, design and size of the
basement. (S73 Application).

LBH Ref Nos: 11838/APP/2014/2350

Date Plans Received: 02/07/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 14/07/2014

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 151



Ordnance Survey, (¢) Crown Copyright 2014. All nghts reserved. Licence number 100022432

0 10 20 30 40 50 100

cent  Active Lives Care Ltd.
N

- . I 7 moect Care Home at Ryefield Avenue, Hillingdon, UB10 9DE
h iates limited : :
R @ = Lol Pir

North Yorkshire - YO8 55L

t 01757 282547 page%mzsg@p‘.ﬂm Apr ‘14 ld'mwn mh [ checked mp

e. info@thehayassociates.co.uk

w:  www.thehayassociates.co.uk bno. A402 drawingno. | 01 revision _




P e ey

T — [ - 201Y w -
e e RIS

s L b o e b
—— - TLEE
S ——— @ e ST IR NI
P11 3090 3N AUV El p

J
SaT T = [j’/ue'a EE)
o g W3t Yy,

: UE @Jua4 MU WIBUINL]
SE 21 0 Spo Av4iL] S€ 8 EID av4JVLD
¥ 9 wl0 @94y ¥iJ
: { . .@ f
¥ booam
11 4 g =
] e
E
g
-1
g 2 3
\ - 3
k <
a =)
§ =
. ™
o
{ ~—
o &
Y-
R .
¥ -
<) 3 o
af. o
s =
2 >
- <
.w o
s g
(¥
|
i~
=
-
-3
w
0
T p———— o
./../.../.. M
o el q a P
ueo,‘% ugl a3usj papuoog 2SONNLI iy sudway TOMTL = “ °
o § ¥ & & 1 @ w%@ w W m
s m— — — ] nt = - 2




" — 10 wams O e . Sl
[ g T v a0+

Tk e o e P 5
= e e
0011 WEMIESAE - QISOMOM ————— I P T

W BE g ESE WY 0L UK
Wb | PEE W e s

3N 030100

s " _l‘_%ytz.

| 1 P

x wbsgg
L—g NI 5
— h




S B0 s 0L wu s

U e U e PO e VENOOL S

= R e
E =% P o s T
— l«.ﬂl... A . P

FET T e
[PERREERE ... . .
.

Page 155

§ & & & 1 @



" — B0 wams O g &

-_:_
U e U0 | PN o IENOOL G | T e s e 8 8 iy
——r &= =
305 v uonl -
- sigtﬁﬁq‘ Im L -
e T R L T pm—
D551t - sueds; soty woaIpIE!
AiNA S EE
wbs 5T AR o e
s 1100 : Y J004 WU
NYId 40074 1SHId
(<o}
Lo
h
(]
(@]
]
o

§ & & & 1 @



R
urbs 591 un - aaeds 00t woCHE
i one 12

WS YA Y I001 P
b

O PR 004 s

N¥1d ¥0014 ONO23S

§ & & & 1 @

= ll“-h.uul.uﬂ.ﬂnﬂ.
Ep— Lo —
[PERREERE ... . .

..

Page 157



@ »

¢ E

NOILYAZST3 HLNOS - V-¥ NOILYAST3 NOILYAZTE HLYON - 8-8 NOULYAINS NOLLYATTE LSVE - 0D NOLLYATT3 NOILYAZTE LS3M - 0-0 NOILYAZS
i
h
| ki
Page 158 H il l
il §

I
!

@ i
1
o

=~ a02

—




L .

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2014 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address
Ryefield House
Ryefield Avenue

Hillingdon

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services

Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref:
11838/APP/2014/2350

Scale

1:1,250

Planning Committee

Major Page 159

Date

October 2014

~ILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address ST HELENS SCHOOL EASTBURY ROAD NORTHWOOD

Development: Development of a new part two storey and part single storey Junior School
building with associated external works.

LBH Ref Nos: 7402/APP/2014/2761

Date Plans Received: 04/08/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 04/08/2014

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 160



L0-L0E-V8ZL

A3y ON ONIMYYA

YLILO/LE 31va oosz - L J1vos

Uejd uonedo a)s

31LIL ONIMYEA

TO0OHOS

HOINNF M3N SINTT3H 1S
103royd
SIE ¥N"00"PIFMAA

3N° 02" pu@ojul 3
LOOL ¥.2€ 020 4
0001 ¥£2€ 020 1

ajeq uoisinay

MOT 6ML

AJHENS
ONOWHOIY

SYTIA VIHOLOIA L

S1031IHOYV dil

D

Junidjoo; Buipjing pasodoid

dii

ayis uoneolddy

(saieoay $'g = B3IR BYS ||BIBAO)
1ueoidde Aq paumo pue

W Io0WRS
[ susieH 1S

Page 161



| z0d iz 100 VO 2Es a R e [P —

...I....il.l.....
| D WP SO0, w, s, e e ] B« e Wy g
ol S VeI VO 9Ea8PU SpiM S e — | s e
- : — — P,
o = muqu—& 10043 JoWINF S UBIBH 1S POOMULON S.UBIBH ‘IS bl e | s | a—————
it . iy i wiesind e — s s —— v

e e o ot 0 s o

T S i YT T e i R

|
i
(@] (@] [@ [E][@][2

|
g
5
g
§
§

|

AL

K [e=] [v] [o]|[@][

|
E




Page 163




" uou
- g
W oFm o 5@ OB £ 0
e ————

- POT N ¥y .wuﬂ.ﬂ-‘r SR

e

(A5 e
Lt

Page 164



LO-E0E-FETL

Ay ON_SHNIMYED

Wame g 8w oo

Bugsncy - suogaag s
FWL ONIMYHO

TOOHDS HONNE MIN SNITIH LS
£33r0ud
'ODOMHLEON 100HIE SNITIH 18
I T o1 |

.
o paons 3
D0k EZT 020 4
oo sectam L

T AL
i

—
—
G S103LIHOYY il

£

No

Bunsix3g se zo _.__O_”—OQW wu_m

ODN— \FU/
Bunsix3g se Lo uonosag ays

oo ® F ¥ T 0




TO-E0E-FEZL

Ady O _SHiMvEd

i 1 o B S

P00 - SIS S
TUL DNIMYED

TOOHDE BOMNE MIN SNITIH LS
133rgua

© DOCHHIBON 100HOES SHITIH 1S
. wang]

.
R

o pahegs 3

AOQL PLET B50 4

00 FLET R0 L

I Ry
— iR
G ooy

m._.Um.:IONE_ an

& o @ ¥ r & 9

sy

pasodoud se zo :o_«oom B_w

pasodolid se L0 :o_«oom H_m

e

Na

Page 166



BAISOTa - 1008 PUnGID
IWL DNIMYED

TOOHDE BOMNE MIN SNITIH LS
133r0ue

ODCAMHIHON I00HIS SHITTIH 15
533

T
| s

s palies 3
404 #4ET 520 4
! | £o0L 42T 000 1
I "
I s
oo
SYTHA VHOLDHA |

SLO3LHDYY all

- oy ey

@ o @ v r & 0

sy

Page 167



SO L0E-FETL

ON_SHNIMYED

WRE 3 g B L gqun

Damodou - 1004 ERY
JWL ONIMYHD

uuuuuu

- o

e

¢

Page 168



A AT
8 ” ”””’”"” ‘.""""""""lﬂlllllllmu‘;'-'.'.:' P
=

Page 169

o
1284-301-06




uuuuuuu

M B 0oLt 20
pE on
DOCAHINON TO0HIE SHTTIH 1S
FLY b
o .
[ 1 —
| o omiops

_— Eeetii]
TR

SLOILHOWY Al
- i -

P eren Bt e, g
It s e usrec) s par ] oy vz
—— o | st s g s v
s v ey an s o e [ravran ey

.......



wcpan o, i)
v ninmrst e b s s s s i 4 g i g
ot e ¥ ey e e o ppe—— P e e ==t Ao oy
o
v sepws s vn i o sy e
Proiearay [re— . - Py ye— s o o pacr ;. i ~—
~—
0Lk o
L
—
summn i
e g
D
e s
v e
somrias pegenst i o
s s s b b, § sl B ] e e e s dnpam.
o s o e g s ot dimis ¥ iy o 2 s i) ¥ arames ]
wsacs om
s s e s i e e o
s e, i g, s e [mryessrsy o e ]

L4 § v 3 13 i L]



il L1

Page 172

B ERE N



L el .. = =1 2 |

il

g
el

s A R 5 W AR S S A N SRR A

e
. et
- sy Sy
g
s sk, § Bt
e ez 190 sl smmsmesy

ge 173

BF. s
pieAuno jlews o} jeusajul 5

e
oy A
e S o
g i e et il
Amems e ety e Pestensra) B —— oty g
—— Drpued el
s e i wpaas ] g pam

i

L4 § v 3 13 i L]
e ———



LO-B0E-+ETL

wsa o 1
4001 WgEN 500 4
004 HiEERCO 4

)
s

—
I i
Ry
G SLOFLHOHY all
=

—— -

13A373A3 LS3M HLNOS

3A3SaYIg LS3IM HLNOS

Page 174



004 HiEERCO 4

)
s
[y
SYTEL VROLIV, &

SLOFLHIEY all

——

13A37 3A3 1sv3

JAISAHIE HLHON




St Helen's School

Playing Field

Sports Facility

Sports Facility

Swimming Pool

—A
- ]

g

Sentis
Court

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with

Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2014 Ordnance Survey
100019283

the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the

Site Address
St Helens School

Eastbury Road
Northwood

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services

Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
7402/APP/2014/2761 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
Major Page 176 | October 2014




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 2 MIDCROFT RUISLIP

Development: Demolition of existing petrol station with tanks and erection of a four storey
building comprising 14 residential units, 2 commercial units at the ground floor
with associated access, underground car parking and cycle storage.

LBH Ref Nos: 4918/APP/2014/1274

Date Plans Received: 11/04/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 11/04/2014
Date Application Valid: 04/09/2014 20/08/2014

Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th October 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 177



ANSSI ONINNY I

O DY Pt o e e S A4 e

0011 3OS
Nv1d JO0Y ONILSIX3

SO :
\..\
\\
00icL ITVIS
NOILVAZ3 LNOY
i
ﬂun_“ -ﬂa gm g AHOINNTD 40 3NN

Nv1d HOOTd ANNOYD ONILSIX3

ROVIS
WM DN
IO ONY JOHS
HEVAL YD
a
\\
wiﬁ:m. » \.\\\
&

0014 3TW3S

NOILYAZNZ 3418

AchONND 40 INCULNO DTG

N0 ONY JOHS



I
| AT
[owrenen
AN SINGH
o e T s i, e g, Aot 908
PLANNING ISSUE

Tota
TR
ey
B6.Tm*
£
T3Im

2 | 700w | 76.am*
r
AR A
1w

FLAT TYPE

D
FLAT TYPE

L
COMMERCIAL
uNIT
uNIT 1
LA, 11 KELLCHNG BALCORTS

SCHEDULE OF AREAS

-

1ST FLOOR PLAN

SCALE 1:100

i,




g T Sy, ek neg s 3008
| |

EEEE MRORAE _—

o ean ;!shﬂ LR L
|'i!|'i | g dl-1-- §§ﬁ§ gi
EEEE g |

preiEey shsl sl | %ggii i
R

Loy = §

i B
i

-]

Page 180



1/ |

L1 1

|

-

i
o |
——
 ——

[T

11

|

-

rl

¥
' -

=
-
b
ot
=S
i
=
-

3 | ]
2 | By
Sal]
. ']
4
. 7 N
.‘{'
4
|
I
A




FovOL
or

i

Page 182




SCALE 1:100

CALE 1:100







s o 001t 3WOS
AN3WISVYE NI MHVYd VD HO4 SHIOVHL OLNY

LR TR




= 0011 3VOS
AN3WISVYE NI MHVd VD HOd SHOVHL OLNY

LR TR

Sl LS -~ .-
| —
| <
1
I

._m
, 4
" Tn 1Al
_l LHIT
-




Post Office

=

vy Rosedene
', Court. -

Church Field Gardens

.

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2014 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

2 Midcroft
Ruislip

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services

Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
4918/APP/2014/1274 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
Major Page 187 | October 2014

THILLINGDON

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 188



	Agenda
	3 To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting held on 16 September 2014
	6 26-36 Horton Road, Yiewsley - 3507/APP/2014/2724
	7 Unit 3, The Argent Centre, Pump Lane, Northwood - 46218/APP/2014/2186
	8 Ryefield House, Ryefield Avenue, Hillingdon - 11838/APP/2014/2350
	9 St Helens School, Eastbury Road, Northwood - 7402/APP/2014/2761
	10 2 Midcroft, Ruislip - 4918/APP/2014/1274
	PART I - Plans for Major Applications Planning Committee

